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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Strategic Report - .
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

REVIEW OF BUSINESS
Principal activities : : ‘ : .
The Company is a 100% subsidiary of SHV Energy Group and the principal activities continue to be the processing,
marketing and distribution of liquefied petroleum gases (LPG) in Great Britain.

Business review, future developments and key performance indicators

The Company is Great Britain's leading supplier of LPG and distributes a fully comprehensive range of LPG products
which are used across a wide range of applications. Bulk LPG is supplied to commercial, industrial, agricultural and
domestic customers with tank storage. Onward retail sale is delivered in cylinders of various sizes through direct sales
outlets and a network of LPG retailers which cover the whole of Great Britain. The LPG market is regulated by statutory
bodies to ensure customers can rely on a safe and secure supply of gas. Increased energy efficiency in both domestic and
commercial applications means that the market remains very competitive. Calor is an active member of the Liquid Gas
Uk association that represents the industry to external stakeholders.

Seasonal extremes in weather continue to provide operational challenges to the business. The financial performance of
the business improved through strong margin development and restructuring of activities improving operational
efficiencies. The company continued to invest including in upgrades to the IT systems and a new ERP system, SAP,
which will now go live in 2023. The company also continued its long-term investment in the strategic storage facility at
Canvey Island.

The Company's strategy is underpinned by focusing on a number of key performance measures; safety and compliance
remains the key focus as well as providing industry leading service measured through customer satisfaction. Operating
profit increased to £73.3m.

The company continued to recover well from the Covid crisis, with strong volume development compared to 2020.
There was a higher than average absence rate due to illness throughout the year with COVID representing a significant
proportion. In addition, the national shortage of drivers, particularly in Autumn resulted in service impacts to customers
due to limited capacity to fill bulk tanks in preparation for Winter 2021. The company is taking steps to improve service
through a range of measures, including significant pay increases to attract & retain drivers and increasing the number of
customer facing colleagues.

Principal risks and uncertainties
The directors believe the key risks to the Company's business are outlined below under financial risk management.

Other risks include the ongoing war in Ukraine. This could potentially put at risk the global availability of LPG and/or
increase the price of LPG. The Company purchases LPG supplies either direct from UK refineries or via an SHV Group
company. Supply and Risk Management (SRM), which acquires LPG from global suppliers. The Company does not
source any LPG from Russia. The company uses storage capacity, supply contracts and hedging tools to effectively
manage the risk of supply and cost of LPG. Diesel costs and other energy costs of running the company are hedged or on
fixed price contracts through 2022. Calor also monitors, on a regular basis, all trading partners to ensure that work is not
undertaken with or via any sanctioned individuals or companies.

In the current climate the Directors consider that the Company is in a strong position due to the comprehensive range of
uses for LPG and the diverse customer base. The Company is not dependent on a small number of customers so any risk
relating to a potential reduction of sales to specific market segments is sufficiently spread. The Company's products are
not luxury products and a low percentage of sales could be classified as discretionary.

The Company is not reliant on external borrowing and the climate could also bring opportunities as well as risks. A low
number of house sales and purchases may result in a more stable domestic customer base. Increasing competitiveness of
the UK job market has been seen across a number of functions and geographies during the year. Detailed analysis has
been undertaken and specific recruitment strategies adopted to minimise impact on the business.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Strategic Report .+ | .
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The Directors do not currently anticipate any significant issues that are not currently being managed and. on this basis the
directors are of the view that there will be no further significant adverse effect on the Company's current business.

Financial risk management

The Company is exposed to a variety of risks the most significant of which are operational risk, commodity price risk,
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and weather risk. The board seeks to limit the adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Company by reviewing and agreeing policies for managing each of these
risks and these are summarised below:

Operational risk

Operational risks are all those risks which are not financial and which are caused by failed systems, human behaviour or
external events. Operational risks are assessed by the method of 'risk self-assessment, which is based on the principle
that management at all levels are responsible for managing their 'own' operational risks. In addition Health and Safety
risks are covered by a company Safety Management System.

Commodity price risk
The Company's operating performance is affected by price fluctuations in LPG, derivatives are used to limit the effect of

price volatility and provide pricing certainty for customers.

Foreign currency risk
Where LPG suppliers require settlement in foreign currency, forward foreign exchange contracts are used to mitigate

exchange rate risks.

Pension risk
FRS 102 requires the liabilities under the defined benefit pension scheme to be discounted using the interest rate on high
quality long term corporate bonds. The net valuation of the pension scheme is therefore intrinsically linked to

movements in bond yields and other general economic factors.

Credit risk

The Company has implemented policies that require appropriate credit checks and reviews on potential and existing
customers. Collection procedures for overdue balances are reviewed periodically. Certain customers are covered by debt
insurance. In light of the current economic climate, directors have performed a detailed review of the bad debt
provisioning methods and feel that the resulting provisions in place at the year-end are appropriate.

Liquidity risk

The Company finances its operations through cash flow from operating activities. Cash forecasts identifying the
liquidity requirements of the Company are produced frequently. These are reviewed regularly by the Board to ensure
that sufficient financial headroom exists for at least a twelve month period.at any point in time.

Interest rate risk
The company considers that UK interest rates will continue to rise in 2022. Calors financing is arranged internally with

the parent company, SHV on fixed rate contracts and the company has no long term external bank debt. There is some
intercompany financing between entities in the Calor group on IBOR rate contracts.

A fundamental reform of major interest rate benchmarks is being undertaken globally, including the replacement of
some interbank offered rates (IBORs) with alternative risk-free rates (referred to as 'IBOR reform’). The company has
limited exposures to IBORs on an intercompany loan that will be replaced or reformed as part of these market wide
initiatives. There is uncertainty over the timings and method of transition. The company does not believe that IBOR
reform will impact the level of its intercompany interest rate transactions.

The directors therefore consider interest rate risk to be effectively managed.

Inflation Risk
UK inflation is likely to average over 8% in 2022. The Directors manage the risk through a range of measures including

effective procurement both in GB and supported by a Global Procurement function hedging tools to fix the cost of LPG
over 18 months and pricing actions to customers.
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" Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

. Strategic Report - C PR
for the Year Ended 31 December _202]

Weather risk . . .

Sales volumes are influenced by temperature and other weather factors. However, currently, the costs of managing
exposure to weather risk appear excessive'in relation to the potential benefits. The Company continually seeks to
mitigate this risk by developing its non-weather dependant business.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered numbet: 00303703)

Strategic Report - - :
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021 - \

ENVIRONMENT ,
In line with the. Streamlined Energy Carbon Reporting requirement, during the. year ended 31 December 2021, the

company's carbon emissions and energy usage was as follows.

Summary

Calor Gas' greenhouse gas emissions, reportable under SECR in 2021 were 35,660 tonnes CO2e. Total emissions have
increased 4% against 2020, predominantly driven by an increase in diesel use in our fleet vehicles. Our carbon intensity
has remained level, increasing just 0.2% to 74.98 kilogrammes of CO2e per tonne of gas sold.

Greenhouse gas emissions

As can be seen in Table 1 below, carbon emissions have gone up 4%, but carbon intensity against tonnes of gas sold has
remained level. Transport fuel use accounted for 75% of emissions in 2021 (predominantly diesel in HGVs for
deliveries), and this has increased 6%, which is the main driver for the overall 4% increase in emissions.

Table 1 Greenhouse gas emissions by year (tonnes CO2¢)

YoY
Emissions source 2020 2021 Share Variance
Fuel combustion: Natural Gas 1,012 1,084 3% +7%
Purchased electricity 3,191 3,054 9% -4%
Fuel combustion: Petrol and Diesel 25,163 26,660 75% +6%
Fuel combustion: Propane 225 230 1% +<1%
Fuel combustion: LPG 4,649 4,632 13% <1%
Total emissions (tCO2e) 34,240 35,660 +4%
Tonnes gas sold 457,723 475,577 +4%
Intensity: (kgCO2e per tonne sold) 74.80 74.98 +0.2%

Calor have been investing in the procurement of zero carbon electricity for all our sites since 2019. Therefore, the 9% of
our carbon footprint for electricity consumption could be removed under market-based reporting methodology.
However, we still consider electricity management a key element of our sustainability endeavours, so we are continuing
to report our electricity emissions using the national grid emission factor as per the location-based methodology.

The 2020 figures for fuel usage have been restated following improvements in data collection.

As can be seen in Table 1 below, 91% of our emissions are scope 1: emissions from fuel used in equipment and vehicles
we own or lease.

Table 2 Greenhouse gas emissions by scope (tonnes CO2¢e)

YoY
Scope of emissions 2020 2021 Share Variance
Scope 1 31,033 32,592 91% 5%
Scope 2 2,938 2,806 8% -4%
Scope 3 269 261 1% 3%
Total emissions (tCO2e) 34240 35,660 100% 4%

Scope 1: Fuel use in Calor-owned/leased equipment and vehicles
Scope 2: Electricity consumption
Scope 3: Losses from electricity distribution and transmission, and fuel used in private cars for business

purposes
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)
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for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Energy consumption
Table 3 Energy consumption by year (kWh)

. ‘ S YoY
Emissions source 2020 2021 Share Variance
Fuel combustion: Natural Gas 5,503,042 5,915,975 4% 8%
Purchased electricity 12,601,890 13,214,570 9% - 5%
Fuel combustion: Petrol and Diesel 99,290,209 105,977,163 72% 7%
Fuel combustion: Propane 987,843 987,843 1% 0%
Fuel combustion: LPG 20,187,784 20,112,225 14% 0%
Total consumption (kWh) 138,570,768 146,207,776 100% 6%

Boundary, methodology and exclusions

An 'operational control' approach has been used to define the Greenhouse Gas emissions boundary, i.e., the boundary
includes all operations where Calor has the full authority to introduce and implement its-operating policies.

This approach captures emissions associated with the operation of all buildings and processes, company-owned and
leased transport and grey fleet. This report covers UK operations only, as required by SECR for Non-Quoted Large
Companies.

This information was collected and reported in line with the methodology set out in the UK Government's
Environmental Reporting Guidelines, 2019.

Emissions have been calculated using the latest conversion factors provided by the UK Government. There are no
material omissions from the mandatory reporting scope.

Accurate data was not available for 2020 for red diesel, propane and some LPG consumption. 2021 figures have been
_used as an estimate. This represents 15% of total 2020 emissions.

Less than 1% of natural gas and electricity data for 2021 was based on estimated data.

The reporting period is January 2021 to December 2021, as per the financial accounts

Sustainability initiatives
Some of the initiatives that the group have deployed in 2021 to support our sustainability aspirations and ambition to
offer 100% renewable fuels by 2040 include:

Procurement of 100% renewable electricity across all sites

At the end of life stage, commercial vehicles are replaced with more fuel efficient alternatives

Electric vehicles made available on the company car fleet for employees across all eligible grades

Commenced the upgrade and refurbishment of key operational sites

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Board of Directors, in line with their duties under s172 of the Companies Act 2006, act in a way they consider
would most likely be in the best interests of the Company taking into account the requirements of all stakeholders. We
aim to build positive relationships with stakeholders who share our values to help deliver long-term sustainable success.

The Board have the full support of the shareholder in developing the Company for the benefit of all stakeholders.
Engagement with other stakeholders is illustrated below.

Customers

At the core of the Company's strategy is the intent to "provide all of our customers with an industry leading experience".
Customer service is a key differentiator and the independent customer review tool Trustpilot is being used as an external
measure of the Company's success whilst highlighting areas for improvement. It is monitored closely and is used to
celebrate and reinforce positive behaviours but also provides independent, real time feedback from customers.

Our people

Through employee forums, newsletters, company intranet, national conferences and the Company Council the Directors
engage with our people on a wide range of matters. The aim is to ensure that their views are taken into account when
decisions are made that are likely to affect their interests, and that all employees are aware of the financial and economic
performance of their business units and of the Company as a whole.
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The company is committed to the principle of equal opportunity in employment. Our. employment policies for
recruitment, selection, training, development and promotion are designed to ensure that no job applicant or employee
receives less favourable treatment on the grounds of race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin, religion, political
beliefs, disability, sex or marital status. Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered,
bearing in mind the respective aptitudes and abilities of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff
becoming disabled, every effort is made to ensure that their employment with the company continues. and the appropriate
training is arranged. It is the policy of the company that the training, career development and promotion of a disabled
person should, as far as possible, be identical to that of a person who does not suffer from a disability. The company has
recently initiated a Diversity and Inclusion strategy to further develop in these areas.

An Employee Assistance Programme is in place and is designed to provide a safe and confidential environment for
employees to seek help, advice or support in relation to any personal issues they have. In addition, employees have
access to a confidential reporting system, Speak Up, to enable them to raise any concerns regarding business practlces
This reflects the importance placed on the well-being of all of our stakeholders.

All new employees join a broad induction programme and have on-going access to both in-house and external training
resources via a dedicated HR training and development team. A number of talent management programmes are in place
across the Company and within the parent group, supporting all colleagues to reach their full potential.

Suppliers

All supplier-related activity is managed in line with the Group Procurement Policy. This ensures that supply risk is
managed appropriately in relation to customer outcomes, data security, corporate responsibility, and financial,
operational, contractual and brand damage caused by inadequate oversight or supplier failure.

Communities

Engagement with local communities is important to our regional presence. Our local branches support local community
events and our sustainability focus harnesses our passion towards the creation of a better planet. The Company continues
to encourage all employees to support local community initiatives and provides time away from work for this. The
Company fully supports and funds financial awards made to local community initiatives under the national Rural

Community Fund banner.

Government and regulators

The Board is fully supported by the parent group in its commitment to maintaining the highest standards of ethics and
compliance. Regular, compulsory training and testing of compliance requirements is embedded within the culture,
championed by an internal Compliance team.

By its nature LPG requires robust controls in its storage, transportation and use. The Company works hard within the
industry to ensure that all required Codes of Practice are in place and adhered to. This fully aligns with the Company
strategy, placing the safety of all stakeholders at its core and targeting zero injuries.

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company has in place a Health and Safety Policy under which procedures have been developed to identify potential
hazards from any substances, products, processes and methods of working, to advise employees and contractors of any
hazards and to ensure safe systems of work are adopted to minimise the risk of injury.

The Company's Environmental Management System has been developed in line with ISO 14001 and part of its operation

enables us to monitor energy consumption, fuel use and waste disposal and take action to reduce environmental impacts.
Employees are trained to exercise personal responsibility in preventing harm to the environment.

Page 7



. Calor Gas Limited.(Registered number: 00303703).

Stmteg‘ic Regon e .
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

.The Company also has a wider strategy based around sustainability which has been briefed across the Company. This
includes a carbon reduction target and a working group has been established to deliver and report on this on an annual
basis. Co : . - . .

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD:
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Dlrectors Regort -
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

The directors present their rgport with the financial statements of the company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

RESULTS
The company's profit after tax for the year ended 31 December 2021 is £57.4 million (year ended 31 December 2020:

£72.0 million).

DIVIDENDS
An interim dividend of £0.332 per share was paid in June 2021. The Directors do not recommend a final dividend.

The total distribution of dividends for the year ended 31 December 2021 will be £10,000,000.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
The company continues to research new markets for the use of LPG, to maintain effective safety measures and develop

equipment for LPG and allied products.
Future developments are discussed in the Strategic report.

EVENTS SINCE THE END OF THE YEAR ,
Information relating to events since the end of the year is given in the notes to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors shown below have held office during the whole of the period from 1January 2021 to the date of this report

N Fortune

M Hickin

P Instrell

S Macdonald
J Wood

The Directors benefit from qualifying third party indemnity provisions in place during the year ended 31" December
2021 and at the date of this report.

GOING CONCERN

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The Directors believe that the going concern
basis for the preparation of these accounts is appropriate as the Directors have prepared detailed financial forecasts,
taking into account reasonable, possible downside scenarios and with due consideration to the impact of the Covid
pandemic, inflationary risk and the war in Ukraine. The directors have given specific consideration for the continued
forecast capital investments in the business. There is adequate cashflow to pay for these investments considering the
flexibility around timings of cashflows if required. These forecasts show that the Company has sufficient financial
resources so as to enable the Company to continue to operate for at least twelve months following the signing date of
these accounts. As such, the Directors consider it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these
financial statements.

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES
The directors are responsible for preparing the Strategic Report, the Directors' Report and the financial statements in
accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with UK accounting standards and applicable law (UK
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), including FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of Ireland.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

'Dlrectors Remrt . )
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES - continued

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view-of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period. In preparing
these financial statements, the directors are required to:

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- state whether applicable UK accounting standards have been followed, subJect to any material departures dlSClOSCd
and explained in the financial statements;

- assess the Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern; and

- use the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are responsible for such
internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and have general responsibility for taking such steps as are
reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevént and detect fraud and other irregularities.

STATEMENT AS TO DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION TO AUDITORS

So far as the directors, who held office at the date of approval of this directors' report, are aware, there is no relevant
audit information (as defined by Section 418 of Companies Act 2006) of which the company's auditors are unaware, and
each director has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself or herself
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company's auditors are aware of that information.

AUDITORS
Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2006, the auditor will be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG LLP will

therefore continue in office.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD:

J Woat - Director

30 August 2022
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Indepéndent Auditors’ Report to the Members of
‘ Calor Gas lelted

Opmlon

We have audited the financial statements of Calor Gas Limited ("the. company") for the year ended 31 December 2021
which comprise- the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity and related
notes, including the accounting policies in note 2.. .

In our opinion the financial statements: . : : ‘ :
- give a true and fair view of the state of the company’s affalrs as at 31 December 2021 and of its profit for the year then

ended; ]
- have been properly prepared in accordance w1th UK accounting standards, including FRS 102 The Financial

Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) ("ISAs (UK)") and applicable law.
Our responsibilities are described below. We have fulfilled our ethical responsibilities under, and are independent of the
Company in accordance with, UK ethical requirements including the FRC Ethical Standard. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is a sufficient and appropriate basis for our opinion.

We communicated identified fraud risks throughout the audit team and remained alert to any indications of fraud
throughout the audit.

Going concern

The directors have prepared the financial statements on the going concern basis as they do not intend to liquidate the
Company or to cease its operations, and as they have concluded that the Company’s financial position means that this is
realistic. They have also concluded that there are no material uncertainties that could have cast significant doubt over its
ability to continue as a going concern for at least a year from the date of approval of the financial statements ("the going

concern period”).

In our evaluation of the directors’ conclusions, we considered the inherent risks to the Company’s business model and
analysed how those risks might affect the Company’s financial resources or ability to continue operations over the going
concern period

Our conclusions based on this work:

- we consider that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is appropriate;

- we have not identified, and concur with the directors’ assessment that there is not, a material uncertainty related to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern for the going concern period.

However, as we cannot predict all future events or conditions and as subsequent events may result in outcomes that are
inconsistent with judgements that were reasonable at the time they were made, the above conclusions are not a guarantee
that the Company will continue in operation.

Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations - ability to detect
Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement to fraud.

To identify risks of material misstatement due to fraud ("fraud risks") we assessed events or conditions that could
indicate an incentive or pressure to commit fraud or provide an opportunity to commit fraud.  Our risk assessment
procedures included:

- Enquiring of directors and inspection of policy documentation as to Calor Gas Limited policies and procedures to
prevent and detect fraud that apply to this company as well as enquiring whether the directors have knowledge of any
actual, suspected or alleged fraud.

- Reading Board minutes.

- Considering remuneration incentive schemes and performance targets; and
- Using analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships.

As required by auditing standards, and taking into account possible pressures to meet profit targets and our overall
knowledge of the control environment, we perform procedures to address the risk of management override of controls
and the risk of fraudulent revenue recognition, in particular risk that revenue is recorded in the wrong period and the risk
that management may be in a position to make inappropriate accounting entries and the risk of bias in accounting
estimates and judgements such as pension assumptions.
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We did not identify any additional fraud risks..

We performed procedures including identifying journal entries to test for the company based on risk criteria and.
comparing the identified entries to supporting documentation. These included unexpected debit or credit Joumals posted
to cash and borrowings and unexpected credit postings to revenue during the financial year..

Identifying and responding to risks of material misstatement due to non-compliance with.laws and regulations

We identified areas of laws and regulations that could reasonably be expected to have a material effect on the financial
statements from our general commercial and sector experience and through discussion with the directors (as required by
auditing standards) and discussed with the directors the policies and procedures regarding compliance with laws and
regulations.

We communicated identified laws and regulations throughout our team and remained alert to any indications of
non-compliance throughout the audit.

The potential effect of these laws and regulations on the financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the company is subject to laws and regulations that directly affect the financial statements including financial
reporting legislation (including related companies legislation), distributable profits legislation and taxation legislation
and we assessed the extent of compliance with these laws and regulations as part of our procedures on the related
financial statement items.

Secondly , the company is subject to many other laws and regulations where the consequences of non-compliance could
have a material effect on amounts or disclosures in the financial statements, for instance through the imposition of fines
or litigation. We identified the following areas as those most likely to have such an effect: health and safety,
anti-bribery, employment law and certain aspects of company legislation recognising the nature of the company’s
activities. Auditing standards limit the required audit procedures to identify non-compliance with these laws and
regulations to enquiry of the directors inspection of regulatory and legal correspondence, if any. Therefore, if a breach of
operational regulations is not disclosed to us or evident from relevant correspondence, an audit will not detect that
breach.

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or breaches of law or regulation

Owing to the inherent limitations of an audit, there is an unavoidable risk that we may not have detected some material
misstatements in the financial statements, even though we have properly planned and performed our audit in accordance
with auditing standards. For example, the further removed non-compliance with laws and regulations is from the events
and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the less likely the inherently limited procedures required by
auditing standards would identify it.

In addition, as with any audit, there remained a higher risk of non-detection of fraud, as these may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls. Our audit procedures are
designed to detect material misstatement. We are not responsible for preventing non-compliance or fraud and cannot be
expected to detect non-compliance with all laws and regulations.

Strategic report and directors’ report
The directors are responsible for the strategic report and the directors’ report. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover those reports and we do not express an audit opinion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the strategic report and the directors’ report and, in doing so, consider whether, based on
our financial statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial
statements or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work:

- we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report and the directors’ report;

- in our opinion the information given in those reports for the financial year is consistent with the financial statements;
and

- in our opinion those reports have been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or
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Independent Auditors’ Report.to the Members of .

Calor Gas Limited ’

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
- certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit: or

We have nothing to report in these respects.

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on pages 9 and 10, the directors are responsible for: the preparation of
the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view; such internal control as they determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern; and using the going concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditors' responsibilities

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in an auditors' report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements. .

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC’s website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities.

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities
This report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by
law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

-~

~~

ier Timmermans (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants
One Snowhill
Snow Hill Queensway
Birmingham
B4 6GH

Date: ..... 3OA)"‘)("‘°LL
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

- Statemeﬁt of Comprehénsive Income .
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

, 2021
Notes £000 £000
‘TURNOVER 471,800
Cost of sales 254,700
GROSS PROFIT 217,100
Distribution costs 83,200
Administrative expenses 60,600
E— 143,800
OPERATING PROFIT 5 73,300
Income from shares in group undertakings 6 2,300
75,600
Interest payable and similar expenses 7 ' 3,800
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 71,800
Tax on profit 8 14,400
PROFIT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 57,400
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability 29,000
Income tax relating to other comprehensive
income (4,100)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR, NET OF INCOME TAX 24,900
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR

82,300

The notes form part of these financial statements
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45,200

2020
£000 £000

408,900
215,100
193,800

79,900
125,100
68,700
22,400
91,100
6,100
85,000
13,000

72,000

(11,000)
3,800

(7,200)

64,800



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Balance Sheet
4 31 December 2021

2021 2020
. Notes £000 . . £000 £000 . . £000
FIXED ASSETS '

- Intangible assets . co - 10 - + +28,700 Co -+ 2,500
Tangible assets 11. 305,800 297,000
Investments 12 ) 5,100 ~ . 5,100

339,600 304,600

CURRENT ASSETS .
Stocks : 13 24,000 11,800
Debtors 14 141,000 124,600
Cash at bank - 2,500

165,000 138,900
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due within one year 15 95,200 80,900
NET CURRENT ASSETS 69,800 58,000
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 409,400 362,600
CREDITORS
Amounts falling due after more than one
year 16 (135,400) (134,900)
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 20 (20,800) (9,000)
PENSION LIABILITY 22 (30,400) (68,200)
NET ASSETS 222,800 150,500
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital 21 30,100 30,100
Revaluation reserve 100 100
Retained earnings 192,600 120,300
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 222,800 150,500

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 30 August 2022 and were
signed on its behalf by:

Ou<d/

J Woodf£ Director

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered. number: 00303703)

- Statement.of Changés in Equity -
forv the Year Ended 31 December 2021

Balance at 1 January 2020

Changes in equity
Dividends
Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2020
Changes in equity
Dividends

Total comprehensive income

Balance at 31 December 2021

Called up
share Retained Revaluation Total
capital earnings reserve equity
£'000° - £000 £000 £'000
30,100 75,500 100 105,700
- (20,000) - (20,000)
- 64,800 - 64,800
30,100 120,300 100 150,500
- (10,000) - (10,000)
- 82,300 - 82,300
30,100 192,600 100 222,800

The notes form part of these financial statements
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number:-00303703) - -

Notes to the Financial Stateinerits - L e e
~ for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

1.

STATUTORY INFORMATION

Calor Gas lelted is a private company, llmlted by shares, registered in England and Wales. The companys

 registered number and registered office address can be found on the Company Information page.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basns of preparmg the financial statements
The Company is part of the worldwide SHV Group and the principal activities continue to be the processing,
marketing and distribution of liquefied petroleum gases (LPG) in the United Kingdom. '

Calor Gas Limited (the "Company") is a company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in the UK.
The financial statements contain information about Calor Gas Limited as an individual company and do not
contain consolidated financial information as the parent of a group. The Company is exempt under section 400 of
the Companies Act 2006 from the requirement to prepare consolidated financial statements as it and its
subsidiary undertakings are included by full consolidation in the consolidated financial statements of its parent,
SHYV Holdings N.V., a company incorporated in The Netherlands.

These financial statements were prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland ("FRS 102") and the Companies Act 2006. The
presentation currency of these financial statements is sterling. All amounts in the financial statements have been
rounded to the nearest £100,000.

Page 17 , continued...



Calor Gas.Limited (Registered number: 00303703) .

thes to the F inancial.Statemenis -continued

for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - contiinued

Financial Reporting Standard 102 - reduced disclosure exemptions :

The company's ultimate parent undertaking, SHV' Holdings N.V.," includes the company in its consolidated-
financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of SHV Holdings N.V. are prepared in accordance

with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU, in combination with Dutch accounting
standards, and are available to the public and may be obtained from Company Secretary, SHV Holdings N.V.,

Reawaked 1, 3511 LC, Utrecht, The Netherlands. In these financial statements, the company is considered to be

a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this FRS) and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in

respect of the following disclosures:

- Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the period;
- Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and
- Key Management Personnel compensation.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

Judgements and Estimates

Judgements made by the directors, in the application of these accounting policies that have significant effect on
the financial statements and estimates with significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed
in note 28.

Measurement convention

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cost basis except that the following assets and liabilities
are stated at their fair value: derivative financial instruments, financial instruments classified at fair value through
the profit or loss, freehold and leasehold properties measured in accordance with the revaluation model and
investments in associates and joint ventures measured at fair value.

Going concern

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis. The directors believe that the going
concern basis for the preparation of these accounts is appropriate as they have prepared detailed financial
forecasts, taking into account reasonable, possible downside scenarios and with due consideration for the impact
of the Covid-19 pandemic, inflationary risk and the war in Ukraine. The directors have given specific
consideration for the continued forecast capital investments in the business. There is adequate cashflow to pay
for these investments considering the flexibility around timings of cashflows if required. These forecasts show
that the company has sufficient financial resources so as to enable it to continue to operate for at least twelve
months following the signing date of these financial statements. As such, the directors consider it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing these financial statements.

Page 18 continued...



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703). ~ -

Noteé to the.Financial Statements --confinued .

for the Year Ended 3 lADecember 2021

2.

ACCOUNT[NG POLICIES - continued

Turnover

The company's business comprises predominantly of the sale and distribution of liquefied petroleum gas - and
related activities within the United Kingdom. Turnover represents goods and services supplied to third parties,
excluding value added tax and sales taxes for the year. Revenue is recognised when substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership have passed to the customer. Deferred cylinder income is credited to revenue over fifteen
years. Tank hire income is recognised on a monthly basis when the service of using the tank has been undertaken

by the customer.

Goodwill

Goodwill is stated at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
allocated to cash-generating units or group of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the business combination from which it arose.

Goodwill is amortised on a straight line basis over its useful life. Goodwill has no residual value. The finite
useful life of goodwill is estimated to be 10 years.

The company reviews the amortisation period and method when events and circumstances indicate that the useful
life may have changed since the last reporting date. '

Goodwill and other intangible assets are tested for impairment in accordance with Section 27 Impairment of
assets when there is an indication that goodwill or an intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets
After initial recognition, intangible assets are measured at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any

accumulated impairment losses.

The company reviews the amortisation period and method when events and circumstances indicate that the useful
life may have changed since the last reporting date.

Customer lists
Customer lists are amortised on a straight line basis over their useful life. Customer lists have no residual value.

The finite useful life of a customer list is estimated to be 10 years.

Software .
Amortisation is charged to the profit and loss on a straight line basis over the estimated useful life of each item of

software. The estimated useful life of software is between 2 and 10 years.

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

Where parts of an item of tangible fixed assets have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items of tangible fixed assets, for example land is treated separately from buildings.

Leases in which the company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the leased asset are
classified as finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases. Leased assets acquired by way of
finance lease are stated on initial recognition at an amount equal to the lower of their fair value and the present
value of the minimum lease payments at inception of the lease, including any incremental costs directly
attributable to negotiating and arranging the lease. At initial recognition a finance lease liability is recognised
equal to the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
present value of the minimum lease payments is calculated using the interest rate implicit in the lease.Lease
payments are accounted for as described within the' Expenses’ accounting policy below.
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. Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

-4.~Notes to the Financial Statements - continuéd -

for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2.

ACCOUNTING i’OLIClES - continued

Tangible fixed assets - continued
The company assesses at' each reporting date whether tangible fixed assets (including those leased under a
finance lease) are impaired.

Depreciation is charged to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of
each part of an item of tangible fixed assets. Leased assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives. Land is not depreciated. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Freehold property 50 years
Long lease property 50 years
Short lease property 25 years
Plant, machinery and vehicles 4 - 50 years
Cylinders and tanks 7 - 20 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed if there is an indication of a significant
change since last annual reporting date in the pattern by which the company expects to consume an asset's future
economic benefits.

Investments in subsidiaries
These are separate financial statements of the company. Investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
and associates are carried at cost less impairment.

Stocks

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and estimated selling price less costs to complete and sell. Cost is based on
the weighted average principle and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the stocks, production or
conversion costs and other costs in bringing them to their existing location and condition.

Basic financial instruments

Trade and other debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment losses. If the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred
beyond normal business terms, then it is measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market
rate of instrument for a similar debt instrument.

Trade and other creditors

Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction
costs.Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. If
the arrangement constitutes a financing transaction, for example if payment is deferred beyond normal business
terms, then it is measured at the present value of future payments discounted at a market rate of instrument for a
similar debt instrument.

Interest-bearing borrowings classified as basic financial instruments

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses.

Other financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The company enters into forward contracts to limit the company’s exposure to fluctuations in gas price volatility

or to enable fixed price back to back deals for significant customers. Derivative instruments are used exclusively
for hedging purposes.
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" Calor Gas Limited (Registered h'umber: 00303703)

" Notes to the Financial Statements - continued -

for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Taxation . . .

Tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the profit and loss
account except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly-in equity or other comprehensive income,
in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates.
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax )

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements. The
following timing differences are not provided for: differences between accumulated depreciation and tax
allowances for the cost of a fixed asset if and when all conditions for retaining the tax allowances have been met;
and differences relating to investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures to the extent that it is not probable that

they will reverse in the foreseeable future and the reporting entity is able to control the reversal of the timing

difference. Deferred tax is not recognised on permanent differences arising because certain types of income or
expense are non-taxable or are disallowable for tax or because certain tax charges or allowances are greater or
smaller than the corresponding income or expense.

Deferred tax is provided in respect of the additional tax that will be paid or avoided on differences between the
amount at which an asset (other than goodwill) or liability is recognised in a business combination and the
corresponding amount that can be deducted or assessed for tax. Goodwill is adjusted by the amount of such
deferred tax. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related
difference, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable that they
will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to the Company's functional currency at the foreign exchange
rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the
balance sheet date are retranslated to the functional currency at the foreign exchange rate ruling at that date.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value are retranslated to the functional currency at foreign exchange
rates ruling at the dates the fair value was determined. Foreign exchange differences arising on translation are
recognised in the profit and loss account.

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit plan s

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. Defined benefit
plans typically define an amount of pension benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependant on one or more factors such as age, years of service and compensation.

Page 21 . continued...



Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the FinancialA Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

Defined benefit plans - continued o .

Changes in the net defined benefit liability arising from employee service rendered during the period, net interest
on net defined benefit liability, and the cost of plan introductions, benefit changes, curtailments and settlements
during the period are recognised in profit or loss.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit plans is the present value of the defined
benefit obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets, together with adjustments for
unrecognised past-service costs. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries
using the projected unit credit method. The present value of defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high quality corporate bonds that are
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to
the terms of the related pension liability.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset is recognised in other comprehensive income.

Group Plans

The company's employees are members of a group wide defined benefit pension plan. The net defined benefit
cost of the plan is charged to participating entities based on the entities share of the scheme assets and liabilities.
The contributions payable by the participating entities are determined using the same basis.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed, without
realistic possibility of withdrawal, to a formal detailed plan to either terminate employment before the normal
retirement date, or to provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary
redundancy. Termination benefits for voluntary redundancies are recognised as an expense if the company has
made an offer of voluntary redundancy, it is probably that the offer will be accepted, and the number of
acceptances can be estimated reliably. If benefits are payable more than 12 months after the reporting date, then
they are discounted to their present value.

Defined contribution plans and other long term employee benefits

For defined contribution plans, the company pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The company has no further payment obligations
once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they
are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the
future payments is available.

Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase method as at the acquisition date, which is the date
on which control is transferred to the company.

At the acquisition date, the company recognises goodwill at the acquisition date as:
- the fair value of the consideration (excluding contingent consideration) transferred; plus
- estimated amount of contingent consideration (see below); plus
- the fair value of the equity instruments issued; plus
- directly attributable transaction costs; less
- the net recognised amount (generally fair value) of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and
contingent liabilities assumed.

Consideration which is contingent on future events is recognised based on the estimated amount if the contingent

consideration is probable and can be measured reliably. Any subsequent changes to the amount are treated as an
adjustment to the cost of the acquisition.
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number:. 00303703)

. Notes to the Financial Statemients - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Business combinations - continued

FRS 102.35 grants certain exemptions from the full requirements of FRS 102 in the transition period. The -
company elected not to restate business combinations that took place prior to 29 December 2013. In respect of
acquisitions prior to 29 December 2013, goodwill is included on the basis of its deemed cost, which represents
the amount recorded under old UK GAAP. Intangible assets previously included in goodwill, are not recognised
separately.

Impairment excluding stocks, and deferred tax assets

Financial assets (including trade and other debtors)

A financial asset not carried at fair value through profit or loss is assessed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is objective evidence that it is impaired. A financial asset is impaired if objective evidence
indicates that a loss event has occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, and that the loss event had a
negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortised cost is calculated as the difference
between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's
original effective interest rate. For financial instruments measured at cost less impairment, an impairment is
calculated as the difference between its carrying amount and the best estimate of the amount that the Company
would receive for the asset if it were to be sold at the reporting date. Interest on the impaired asset continues to
be recognised through the unwinding of the discount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. When a
subsequent event causes the amount of impairment loss to decrease, the decrease in impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company's non-financial assets, other than stocks and deferred tax assets, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such
indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. The recoverable amount of an asset or
cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of
impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
groups of assets (the "cash-generating unit”). The goodwill acquired in a business combination, for the purpose
of impairment testing is allocated to cash-generating units, or ("CGU") that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. For the purpose of goodwill impairment testing, if goodwill cannot be allocated to
individual CGUs or groups of CGUs, the company tests the impairment of goodwill by determining the
recoverable amount of the entity in its entirety, including the integrated acquired operations.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect of CGUs are
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the units, and then to reduce the
carrying amounts of the other assets in the unit (group of units) on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss is reversed if and only if the reasons for the impairment have ceased to apply.
Impairment losses recognised in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the loss
has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying

amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been recognised.
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Calor Gas.Limited (Registered number: 060303703)

Nofes to the Financial Statements - continued- EEN S - S -
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Provisions

A provision is recognised in the balance sheet when the company has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of a past event, that can be reliably measured and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are recognised at the best estimate of the amount required to settle
the obligation at the reporting date. . -

Where the company enters into financial guarantee contracts to guarantee the indebtedness of other companies
within its group, the company treats the guarantee contract as a contingent liability until such time as it becomes
probable that the company will be required to make a payment under the guarantee.

Expenses

Operating lease

Payments (excluding costs for services and insurance) made under operating leases are recognised in the profit
and loss account on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless the payments to the lessor are structured
to increase in line with expected general inflation; in which case the payments related to the structured increases
are recognised as incurred. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit and loss over the term of the lease
as an integral part of the total lease expense.

Finance lease

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the outstanding
liability using the rate implicit in the lease. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term
so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Contingent rents are
charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Interest receivable and Interest payable

Interest payable and similar charges include interest payable, finance charges on finance leases recognised in
profit or loss using the effective interest method, unwinding of the discount on provisions, and net foreign
exchange losses that are recognised in the profit and loss account (see foreign currency accounting policy).

Other interest receivable and similar income include interest receivable on funds invested and net foreign
exchange gains.

Interest income and interest payable are recognised in profit or loss as they accrue, using the effective interest

method. Dividend income is recognised in the profit and loss account on the date the company's right to receive
payments is established. Foreign currency gains and losses are reported on a net basis.
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.. Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703) - -

Notes té the Financial Statements - contiﬁued .
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

3.

EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

The average number of employees during the year was as follows:

2021 - 2020
Production . ) ) 201 204
- Selling and distribution 1,185 1,124
Administration and management 161 172
1,547 1,500
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Wages and salaries 62,700 52,400
Social security costs 6,100 5,600
Contributions to defined contribution plans 3,400 3,100
Other pension costs (note 22) 1,400 1,500
73,600 62,600
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
2021 2020
: £000 £000
Directors' remuneration (excluding pension contributions) 1,500 1,400
Highest paid director
Aggregate remuneration (excluding pension contributions) 400 400

There are no longer any director members of the Calor Group Retirement Benefits Plan, a defined benefit
scheme (2020: nil). The total pension contributions paid on behalf of the directors was £87k (2020: £83k), all of
which was paid to the defined contribution scheme (2020: £83k). The total pension contributions paid on behalf
of the highest paid director was £4k (2020:£6k).

Calor Gas Limited bore the total costs of the remuneration and made contributions to a defined contribution
pension scheme for M Hickin, J Wood, S MacDonald, P Instrell and N Fortune (2020: six directors).
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.Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to thé Fihancial Statements - continued. .
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

5.

_ OPERATING PROFIT

* The operating profit is stated after charging / (crediting):

Profit on sale of fixed assets
Amortisation of goodwill and other intangible assets
Impairment loss on fixed asset investments
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets:

Owned assets

Leased assets
Rent received less outgoings on land and buildings
Operating lease charges:

Plant and machinery

Other

2021
£000
(2,200)
1,600

34,600
400
400

1,300
9,000

2020
£000
(1,600)
900
10,400

32,100
1,500
500

800
6,800

Included within hire costs for plant and machinery and other assets are short term rentals for which there are no

corresponding future commitments.

Auditor's remuneration:

Audit of these financial statements

Amounts receivable by the company's auditor and its associates in

respect of:
Other assurance services

Other assurance services for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to £nil (2020: £4,711).

INCOME FROM SHARES IN GROUP UNDERTAKINGS

Shares in group undertakings
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2021 2020
£'000 £000
171 165
2021 2020
£'000 £'000
2,300 22,400
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"Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

- Notes to'the Finanéial ‘Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

7. INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR EXPENSES

2021 2020
. £000 £'000
Other financial charges © - co . i Co . ‘900 1,400
Interest payable and
similar charges o 2,900 ~ 4,700
3,800 6,100
Interest payable and similar charges comprise:
2021 2020
£000 £'000
On secured loan from a subsidiary undertaking 1,900 3,100
Payable to a subsidiary undertaking - 300
Payable to the immediate parent company 1,000 1,300
2,900 4,700

Other financial charges amounting to £0.9 million (2020: £1.4 million) relates to pension interest charges under
Financial Reporting Standard 102 (note 22).

8. TAXATION

Analysis of the tax charge
The tax charge on the profit for the year was as follows:

2021 2020

£'000 £000
Current tax:
UK corporation tax T 4,300 7,100
Adjustments in respect of
prior periods (200) (1,500)
Total current tax 4,100 5,600
Deferred tax:
Deferred tax in respect of
current year 10,500 6,100
Deferred tax in respect of
prior year (200) 1,300
Total deferred tax 10,300 7,400
Tax on profit 14,400 13,000
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Calor Gas Limited (Registered number: 00303703)

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued. -

for the Year Ended 31 December 2021

8.

TAXATION - continued

Reconciliation of total tax charge included in profit and loss

- The tax assessed for the year is higher than the standard rate of corporation

explained below:

tax in the UK. The difference is

2021 2020
£'000 £000
Profit before tax 71,800 85,000
Profit multiplied by the standard rate of corporation tax in the UK of 19%
(2020 - 19%) 13,642 16,150
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 600 2,100
Income not taxable for tax purposes (1,600) (4,400)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of previous periods (400) (200)
Difference in tax rate on deferred tax balances 2,200 600
Utilisation of unregognised capital losses - (1,300)
Other tax differences (42) 50
Total tax charge 14,400 13,000
Tax effects relating to effects of other comprehensive income
2021
Gross Tax Net
£000 £000 £000
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability 29,000 (4,100) 24,900
29,000 (4,100) 24,900
2020
Gross Tax Net
£000 £000 £000
Remeasurement of the net defined benefit
liability (11,000) 3,800 (7,200)
(11,000) 3,800 (7,200)

The deferred tax charge for both 2021 and 2020 relates to the origination and reversal of timing differences.

The corporation tax payable for the year by the company has been reduced by £0.3 million (2020: £0.5 million)
because of the group relief surrendered by fellow group undertakings SHV Energy Holdings UK Limited for
which payment will be made during 2022.

An increase in the UK corporation tax rate from 19% to 25% (with effect from 1 April 2023) was substantively
enacted on 24 May 2021. This will increase the future current tax charge.

Deferred Tax has been provided at a hybrid rate of 21.45% (2020:19%) taking into account the timing of the
expected reversal of the deferred tax timing differences.
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9.  DIVIDENDS

2021 2020
£000 £'000
Ordinary shares of £1 each -
Final - 20,000
Interim _ . ‘ ) 10,000 -
10,000 20,000
10. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Customer Computer
Goodwili lists software Totals
£000 £000 £000 £000
COST
At 1 January 2021 ’ 5,100 3,200 - 8,300
Additions - - 15,800 15,800
Disposals (900) - - (900)
Reclassification/transfer - - 12,100 12,100
At 31 December 2021 4,200 3,200 27,900 35,300
AMORTISATION
At 1 January 2021 4,300 1,500 - 5,800
Amortisation for year 500 300 800 1,600
Eliminated on disposal (900) - - (900)
Reclassification/transfer - - 100 100
At 31 December 2021 3,900 1,800 900 6,600
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2021 300 1,400 27,000 28,700
At 31 December 2020 800 1,700 2,500

£0.9 million (2020: £2.3 million) of the total goodwill cost relates to acquisitions that have now been fully
amortised, it has therefore been written off and shown as a disposal.
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11.  TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

COST

At 1 January 2021
Additions

Disposals
Reclassification/transfer

At 31 December 2021

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2021
Charge for year
Eliminated on disposal
Reclassification/transfer

At 31 December 2021

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

COST

At 1 January 2021
Additions

Disposals
Reclassification/transfer

At 31 December 2021

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2021
Charge for year
Eliminated on disposal
Reclassification/transfer

At 31 December 2021

NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

Page 30

Freehold . Short
property leasehold
£000 £'000 .
51,700 3,900
3,700 -
(100) (500)
55,300 3,400
8,200 2,500
400 200
- (400)
8,600 2,300
46,700 1,100
43,500 1,400
Plant,
machinery
and Cylinders
vehicles and tanks
£000 £000
217,800 528,400
15,700 37,200
(13,500) (75,200)
(12,100) -
207,900 490,400
134,000 363,600
14,800 19,400
(13,700) (74,500)
(100) -
135,000 308,500
72,900 181,900

83,800

164,800

Long
leasehold
£'000
11,900

(100)
11,800

8,400
200

8,600

3,200

3,500

Totals
£000

813,700
56,600
(89,400)
(12,100)
768,800
516,700
35,000
(88,600)
(100)

463,000

305,800

297,000
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11.

12.

- TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS - continued

Plant, machinery and vehicles includes £8.1 million (2020: £22.3 million) net book value of fixtures, fittings and
equipment. - . co o co :

The net book value of tangible fixed assets includes an amount of £43.3 million (2020: £41.3 million) in respect
of assets held under finance leases. This comprises freehold property £32.4 million (2020: £32.5 million), plant,
machinery and vehicles £4.7 million (2020: £1.8 million) and tanks £6.2 million (2020: £7.0 million).

The cost of freehold property and plant and machinery include £0.1 million (2020: £0.1 million) and £4.3 million
(2020: £4.3 million) of capitalised interest respectively. Freehold and leasehold properties were revalued on 31
December 1986 on the basis of depreciated replacement cost by Fuller Peiser.

Freehold property includes land at cost of £31.9 million (2020: £31.9 million) which is not depreciated. Fully
depreciated fixed assets which originally cost £265.2 million (2020: £326.1 million) comprises plant, machinery
and vehicles £68.9 million (2020: £71.3 million), cylinders and tanks £186.8 million (2020: £245.3 million) and
£9.5m (2020: £9.5m) of freehold and leasehold property.

Under the historical cost convention the above amounts in respect of properties would be as follows:

Long
Freehold lease Short lease
property property property
£'000 £'000 £'000
Cost 55,200 11,800 3,400
Accumulated depreciation (8,600) (8,500) (2,300)
Net book value at 31 December 2021 46,600 3,300 1,100
Net book value at 31 December 2020 43,500 3,500 1,400
FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Shares in
group Other
undertakings  investments Totals
£000 £000 £'000
COST
At 1 January 2021
and 31 December 2021 22,700 500 23,200
PROVISIONS
At 1 January 2021
and 31 December 2021 17,600 500 18,100
NET BOOK VALUE
At 31 December 2021 5,100 - 5,100
At 31 December 2020 5,100 - 5,100

In the opinion of the directors, the value of the company's investments in its subsidiary

undertakings is not less than the amount at which they are included in the balance sheet.

and joint venture

The directors believe that the carrying value of the investments is supported by their underlying net assets.

The company has the following investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and partnerships
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12. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS - continued

UK undertakings Registered Principal Classof  Ownership Ownership
. (unlisted) - © - office. * activity - - shares 2021 % 2020 %
address held
Budget Gas Ltd Note 1 - Dormant Ordinary 100 100
Homeheat Gas Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 100 100
Company Ltd
Chive Ltd Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 100 100
Chive Fuels Ltd Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 100 100
Discount Gas Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 100 100
Supplies Ltd
Liquefied Petroleum Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 100 100
National Gas Ltd
Calor Properties Ltd Note 1 Non-trading Ordinary 100 100
Calor Properties Note 2 Non-trading Ordinary 100 100
Scotland Ltd
Joint ventures and partnerships
Hummer LPG Note 3 Dormant Ordinary 50 50
Terminal Ltd
Autogas Ltd Note 1 In liquidation Ordinary 50 50
Calor Partner Note 2 Leasing Ordinary 33 33
Properties LP partnership

Registered office addresses:

Note 1: Athena House, Athena Drive, Tachbrook Park, Warwick, Warwickshire, CV34 6RL
Note 2: c/o Brodies LLP, Capital Square, 58 Morrison Street, Edinburgh, EH3 8BP

Note 3: 7th Floor, 200-202 Aldersgate Street, London, EC1A 4HD

All entities are incorporated in England and Wales except for Calor Properties Scotland Ltd & Calor Partner
Properties LP which are incorporated in Scotland.

Budget Gas Limited ceased to trade on 30 June 2021. It is anticipated that this company will be put into
members' voluntary liquidation before 31 December 2022.

This has been disclosed as a Post balance sheet event in Note 27.

13. STOCKS
2021 2020
£000 £'000
Raw materials and consumables 5,700 3,300
Finished goods and goods for
resale 18,300 8,500
24,000 11,800

Raw materials, consumables and changes in finished goods and goods for resale recognised as cost of sales in the
year amounted to £233.2m (2020: £147.9m).
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14 DEBTORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2021 2020

: £000 £'000
Trade debtors . - : A - . 66,500 :58,500
Amounts owed by group undertakings 100 400
Amounts owed by parent company ) - 15,500 18,100
Amounts-owed by subsidiary undertakings - 1,000
Other debtors 2,300 3,800
Tax 600 200
Other financial assets 30,900 26,000
Prepayments and accrued income 25,100 16,600

141,000 124,600

The amounts owed by group undertakings, subsidiary undertakings and joint ventures (trading) are unsecured,
are repayable on demand and are non interest bearing.

15. . CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2021 2020
£000 £000
Bank loans and overdrafis (see note 17) 4,900 -
Finance leases (see note 18) 900 -
Other financial liabilities 1,300 2,500
Trade creditors 53,700 48,400
Amounts owed to group undertakings 3,700 8,300
Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings 6,900 1,500
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking 3,500 3,300
Social security and other taxes 2,700 2,300
Other creditors 9,200 3,400
Accruals and deferred income 8,400 11,200
95,200 80,900

Accruals and deferred income inctudes Deferred cylinder income of £3.8m (2020: £3.7m).
Amounts owed to group undertakings are unsecured, are repayable on demand and are non interest bearing.

16. CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE

YEAR
2021 2020
£000 £000
Finance leases (see note 18) 3,900 1,400
Amounts owed to immediate parent company 69,100 68,100
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking 42,100 45,600
Accruals and deferred income 20,300 19,800

135,400 134,900
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16.

17.

18.

CRED]TORSé AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR - continued

Accruals and deferred income includes Deferred cylinder income of £20.3m (2020: £19.8m).

Amounts owed to .the immediate parent company.are unsecured, carry no fixed date of repayment and the
company has obtained confirmation that payment will not be called for on or before 31 December 2022.
Amounts owed to the immediate parent company. bear an interest charge of Lloyds Bank base rate plus 1.5% per -

- annum (2020: Lloyds Bank base rate plus 1.5% per annum).

In 2012, the Company entered into a twenty year financing arrangement with Calor Properties Limited,
subsidiary undertaking, receiving £75.3 million which is secured on certain of the Company's assets. Interest
charged at 6% per annum (2020: 6% per annum). The company is required to pay £6.2m annually up until 2031.

LOANS

An analysis of the maturity of loans is given below:

Amounts falling due within one year or on demand:

Bank overdrafts

LEASING AGREEMENTS

Minimum lease payments fall due as follows:

Net obligations repayable:
Within one year
Between one and five years

Within one year
Between one and five years
In more than five years

2021
£000

4,900

2020
£000

Finance leases

2021
£000

900
3,900

4,800

2020
£000

1,400

1,400

Non-cancellable operating

2021
£'000
3,700

10,900

25,100

39,700

leases
2020
£000
3,700
10,700
27,200

41,600

These include operating lease rentals in respect of Land and buildings of £2.4m due within one year (2020:
£2.7m), £8.6m due between one and five years (2020: £9.4m) and £25.1m due in more than five years (2020:

£27.2m).
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19. INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND EORROWINGS

This note prov1des information about the contractual terms of the companys mterest-beanng loans and
borrowings, which are measured at amortised cost. .

The future payments to which the company is committed under secured loans are by instalment and are as

follows:
2021 2020
£000 £000
Creditors falling due in more than one year
Amounts due to immediate parent company 69,100 68,100
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking 42,100 45,600
111,200 113,700
Creditors falling due within one year
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking 3,500 3,300
114,700 117,000
Loans
Nominal 2021 2020
Interest rate £000 £000
Amount due to immediate parent company Note 1 69,100 68,100
Loan due to subsidiary undertaking . Note 2 45,600 48,900

114,700 . 117,000

Note 1 - Lloyds bank rate + 1.55%
Note 2 - 6.02%
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20. PROV]SIONS FOR LIABILITIES

Deferred tax
Other provisions

Balance at 1 January 2021
Charge to the profit and loss account during year
Utilised during year

Balance at 31 December 2021

2021

2020
£000 £000
16,000 8,600
4,800 400
20,800 9,000
Deferred Other
tax provisions
£000 £000
8,600 400
7,400 5,800
- 1,400
16,000 4,800

Other provisions relate to restructuring and redundancy costs of £2.3 million (2020: £nil), trade-related claims of
£1.1 million (2020:£nil) and smaller provisions totalling £1.4 million (2020: £0.4 million). These provisions are

estimated to be utilised before 31 December 2022.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Assets Liabilities Net

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

£000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Accelerated capital allowances - - 10,900 5,200 10,900 5,200
Fair value adjustments on

derivatives - - 6,100 4,500 4,500

Pension contribution spread - (500) - - (500)
Other (1,000) (600) - - (1,000) (600)
Tax (assets) / liabilities (1,000) (1,100) 17,000 9,700 16,000 8,600
Net of tax liabilities / (assets) (1,000) (1,100) 17,000 9,700 16,000 8,600

The company expects the deferred tax asset of £6.1m for fair value adjustments on derivatives at 31 December

2021 to fully reverse in 2022.

21. CALLED UP SHARE CAPITAL
Allotted, issued and fully paid:
Number: Class:

30,070,456 Ordinary
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Nominal
value:

2021
£000
30,100

2020
£000
30,100
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“‘Notes to tHe Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31 Decgmber 2021

22, EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

- The Company operates a-funded defined benefit scheme: for- Calor employees, the Calor Group Retirement
Benefits Plan (the "Plan"), the assets of which are held in separate, Trustee administered funds.

On 12 April 2001, the scheme was closed to new entrants. A defined contribution pension scheme was set up by
the Company from 01 February 2001.

The last formal actuarial valuations of the Plans were performed by Barnett Waddingham, a firm of independent
actuaries, as at 05 April 2020 and updated to 31 December 2021.

On 26 October 2018, The Lloyds Banking Group Pensions Trustees Limited v Lloyds Bank PLC (and others)
court judgement provided some clarity in respect of GMP equalisation and, in particular, the obligations that this
places on schemes. As set out in Debra Logan's report on GMP equalisation dated 19 December 2018, an
allowance of 0.1% of liabilities was made for GMP equalisation. This has resulted in an increase to the defined
benefit obligation of £0.5 million.

Principal actuarial assumptions used to calculate the Plan's liabilities at the year end were as follows:

2021 2020
Salary increases Nil Nil
Rate of increase in post '97 pensions 3.4% 32%
Rate of increase in post '01 pensions 3.3% 2.9%
Rate of increase in post '06 pensions 2.4% 23%
Discount rate 1.8% 1.2%
Inflation assumption (Retail Price Index) 34% 2.9%
Inflation assumption (Customer Price Index) 3.0% 2.4%

The assumptions relating to longevity underlying the pension liabilities at the balance sheet date are based on
standard actuarial mortality tables and include an allowance for future improvements in longevity. The
assumptions are equivalent to expecting a 60-year old to live for a number of years.
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The mortality assumptions used were as follows:

. 2021 . 2020
Life expectancy at age 60
Male currently aged 45 C . Pension less than £20,000 pa 259 - - 259
Pension greater than £20,000 pa 28.0 28.0
Female currently aged 45 Pension less than £8,000 pa 27.2 27.1
Pension greater than £8,000 pa 295 294
Male currently aged 60 Pension less than £20,000 pa 24.8 24.8
Pension greater than £20,000 pa 27.0 27.0
Female currently aged 60 Pension less than £8,000 pa 26.0 259
Pension greater than £8,000 pa 284 283
The major categories of assets as a percentage of total assets are as follows:
Asset category 2021 2020
Growth assets (including equities, synthetic equity, diversified
growth, multi-strategy and oriented funds) 87% 31%
Bonds and liability hedging - 27%
Cash 2% 30%
Asset backed contribution 11% 12%
100% 100%
Explanation of amounts in the financial statements
2021 2020
£'000 £000
Fair value of assets 468,300 470,800
Present value of funded obligations (507,700) (555,000)
Deficit (39,400) (84,200)
Deferred tax asset 9,000 16,000
Net defined benefit liability after deferred tax (30,400) (68,200)
Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income over the year
2021 2020
£000 £000
Current service cost 1,400 1,400
Administration costs 400 300
Interest on liabilities 6,500 9,700
Interest on assets (5,600) (8,300)
Total 2,700 3,100
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Remeasurements over the year

Gain on Plan assets in excess of interest
Experience gains on defined benefit obligation
Gains from changes to demographic assumptions
Losses from changes to financial assumptions

Total remeasurements
The change in assets over the year was:

Fair value of assets at the beginning of the year
Interest on assets

Company contributions

Benefits paid

Administration costs

Return on Plan assets less interest

Fair value of assets at the end of the year

The change in the Defined Benefit Obligation over the year was:

Defined Benefit Obligation at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest on liabilities

Benefits paid

Experience loss on defined benefit obligation

Changes to demographic assumptions

Changes to financial assumptions

Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year

23. ULTIMATE PARENT COMPANY

2021 2020
£000 £000
500 (47,100)
- 10,300
3,000 (8,600)
(32,500) 56,400
(29,000) 11,000
2021 2020
£000 £000
470,800 428,700
5,600 8,300
18,500 14,000
(25,700)  (27,000)
(400) (300)
(500) 47,100
468300 470,800
2021 2020
£000 £000
555,000 512,800
1,400 1,400
6,500 9,700
(25,700)  (27,000)
- 10,300
3,000 (8,600)
(32,500) 56,400
507,700 555,000

The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party is SHV Holdings N.V., a private company incorporated in

The Netherlands, which is the smallest and largest group to prepare consolidated financial

incorporating the results of Calor Gas Limited. Copies of the consolidated financial statements for SHV
Holdings N.V. may be obtained from the Company Secretary, SHV Holdings N.V., Rijnkade 1, 3511 LC,

Utrecht, The Netherlands.

The immediate parent company of Calor Gas Limited is Calor Group Limited.

24. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Company has guaranteed the borrowings from certain subsidiary undertakings to third parties. There were

no amounts outstanding at 31 December 2021 (2020: £nil).
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25.

26.

27.

28.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

2021 2020
£000 £000

Contracted but not provided for in the : :
financial statements 15,401 1,729

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Calor Gas Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Calor Group Limited and ultimately SHV Holdings N.V. The
results of Calor Gas Limited are included in the consolidated financial statements of SHV Holdings N.V. the
smallest and largest company in the group to prepare consolidated financial statements. Consequently, the
Company is exempt under the terms of FRS 102 from disclosing details of transactions with SHV Holdings N.V.
or other wholly owned entities that were members of the SHV Holding N.V. group.

The company operates a funded defined benefit scheme for Calor employees, the Calor Group Retirement
Benefits Plan (the "Plan"), the assets of which are held in separate, Trustee administered funds. Please refer to
Note 22 for details of this.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

At the time of signing, the directors expect Budget Gas Limited to be put into members' voluntary liquidation
before 31 December 2022,

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of the financial statements requires the Directors to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based 6n historical experience and various other factors

that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in any future periods impacted.

The key judgements and estimates employed in the financial statements are considered below.
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Allowances against the carrying amount of inventories
The Company provides against the carrying amount of inventories for inventory lines based on expected demand
for its products to ensure that inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net reahsable value. Judgement is

required in respect of*assessing future demand.

Impairment of goodwill and customer lists

On an annual basis, -.the Company is required to perform an impairment review to assess whether the carrying
value of goodwill and customer lists are less than its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is based on a
calculation of expected future cash flows, which include estimates of future performance.

Provisions
Provisions are made using the best estimates of future cash flows based on the current level of information

available. Actual cash flows will be dependent on future events.

Depreciation and amortisation
Judgement is required in assessing the useful economic lives of tangible fixed assets and intangible assets. These
assumptions are based on the best estimate of the life of the asset and its residual value at the end of its economic

life.

Deferred taxation
The Company recognises deferred tax assets and liabilities based upon future taxable income and the expected

recoverability of the balance. The estimate will include assumptions regarding future income streams of the
Company and the future movement in corporation tax rates in the respective jurisdictions.

Retirement benefits

In determining the valuation of defined benefit pension scheme assets and liabilities, a number of key
assumptions, which are largely dependent on factors outside the control of the company, have been made in
relation to:

- Expected return on plan assets

- Inflation rate

- Mortality

- Discount rate

- Salary and pensions increases.

Details of the assumptions used are included in note 22.

Deferred cylinder income
Income relating to the deposits for cylinders is released in line with our customer contracts.
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Our purpose

Courage to care for generations to come

We are tens of thousands talented individuals from all around the world. We are a family of
companies active in various industries operating across continents. Our purpose with five
accompanying values is the glue that connects us. A defined purpose makes the difference-
between knowing.how we should go about our work and understanding why we are all proud to
do so. A long-term vision supported by our shareholders.

Fromthe day we began in 1896, our story has always been about people. Together, we forge our
own path rather than follow short-term trends. We see change as an opportunity, not a threat.
And we dare to seek new horizons, because they lead to real progress.

Our story is about people with the confidence to believe in themselves and trust in each other.
We are driven by a bold entrepreneurial spirit to show curiosity. Think creatively: And shape-
the future rather than simply adapting to it. We are passionate about making exceptional
things happen.

Our story is about people with a genuine determination to lead the way. We are inclusive, see
the best in each other, and work with integrity. Never afraid to make tough choices, we stay true
to our principles.

Above all, our story is about people with the courage to care for what we do. How we do it.
And the impact this has on others, on performance, and on the planet. Always iooking ahead.
Always moving forwards.

Our story will always be written by people with the courage to care about a better world for
today. And a better tomorrow for generations to come.

SHVin 2021
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Our purpose

Supervisory Board of Directors

Mrs A.M. Fentener van Vlissingen, Chairman
R.W.J. Groenink, Deputy Chairman
P.J. Kennedy, Deputy Chairman
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Company Secretary
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Finance
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A family of companies

SHV is a privately held family company with a strong positionin a
number of operational areas and selected investment activities.

© SHV ENERGY

Energy distribution

SHV Energy provides low-carbon and clean
energy solutions to business and residential
customers in over 23 countries across four
continents. It is a leading global distributor
of off-grid energy including LPG, small-scale
LNG and biofuels.

Food cash-and-carry

Makro is a modern food cash-and-carry
targeting professional food customers as
well as end-consumers. Makro is present in
Argentina, Brazil, Colombia and Venezuela.
Makro operates 111 stores.

SHVin 2021

. MMAMMOET

Heavy lifting and transport

Mammoet provides clients with Smarter,
Safer and Stronger solutions to any heavy
lifting or transport challenge. Through deep
and longstanding engineering expertise,
combined with the highest quality and safety
standards, Mammoet brings an intelligent and
flexible approach to projects across a wide
range of industry sectors.

Industrial services

ERIKS is an international industrial service
provider. As a multi-product specialist it
offers a wide range of high-quality mechanical
engineering components and associated
technical and logistical services.
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A family of companies

| /ﬁwfreco

Aqimal nutrition and aquafeed

Nutreco is a global leader in animal nutrition
(Trouw Nutrition) and aquafeed (Skretting)
and has offices in 37 countries and sales in
over 90 countries. Its advanced feed solutions
are at the origin of food for millions of
consumers worldwide.

Testing, inspection and certification

Kiwa is an independent global company
in Testing, Inspection and Certification
(TIC). Kiwa creates trust in its customers’
products, services, processes, (management)
systems and employees, in a wide variety of
market segments.

SHVin 2021

A NPMCAPITAL

Private equity inygs_»tmen_ts

NPM Capital invests in medium-sized
companies in the Benelux region, supporting
them so they can complete the next growth
phase of their development. The current
portfolio comprises 24 companies with both
majority and minority stakes and includes
growth capital.

30

Oil & gas investments

-—-~SHV owns 49% of ONE-BPyas, the largest

privately-owned Dutch oil & gas exploration
and production company. Its core area of
interest is the oil & gas basins of the

North Sea.
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Foreword

SHV has been 125 years in the making. And at heart, we remain the same highly adaptable,
family-owned business that began our story back in 1896 - a milestone we are looking forward
to properly commemorating in 2022.

People have always been at the core of what we do, and as part of the celebrations we have
created a virtual 3D experience for iPad depicting the history of SHV, our employees, and
inspiring examples of people outside SHV who have contributed to making the world a better
place. The project has generated a large number of videos that will themselves become a
part of our story - and hopefully serve to inspire generations to come. We have also digitised
the SHV archives, preserving numerous insights from our rich history for all time. Some of
this fascinating content will be incorporated into a digital walkthrough of our past on the
SHV website.

All SHV Groups faced highly challenging operating environments and we truly admire the

‘way they have navigated these difficult times. The easing of restrictions sparked a revival in

economic activity in the second and third quarter, driving significantly higher results compared
to last year. The hard work, however, has only just begun. Climate change, the demand for
corporate transparency, diversity and inclusion, and cybersecurity are just some of the key
issues in the world today. SHV is finding its own path to addressing them.

Another milestone was reached with the acquisition of Kiwa, the Testing, Inspection and
Certification (TIC) specialist. Kiwa has been a portfoilio company of NPM Capital for over 10
years and we welcome them as part of the SHV Family. Throughout our 125 years, SHV has
aimed to protect and strengthen the company for generations to come. Now more than ever, we
need to continue looking ahead and assessing the possible impact of global chalienges. Kiwa
represents a valuable addition to our preparations for the future as well as to the diversification
of our activities.

On April 28, we announced a settlement had finally been reached with the Dutch Public
Prosecutor concerning irregularities at ERIKS and Mammoet. We are taking every measure
necessary to ensure this can and will never happen again.

Our way of working in 2021 remained very similar to the year before. For the Supervisory Board
of Directors (SBD), this entailed online meetings with the single exception of a face-to-face
meeting in the summer when an easing of restrictions allowed. Five regular meetings covered
a wide variety of topics such as health and safety, the financial and strategic progress of the
Groups, SHYV liquidity levels, the Performance Management cycle, investment proposals, and
risk management. Another five meetings took place to discuss large acquisition opportunities
such as Kiwa and other important projects. In June, a ‘virtual visit’ to Adaptfy was followed by
an in-depth discussion on sustainability. ’

In line with our objective to open cross-Group career paths for our employees, it was good to
see severalinternal transfers taking place. Fulco van Lede, left the Executive Board of Directors
(EBD) to succeed Nutreco CEO Rob Koremans, who has decided to pursue personal interests.
We want to thank Fulco for his contribution to the EBD and feel confident that, together with
Pieter van Holten, the former CFO of SHV Energy, he will successfully lead Nutreco through
these challenging times.

The EBD launched an intensive internal and external search for his successor and we will be
happy to announce the appointment of Eelco Hoekstra, former CEO of Royal Vopak, at the next

SHVin 2021
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Foreword

Shareholders’ meeting on April 8, 2022. Eeico will start life at SHV with an extensive immersion
into the different business Groups.

For the second year running, the Annual Sharehoiders’ Meeting took place online due to
COVID-19 restrictions. Mr Wout Dekker and Mr Patrick Kennedy were re-appointed for terms

of four years.

Mr Rijkman Groenink will step down from the SBD after 15 years. The SBD proposes to
the shareholders to nominate Mr Karl Guha to join the SBD. Following his long career in
the banking industry, Mr Guha will bring, amongst others, an extensive knowledge around
treasury, financing, and hedging to the Board.

COVID-19 restrictions again posed a significant challenge to all SHV employees. We have been
impressed by and thankful for the dedication and perseverance shown in running the business
as well as they have. And once again, the support and encouragement of the EBD, Jeroen,
Ricardo, Floris and, for part of the year, Fulco have been instrumental to our success.

We have followed the tragic events in Ukraine with sadness and disbelief. Our deepest
sympathy goes out to all the people and families seeking safety; shelter and peace following
the violation of the territorial integrity of Ukraine by Russia. Our first priority is the well-being of

ourover 1,100 employees and their families in the region. Together with the EBD we will closely
monitor developments.

It is clear that times remain uncertain but we firmly believe that, together, we are in a position
to make SHV even stronger for today, for tomorrow, and for generations to come.

Utrecht, 7 March 2022
On behalf of the Supervisory Board of Directors,

A.M. Fentener van Vlissingen

. Chairman-- . ... . .. N .. e e e e e

SHVin 2021
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Milestones

Strong performance
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Highlights

2021 was once again a year of constant adjustment in a world dominated by COVID-19. It began
with numerous countries in lockdown, which restricted economic activity, travel, tourism, and
Horeca. The success of vaccine programmes then allowed many western countries to gradually
ease restrictions, reviving business as we returned to a kind of normality.

Yet the uptick in economic activity also resulted in a number of negative side effects, such as
rapidly rising raw material and commodity prices and sky-rocketing freight rates. In addition,
a lack of materials and components hindered production across a number of sectors. Last
but not least, a shortage of personnel slowed down economic activity, a trend we expect

to continue for some time. On balance, however, the easing of restrictions powered global
economic growth of over 5%, compared to a fall of more than 3% in 2020.

On April 28 we were finally able to announce an agreement with the Dutch Public Prosecutor
regarding irregularities that took place at ERIKS and Mammoet. This outcome follows an
enormous effort over the last seven years. We would like to take this opportunity to reiterate
once again that SHV regrets that these irregularities ever took place, that we never accept
unethical-behaviour; and-that we are-continuously-strengthening-measures:to prevent such
cases from happening again.

The acquisition of Kiwa represented another major landmark in the year. Active in the Testing,
Inspection and Certification (TIC) industry, Kiwa also provides related auditing and laboratory
activities supported by training, technology and data services. Adding Kiwa to the SHV family
of companies will serve to strengthen an already solid foundation for future growth. Both the
company'’s way of doing business and its culture have a good fit with SHV and our purpose
and we foresee many opportunities to support Kiwa's strategy in a market that continues to
grow. Ongoing consolidation also offers new possibilities for add-on acquisitions to expand
the business.

We were also excited to announce an investment in Lightyear, a company developing a long
range solar electric vehicle designed to be grid independent and to drive anywhere. The
transaction perfectly fits our vision of a sustainable future for generations to come. While

it by no means represents a diversification into vehicle production, we envisage severat
opportunities for cooperation and the exchange of technical knowledge between Lightyear and
SHV businesses. ’

As has been the case since the outbreak of COVID-19, the health and safety of our colleagues
has remained a top priority. Safety measures across all offices and operating facilities, many
already implemented in 2020, were adjusted and optimised when and where necessary. To our
everlasting regret, however, we could not prevent the loss of 24 colleagues to the virus in 2021.
We feel for their families and loved ones and wish them the strength to come to terms with
their loss.

The operating environment affected all Groups, albeit in different ways and to different extents.
On balance, the easing of restrictions, the pick-up of the economy, and above all the efforts of
all colleagues had a positive effect on performance, resulting in a net income of €379 million,
compared to €488 in 2020.

SHV Energy performed well, supported by the resilient domestic volumes and growing
industrial and commercial volumes that followed the easing of restrictions and subsequent
pick-up of economic activity. Makro was initially heavily impacted by COVID-19, but sales

SHVin 2021
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improved later in the year. Mammoet benefitted from the growth of activity in the oil

& gas sector, as did ONE-Dyas with the increase in oil & gas prices. ERIKS was also
positively affected by the pick-up in industrial activity, despite supply constraints and material
shortages. Nutreco experienced persistently low levels of activity in the leisure and Horeca
sectors as well as high commodity prices. Even so, volumes increased. NPM Capital was able
to realise several divestments, which significantly boosted results. The pandemic had limited
impact on the business of Kiwa.

SHYV launched its purpose in 2020: ‘Courage to care for generations to come’. A dedicated
taskforce, comprising colleagues from every Group, continued to embed this purpose
throughout the organisation. Websites and dedicated communications have been supported
by workshops, training a large number of ambassadors to spread the message. The purpose
has also been integrated into processes and documentation across several areas such as
HR and Finance. Qur purpose has been warmly received, with a vast majority of colleagues
embracing a shared sentiment that brings us together and connects us, whichever Group we
work for.

In a time of rapidly changing customer behaviour, technology trends, and competitor moves,
SHV has recognised an even greater need for strategic planning in attaining the speed

and flexibility required to meet ambitious targets. An upgraded strategy, together with

a strengthened performance management system focusing on strategy execution through
delivery and development, will enable both SHV and the Groups to successfully navigate the
disrupted landscape.

A new, highly detailed performance management cycle has been fully embedded into core
processes and decision making across the Groups. To support the rollout, cross-Group
training has taken place for Finance and Strategic teams across the Groups as well as
Group Management Boards, and the EBD. Next steps will focus on integrating performance
management still further while harmonising quality standards.

People are key to a future of sustainable success - and providing opportunities to grow

within our.family of companies remains a high priority. An Emerging Talent strategy is

now fully operational, with six career tracks supporting talented colleagues in their early
career development with targeted professional and personal growth. Structured succession
planning and leadership development has resulted in many executive roles being filled by
internal candidates.

Development programmes for senior leaders were all successfully aligned with COVID-19
restrictions and blended both physical and virtual learning. A dedicated cross-Group Diversity
and Inclusion taskforce focused on increasing structural awareness of all aspects of the
subject, which included a global D&l week. ‘Taking the Stage’, a training programme by
females for females, was rolled out further. And an extensive study into Equal Pay for Equal
Work has been conducted in five major countries to discuss and, where necessary, to resolve
pay differentials.

Since being established in July 2020, Adaptfy, SHV's global Data & Analytics (D&A)
organisation, has scoped, built and delivered a number of D&A solutions for SHV Groups.
Adaptfy has grown to over 50 people, completed 23 projects, and has 14 projects live at
the time of writing. The organisation is now widely accepted by the Groups as a trusted
partner and an expert in the field of data science, data engineering, technology, digital, and

SHVin 2021 Ar
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business consulting. It has started to develop new customer analytics, demand forecasting,
and pricing solutions to scale across the Groups, while aiso developing the first modules of a
Data Academy to train Group leadership.

Procurement continued its transition to a higher level of performance across all SHV Groups.
To meet the challenge of recurring shortages, Procurement will focus on safeguarding material
and service availability, reducing the impact of inflation, and continuing to define sustainability
targets together with suppliers - including areduction of CO, emissions. A number of SHV-wide
initiatives will serve to expand and further professionalise the function, such as implementing
a job-competence framework and embedding advanced data analytics into daily operations.

Acting with integrity and in compliance with laws and regulations ultimately depends on

the conduct of individual colleagues. SHV management takes responsibility for shaping the
appropriate working environment, with ethics and compliance departments in each Group
providing the tools and knowledge required to navigate challenging circumstances and
business dilemmas. in-depth assessments have also taken place to assess the state of play of
the organisation's compliance culture: .o - . Cel

Needless to say, we expect our partners to uphold similar values when doing business with
us - especially when working on our behalf. In 2021 we bolstered third party due diligence
procedures, while formalising the integration of Ethics and Compliance in the merger and
acquisition process. Our whistle-blower programme ‘Speak-Up’ has also been enhanced,
offering all employees and stakeholders the opportunity to report concerns about workplace
incidents and business practices.

The internal audit department continues to add value by identifying opportunities for
improvement; helping the businesses to grow; and preventing issues such as fraud, corruption,
and avoidable losses. A welcome review at Kiwa generated valuable insights that were used
to shape the structure of integration plans. Internal audit also supported management by

providing.insights.into.the progress.of strategic projects. In partnership with SHV.Rrocurement,

Adaptfy, and the external auditor, data-driven insights have also been supplied to support the
Groups in.improving. operational-procurement.processes.. - ... - --- - e

- As working from home continued to be the norm; the constant monitoring of IT systems

allowed colleagues to work smoothly and effectively without disruption. Hybrid working has
emphasised the business risks faced by remote users and the urgent need to safeguard
security. With digital information and technology so heavily integrated into our day-to-day
work, the worid has become far more vuinerable to cyber-attacks. In addition, attacks
targeting both-information-and critical infrastructure are-becoming-far more sophisticated.

- By establishing an SHV-wide monitoring-centre;weare in a position to detect and protect from

attacks, as well as ensure a fast response in the case of an incident. Because human behaviour
is often a weak link in the security chain, the focus has not only been on technology but also on
raising awareness among colleagues.

In a challenging year during which we all had to react to unexpected situations time and time

"again, the ability to report such an impressive set of results represents a real achievement. All

through the year, the EBD and the Management across all Groups have been well aware just
how complicated it has been to get the job done in the best way possible. Colleagues worldwide
have shown just how much they care about the success of our company: Without their ongoing

SHVin 2021
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support and dedication, we simply would not be where we are today. For this, we express our
sincere and heartfelt thanks to everybody, everywhere.

As we go forward, a number of very real challenges lay ahead. COVID-19 and related issues
such as product and labour shortages are just the beginning. We also need to constantly
address keeping our colleagues not only safe, but also healthy in mind as well as body.
Shaping a truly inclusive workplace. Safeguarding our corporate culture. Contributing to the
fight against climate change. And enhancing life for communities in the countries where we
operate. At the same time, we cannot overlook the more everyday aspects of business, such as
paying taxes not only in accordance with the letter of the law but also in the spirit of it and to
conduct our business in an ethical and compliant way.

Needless to say, the current situation in Russia and the Ukraine is of great and immediate
concern. The safety of our colleagues always comes first, and we will adopt every measure
possible to ensure their safety. Events will undoubtedly have a direct impact on Mammoet and
Nutreco who both have a presence in the region. Other Groups are also sure to be affected,
albeit indirectly, but it is far too soon to grasp the full ramifications of such a grim scenario.

As society becomes increasingly transparent, SHV is ready to demonstrate a clear response
to these challenges and build a solid foundation for the next 125 years. And we are looking
forward to doing this together with Eelco Hoekstra, who will join the EBD following his
appointment in April.

J.P. Drost
CEO

SHV in 2021
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Care for our people

People have always been at the heart of the SHV story, a fact reflected in our purpose: “Courage
to care for generations to come”.

Our values, and our alignment with Sustainability Development Goal (SDG) 8, both promote
ongoing, inclusive and sustainable economic growth; full and productive employment; and
decent work for all. We pursue the development of a highly engaged workforce that reflects the
makeup of the societies in which we operate, believing that diverse and inclusive teams better
understand and reflect customers and stakeholders; enhance business performance; and work
more creatively and innovatively.

By 2030, we aim to see women occupy a minimum 25% of senior leadership positions, and
senior management teams to comprise at least two different nationalities. This target will be
continuously reviewed following external developments.

The differences in business activities across SHV Groups mean that some will achieve these
targets sooner than others. Definitions, functions, and job levels will need to be harmonised
to provide an accurate representation of the progress. Yet the process of measuring and
benchmarking our targets is in full swing and we aim to report reliable and comparable figures
by 2023.

Courage to see the best in all people

We recognise the true potential in all people, welcoming everyone as valued members
of our family. We actively contribute to a safe working environment built on respect for
each other.

To further establish a reputation as a place where women can flourish, SHV introduced the
‘Taking the Stage’ development programme in 2020. The programme is designed to provide
female colleagues with guidance on becoming more effective leaders, as well as support them
in.combatting bias. It provides a unique environment for women not only to learn, but also to
connect and network with other women in the organisation. Over 30 colleagues have trained as
facilitators and then delivered the programme to over 500 female participants. To honour our
commitment to being foremost an inclusive company, a ‘Sharing the Stage’ programme is in the
making, a platform for both male and female colleagues to discuss what is needed to create a
true unbiased culture throughout SHV.

Full and productive employment and decent work for all goes beyond Diversity and Inclusion.

-- It also involves the development and improvement-of a wide variety of HR and-HR-related

processes to create an inspiring, safe, and considerate workplace. This is even more reievantin
these challenging times dominated by COVID-19. All SHV Groups recognise and fully support
this vision and Care for People is a top priority for all.

Employee engagement and wellbeing came to the fore at SHV Energy, with many office
employees still working from home during 2021 and limited travel only possible during the
second half of the year. SHV Energy piloted the tool that was built together with Korn Ferry,
to evaluate progress on fair pay in five countries. When combined with the implementation
of the global job framework, this tool allows for clear comparison between roles. The global
roll-out of Workday, the HR information and performance management system, was also

SHVin 2021



Care for our people

completed during the year, aligning talent management and performance tracking across all
business units. To address labour shortage in many of its markets, SHV Energy strengthened
its employer branding, placing an emphasis on making sure that potential applicants fully
understand the company’s role in the energy transition and its long-term position in the
energy industry.

At Makro, Diversity and Inclusion agendas have been set out in every operating country aimed
at engaging and retaining staff. The company implemented a number of initiatives such as
development programmes for women and minority groups; antiracist awareness campaigns;
D&l committees; as well as surveys measuring adherence to D&l principles and best practices.
In line with the corporate strategy, Makro continues to focus on increasing gender diversity and
cultural representation in leadership positions at all levels.

In response to COVID-19 restrictions, Mammoet supported field crews with-frequent check-in
--conversations and coaching.-Succession-and talent pipelines were both strengthened and a

greater number of talent was promoted, including a large proportion of femaie colleagues.

A focus on performance management, supported by relevant tools and training, resulted in

increased awareness of and higher adherence to processes and enhanced performance ievels

in individuals, teams, and the business as a whole.

ERIKS reinforced its approach to building a high performance organisation with performance
management, training, and the fostering of a learning-based culture. Over 50,000 individual
learning sessions were completed by employees over the course of 2021. Diversity and
inclusion also plays an essential role and a number of initiatives took place to promote the
theme. External experts were invited in to raise awareness on issues such as unconscious
biases. Efforts to promote diversity continued to yield results, with a growing share of
females in management. Senior management has also been significantly strengthened by new
appointments representing several nationalities and a variety of industries, such as automotive
and logistics. :

Nutreco remains focused on three key areas of balanced gender representation, increased
national representation,.and-an .inclusive culture. -This.involves.acquiring-and. investing in
talent, shaping leadership behaviours, and building a more diverse workforce. A dedicated
career site was launched in support of these goals, providing candidates with access to
relevant stories and an engaging overall experience. The company included world-class
learning in its course catalogue, and used the platform to launch a curated Management
Essentials programme on new leaders. Employees also received the opportunity to undertake
digital coaching on an individual basis. !

- Diversity and-inclusion are-also-an-integral part-of Kiwa’s recruitment strategy. Attracting
women and colleagues from minority backgrounds into operational and management positions
remains a key goal. The online Kiwa Academy, which offers a wide range of professional
training modules, was supplemented by over 100 new courses aimed at personal development
and growth. The Leadership Development Program continued to support colleagues in their
current —and future —line management roles. A new global career website was also launched,
including new employer branding elements and a modernised vacancy management system.

Although the private equity sector remains male-dominated, NPM has increased both the
diversity of its workforce and the retention and development of female talent. This is visible in
the ongoing internal promotions of female colleagues into more senior roles. Internal training,

19  SHvin2021
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Care for our people

focused on improving negotiation and valuation skills, is available to all colleagues with some
also participating in wider SHV management development programmes.

% Courage to deliver the exceptional

Passionate about the ongoing success of our people, our business, and the communities
around us.

We strive to help shape the future by driving sustainable development around us through
education and knowledge, including supporting the sustainable and positive development of
the society in which we work and live. To offer education is to make a long-term investment in
people and, ultimately, in communities.

Through our internal campaign "Start from the Heart" we commit to investing in people
through education.

With a presence in so many countries all over the world, our Groups are uniquely positioned
to understand the challenges and needs of their local communities and are encouraged to
initiate and support local projects. By supporting educational programmes, we enable people
to support themselves.

In recognition of all the great initiatives that take place locally, a Lapwing Award is presented to
the best projects each year. The award encourages and acknowledges all the great work being

done throughout SHV with respect to "Start from the Heart" activities.

Caring about people means creating and maintaining safe and healthy working conditions for
everyone who works with us and for us.

This remained a top priority throughout the organisation in the face of the continuing global

..pandemic. Extensive safety measures across stores, factories, filling plants, distribution

centres, and offices were tailored to each workplace's requirements, with an emphasis on
the importance of clear communications, good hygiene, protective equipment, working from
home, and following government guidelines.

The unwavering aim across all Groups is that every single person safely returns home every
single day. We call this philosophy ‘Zero Harm, Zero incidents’.

Our journey to ‘Zero Harm, Zero Incidents’ has focused on a single, transparent systenﬁ of
recording all incidents globally and consistently. From 2022 onwards, this will include the Total
Recordable Frequency Rate (TRFR), clearly showing the number of reported injuries within a
particular category per 100 employees per year, helping to analyse issues and prevent their
reoccurrence within key areas such as: :

e Internal transport and material handling
e Fire and explosion risks

e Road Safety

¢ Machines

* Handling of hazardous substances

SHVin 2021
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Care for our people

Other essential factors in meeting our target of zero incidents include leadership acting as a
role model, and a competent, well-trained workforce that takes responsibility for its own safety
- and for the safety of others. Appropriate training and guidance are provided for everyone.

We also implemented and improved a wide range of processes and programmes to support our
goals over the year, such as:

o Life-Saving Rules setting out the standards protecting people against the highest risks.

* Process safety ensuring the safest possible design across all plants and installations to
prevent hazards such as fire, chemical reactions and explosion.

* Reporting all incidents and near misses to support cross-Group learnings and the adoption
of best practices.

In October, a global Safety Week featured expert speakers and a number of specialist
workshops both at SHV Holdings and across the Groups. A cross-Group safety video was also
produced to highlight the importance we place on Health and Safety, aimed at both internal and
external audiences.

On top of umbrella activities coordinated by SHV Holdings, each Group also adopts a specific
safety plan covering all relevant activities. Numerous safety-related initiatives and.actions took
place across the Groups over the year.

SHV Energy continued to develop, roll out, and improve its Safe Systems of Work. This includes
a revised, globally aligned Health and Safety Risk Assessment Process. It also extends
Operational Discipline and Process Safety to cover an additional 100 or so filling plants. The
Visible Felt Leadership assessment tool demonstrated a clear improvement in the company’s
Health and Safety culture over the year.

SHV Energy also developed CARE - its Health and Safety Change programme. CARE sets out
aroadmap for progressing from the reactive ‘9 H&S Life Saving Rules’ to the proactive ‘7 H&S
CARE Habits’. The programme is designed to help the company achieve its ultimate goal of
zero fatalities and zero life-changing events due to a failure of its plant, equipment, or safety
management systems.

Makro set a goal of zero incidents involving peopfe and zero occupational diseases. A

focus on Health and Safety reduced the Recordable Incidents Rate by 65%, supported by a
highly committed management that took part in the Visible Felt Leadership workshops. Other
initiatives included a ‘Lessons Learned’ analysis of every incident to share knowledge between
Business Units and guide the implementation of best practices.

For Mammoet too, Health and Safety remained up front and centre and included an emphasis
on mental well-being and the preservation of social cohesion. This was supported by
frequent check-in conversations, toolbox meetings with field crews, and even support from
specialist coaches. The company’s existing Safety Health Environment and Quality (SHE-Q)
management system continues to meet the strictest global requirements. One significant
development came in the form of the Inbisco Process Management tool. This new software will
support the documentation of Mammoet’s core processes, which will then be accessible to
all employees.

SHVin 2021
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Care for our people

At ERIKS, safety is one of its core values, ensuring all colieagues return home safely. During
2021, ERIKS was focusing on safety leadership. The 8 Life Saving rules were introduced
during the Safety week and embracing these rules will support to mitigate high risk by
training people. The target is to focus on zero harm mindset everywhere, from Shopfloor to
Management Boards, and this target will be achieved by the deployment of the 8 Life Saving
rules during 2022.

Nutreco fully embraced SHV's purpose, Courage to care for generations to come, with Health
and Safety taking a prominent role in the business. A dedicated Global HSE Centre of Expertise
has been set up to promote the theme across the company, supported by a range of initiatives
to influence leadership behaviour and control operational risks: training senior management
teams in Leadership Behaviours Through Safety; the development of a Nutreco Health, Safety
and Environment Policy statement; the deployment of the Nutreco Life Saving rules; and

last but not least, a four-year strategic safety roadmap called ‘Zero Harm Mindset’. Nutreco
continues to invest significant resources into the enhancement of safety in existing and
future projects. ’

Health and safety plays an inherent role in Kiwa's business and, as such, is also deeply
engrained into company culture. The Kiwa Health and Safety policy sets out the steps every
employee can take to supporting a safe and healthy working environment both at Kiwa and at
client sites — which can be a potential source of risk. The policy also details a Health and Safety
plan for each country in which the company operates. The plan includes targeted actions

to identify, reduce and eliminate relevant risks, and the precise procedures to follow in the
event of an accident. in 2021, a global safety compliance audit confirmed that all operations
conformed to local regulations and the overall corporate policy. The annual Incident Report
recorded zero major accidents, incidents, or fatal injuries.

Health and Safety is also an intrinsic part of NPM Capital and its goal of Zero Harm, with risk
assessments integral to the due diligence of any acquisition. NPM then ensures the theme

remains.a consistent topic_on.the agenda.of the Supervisory Board throughout the investment

period. In 2021, NPM reinforced this approach to safety still further by working closely with
SHV Holdings and implementing best practices from other SHV Groups, such as a focus on
leadership training and lifesaving rules.

N
-@@;@9 Courage to shape the future

Driven by an entrepreneurial mindset, we explore different perspectives on the road to
progress, while we listen, learn, and react to-create and seize new opportunities.

Innovation has played a key role throughout the history of SHV. We have always shown curiosity
and thought creatively, from the first mechanical coal transporter way back in 1904 to today’s
Digital search tool WIKI (ERIKS) and smart scale solutions for cylinders (SHV Energy).

Thanks to innovation, we have continually adapted to—and often shaped —changing markets
by finding new ways to grow. In 2017, we launched an SHV-wide Innovation Movement

to accelerate innovation and stimulate further growth. Qur guiding principles around this
movement are captured in the SHV Innovation Manifesto, to guarantee acommon language for
collaboration and clear understanding of innovation success elements. This ongoing work will
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enable us to stay ahead in our markets and contribute to a sustainable future. It may take some
time, however, before the results are reflected in our financial performance.

The Innovation Movement aims to embed innovation deeply within every Group, while
keeping customer needs front and centre. It supports cross-Group cooperation and the
exchange of best practices, while at the same time recognising differences in industries and
market maturity.

Each Group works with an assigned, dedicated Innovation Lead to focus on the delivery of
innovative products, services, and process improvements by managing innovation funneis and
ideas. Innovation Leads will also foster cross-Group collaboration and knowledge exchange to
enhance our ability to innovate.

In 2021 we organised a successful SHV-wide Innovation-Day; sharing learnings on How to

- organise innovation beyond our core-business. Colleagues-from our boards, innovation- and IT

teams joined from all Groups, presenting and discussing cases that inspire and promote better
innovation-across the eco-system. External speakers also joined-to keep a fresh-outside in view
and trigger our curiosity.

TEXAS - an open-innovation programme developed to reinforce our digital capabilities,
connect to the eco-system, and learn faster than others - delivered two pilots in 2021 in
collaboration with technology scale-ups. One was a Proof of Concept at Calor ireland to
explore remote maintenance for LPG tank inspections to increase the quality of the inspection
and reduce the amount of onsite presence needed. in the other pilot we tested Artificial
Intelligence to lock and unciock knowledge at ERIKS.

S ||= Courage to stay true to our principl.es

Working openly and honestly, we never compromise our values to boost our results. Our

values are visible.in.our everyday actions. . .- .. . ... ... ...

SHV has always been committed to achieving the highest standards of ethics and integrity, with
everyone expected to take business decisions that reflect our values.

We all share a responsibility to act with integrity in line with both the law and our own policies.
As part of a culture that never has —and never will —tolerate unethical or unlawful behaviour, we
have a duty to ensure we do business in a-compliant and ethical manner. Any failure to do so
will be immediately looked-into and appropriate action will-be-taken.-

SHV management is responsible for embedding this commitment across the business.
Independent Ethics and Compliance departments in each Group provide insights into the
expected behaviour and support management in maintaining unimpeachable standards.
Ethics and Compliance departments also provide colleagues with the right tools to deal with
challenging circumstances and difficult dilemmas. - Co

SHV Holdings has in place a clear Ethics and Compliance framework and associated policies.
The SHV Groups are responsible for implementing and continuously updating this framework

SHV in 2021
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in their organisations. The Ethics and Compliance function works closely with, amongst others,
management, HR, Legal and Internal Audit.

As part of the Ethics and Compliance programme, SHV offers a company-wide service
within a safe environment for all employees and other stakeholders to voice any concerns
about workplace practices. This service, called "Speak Up", is a confidential phone line and
webservice that is used throughout SHV.

Together, this comprehensive set of measures helps SHV to meet its strong commitment to an
company-wide culture of integrity and trust. '
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Care for our planet

Sustainability plays a key role in our purpose. In 2021 the theme came to the fore more than
ever in society, business, investments, and new regulations all across the globe. Continuously
looking to the outside world to understand current and future trends, we initiated a leadership
discussion to redefine our sustainability targets and review the scope of our efforts. This
profound debate will be completed early 2022, and an update on our scope will follow.

We have also started to prepare ourselves for new EU legislation - the Corporate Sustainability
Reporting Directive. CSRD makes it mandatory for businesses to provide independently-
verified reports on the environmental and social impact of their activities in an effort to increase
transparency. The directive will be fully unveiled in Q3 2022 and then implemented in 2023.
In preparation, we have put in place a cross-functional taskforce representing legal, audit,
finance, and sustainability functions and identified the necessary actions required.

We expect the CSRD to include disclosure of Green House Gas emissions - an area in which we
have already been hard at work. Over the year we have focused on harmonising and improving
our infrastructure to collect company-wide emission statistics based on accurate data rather
than estimates. The size and diversity of our business means this remains an ongoing process,
but CSRD-compliant figures should be ready by 2023.

Beyond an overall group perspective, sustainability also runs deeply through every company in
the SHV family and 2021 saw this progress continue.

SHV Energy supplies over 30 million customers worldwide with the energy they need for
domestic heating, industrial heating, cooking, and transportation. They include a significant
number not yet connected to the gas grid. These householids or businesses are often based in
rural areas and rely on high-carbon, more polluting sources such as coal and oil. The provision
of cleaner, safer, lower-carbon energy is an essential step towards de-fossilisation and an
integral part of the company’s approach to driving the energy transition. At the same time, SHV
Energy strives to minimise its own impact on the environment, all without compromising on the
highest standards of health and safety.

The.company emphasises its commitment to ‘Advancing Energy Together’ by involving all key
stakeholders, rather than just colleagues and customers. Only by collaborating with the energy
industry as a whole can the energy solutions of the future become a reality.

Back in 2020, SHV Energy took an historic step with the acquisition of EM3, an industrial
energy efficiency specialist. Energy efficiency services represent an important milestone on
the journey to more sustainable energy. A number of highlights followed in 2021, such as a
first step into solar power with the acquisition of a majority stake in SunSource Energy. As a
leading provider of distributed-energy for commercial and industrial customers across India,
SunSource also has a presence across South-East Asia.

SHV Energy launched the Open Innovation Challenge, designed to identify transformative new
opportunities in sustainable bioLPG production. 2021 also saw rDME successfully positioned
as a pivotal, cost-effective solution for de-fossilising the LPG industry. A new joint venture
with UG International, a subsidiary of UGI Corporation, is being established to make rDME
widely available. And finally, the company integrated a new carbon counter into the global SHV
Energy website, allowing all businesses to seamlessly integrate relevant data into their own
local websites, along with real-world comparisons that make the results more tangible.
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Makro focused its strategy on the three pillars of people, profit, and planet. With regards to the
planet, the strategy has concentrated on waste management, the reduction of CO, emissions,
and increasing the efficiency of stores.

As part of a zero-landfill project to minimise waste, Makro piloted two new stores aimed at
diverting all waste away from landfill towards more sustainable methods of disposal such as
recycling, composting, waste-to-fuel etc. The chain also implemented Why Waste in Brazil,
an app that tracks the expiry dates of products, making it easier to consume more efficiently.
In 2021, volunteer tree-planting programmes were also carried out across the business to
contribute to the rebalancing of the ecosystem.

ERIKS, in partnership with sustainability consultants Sustainalize, asked employees,
customers, suppliers,.and SHV-wide colleagues for their. views on where.the company should
focus-its-efforts-moving forwards. The-top-three responses —a healthy and safe working
environment, customer solutions, and sustainable innovation— provide a clear direction

for the future. ERIKS' customers are in a position to exert a significant influence over the

- future of our planet, and the company faces a golden opportunity to help shape ever-more

27

sustainable industry.

With this in mind, it has approached several major customers to become their preferred
sustainability partner, offering joint sustainability improvement programmes to identify
new opportunities for improvement - for example by reducing energy consumption and
CO, emissions.

As the market leader for heavy lifting and transport, Mammoet aims to be at the forefront of
sustainability. Perhaps the most important goal is helping to rebalance the world’s energy mix
in collaboration with customers and supply chain partners. For example, the company was
active in a large number of initiatives in the renewables sector during the year, particularly

in onshore and offshore wind projects. It has also been involved with the construction and
upgrade of energy-efficient facilities to reduce carbon emissions and incorporate carbon
capture. One of the most significant of these projects was the ITER in France - a landmark
experiment to build the world's largest tokamak. This magnetic fusion device is designed to
test the potential of fusion energy in the development of future non-fossil energy production.

Mammoet is also taking steps to reduce its own carbon footprint and move away from a
dependence on fossil fuels. Lower carbon methods of transporting heavy and complex loads
include the use of hydrogen to power the SKrange of cranes; electric and hybrid power systems
for cranes and trailers; new low carbon innovations for erecting wind turbines; and identifying
new opportunities for introducing alternative lower carbon fuels. One aiternative to traditional
diesel is the HVO (hydrotreated vegetable oil), made primarily from waste and residues and
90% carbon-free. HVO also emits fewer direct exhaust emissions, including nitrogen oxides.
in 2021 Mammoet carried out its first ever HVO-powered project.
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Nutreco remains committed to delivering sustainable products and services, beginning with
sustainable sourcing. A new 2025 sustainability roadmap aligns with the company’s purpose
of feeding the future and is shaped around three key themes: Health & Welfare, Climate &

--Circularity, and Good Citizenship. Progress will be tracked by an online progress assessment

tool. Bold goals require action, not words, and Nutreco is an active participant in industry
discussions and initiatives. The Skretting CEO is Co-Chair of Seafood Business for Ocean
Stewardship (SeaBOS). And Nutreco’s Sustainability Director chairs Task Force 1 aimed at
reducing illegal, unreported and unregistered (IUU) fishing as well as eradicating modern
slavery in the seafood supply chain.

One crucial aspect of protecting the oceans is ensuring that fish stocks are managed
responsibly, and Nutreco strives to ensure that marine feed ingredients come from sustainable
sources. Skretting. launched a transparent policy for the first time: concrete targets highlight
a commitment to conserving-marine resources-and ensuring-that locat communities and

.. fishermen are treated with. dignity and respect. - . -

Nutreco is also working to help.customers reduce their environmental impact. Trouw Nutrition,
for example, has developed MyFeedPrint. This comprises a complete database of ingredients
linked to feed formulation software and will allow customers to optimise their feed formulations
with sustainability in mind. It will also contribute to achieving the company’s Science Based
Targets, an initiative that helps the private sector to make lasting, positive changes by setting
science-based emissions reduction targets.

Trouw Nutrition also launched the Circular Farm, an extensive sustainable farming service
platform that supports farmers with a nitrogen and phosphorus emissions calculator;
certification of their performance levels based on planet and people; environment, and
animal welfare; and the issue of Environmental Product Declarations in partnership with a
specialist consultant.

One shining example of Skretting’s efforts in sustainable innovation has.been CarbonBalance®
- shortlisted as a finalist in the Product Innovation of the Year category at the 2022 edie
Sustainability Leaders Awards. The solution helps fish farmers to reduce their carbon footprint
and includes the first ever carbon-neutral aquafeed, making carbon-neutral fish farming
areality. - - S .

Newly acquired Kiwa is a global leader in Testing, Inspection and Certification (TIC)

services and contributes to making products, processes, organisations, homes, and working
environments as clean, healthy, safe, and sustainable as possible. Even though the
core-business inherently-addresses many areas related to sustainability, the-company

has formulated a wider-Corporate-Social Responsibility (CSR)-strategy shaped by two
general aims.

The first aim is achieving Level 3 CSR Performance Ladder certification through external audit.

The Performance Ladder measures the success of a company’s CSR policy based on 33
indicators covering people, the environment, and local communities and represents the
foundation of Kiwa’'s CSR efforts. A system of internal auditing has already been established,
while a fetlow certification institution audits Kiwa externally. By the end of 2022, the goal is
to ensure all offices are certified in reducing their CO, footprints, improving employee health
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and satisfaction, giving stakeholders a real say in CSR, and magnifying the positive impact of
services on society.

The second general aim is to follow the United Nations’ 17 Sustainability Development Goals.
Companies that have been certified to Level 3 of the CSR Performance Ladder are challenged
to emphasise their commitment to CSR by selecting and implementing relevant SDG goals.

NPM integrates sustainability into its business operations in a number of ways. Sustainability
plays an important part in the due diligence process when evaluating potential portfolio
companies. Biannual sustainability assessments of portfolio companies have become
standard practice. And building a stronger business for the future through sustainability has
been incorporated into an investment strategy that focuses on four key areas: Feeding the
World, Future of Energy, Healthy Life & Learning, and Everything is Digital. This approach has
influenced participations in Groendus and Dieseko among others.

Dieseko focuses on delivering sustainable foundation solutions for both onshore and,
increasingly, offshore end-markets. One milestone has come in the form of the world’s largest
vibratory hammer, which allows foundations to be'laid with far less impact on the environment
by reducing noise and accelerating both handling and installation times.

Groendus (previously Rooftop energy) supports business customers on their journeys towards
100% clean energy through a combination of smart energy saving, proprietary power
generation, and direct renewable energy transactions. So far, Groendus has worked with
retailers such as Coolblue, Picnic and Suitsupply , generating over 150 MWp in primary roof-
based solar PV projects in The Netherlands. And their ‘Mijn Groendus’ energy management
platform connects renewable energy producers and end-users without the need for a
traditional energy supplier or utility company, with over 42,000 connections made to date.
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Financial review

In 2021, net sales rose by 20% to €20.0 billion (2020: €16.7 billion), growth supported by

a partial recovery in the markets and the acquisition of Kiwa. Ali Groups made a positive
contribution to sales, although Makro’s share was offset by the divestment of Makro Peru at
the end of 2020. The negative impact of adjustments for foreign currency translation totalled
€351 million, resulting in an adjusted growth of 22% - mostly driven by the devaluation of the
Turkish lira and the Argentinian peso.

Netincome doubled in 2021 to €979 million (2020: €488 million) with bottom-line growth driven
by successful exits at NPM Capital (including deals delayed in 2020 due to the pandemic);

a stronger oil and gas market that boosted results for both SHV Energy and ONE-Dyas; a
recovery in sales for Mammoet and ERIKS; and stricter cost controis across all Groups.

Income from operations fell to €525 million (2020: €602 million) mostly due to a lower income
of €66 million from exceptional items (2020: €214 million): However, excluding exceptional
items, adjusted income from operations grew in 2021, totalling €459 million (2020: €388 million)
thanks to the improvement in operational performance by SHV Energy, Mammoet, and ERIKS,
as well as the addition of the newly-acquired Kiwa.

Net sales income from operations
In millions of euro In millions of euro
19,871 20,068 19,172 20,002
16,723 613 602
503 525
305
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Overall operational performance in 2021 showed a growth in both sales and net income. SHV
Energy benefited from the fast recovery in the oil and gas market, a well-positioned hedge
portfolio, and active cost management. Mammoet and ERIKS also profited from post-lockdown
recoveries and made good progress with their strategic agendas, including tighter cost
controls and enhanced operational efficiency. Nutreco managed to record higher volumes,
although margins were squeezed by stretched supply chains and rising raw material costs. The
negative outcome of a tax case in Spain also impacted net income. Makro continued to feel the
effects of COVID-19 restrictions as well as intensifying-competition in the market, with 2021
sales lower than expected. The sale of stores in Brazil, however, made a positive contribution
to net income. NPM Capital took advantage of high valuations in the market to make a number
of successful exits. And finally, the acquisition of Kiwa delivered additional growth in sales on
the back of a positive operational performance trend - especially in the European markets.
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Financial review

The 2021 effective tax rate remained stable at 21.4%. The effective-income tax impact for
this year mainly relates to higher non-taxable capital gains and dividends realised by NPM
Capital, offset by non-recoverable withholding tax charges. and higher taxes on income from
investments in affiliates related to the result of ONE-Dyas.

Operational.cash flow remained stable at €1,060.million.(2020: €1,063 million). Investment
cash flow grew to €1,292 million (2020: €701 million) thanks to acquisitions and an increase in
replacement investments, following a more conservative 2020. After reducing working capital

- in 2020-to preserve cash; 2021 saw an-increase of €323 -million-driven mostly by higher

receivables from SHV Energy and Mammoet, an increase in inventories at SHV Energy, and the
inclusion of Kiwa.

‘Netincome torSHV- -+~ - -- ~ == e - [ncome-as-%-of Shareholders Equity

in millions of euro
1,253 20%
979 15%
2017 2018 2019 2020 2017 2018 2019 2020

A total of €762 million was invested in tangible fixed assets during 2021, channelled mainly into
gas cylinders & tanks, and installations at SHV Energy as well as product lines and equipment
at Nutreco and Mammoet. The Groups also made several investments to accelerate growth and
strengthen market positions. These include, amongst others SunSource Energy and United
Propane at SHV Energy; Bigsal and Nutrimin at Nutreco and Intega at Kiwa.-NPM Capital

-.invested-in. Infinitas-Learning,-an-educational-publishing-company;-ICT-Group,-an.industrial

technology and service provider; and Kubo, specialised in greenhouse projects.

The year closed with Group equity growing to €6.5 billion (2020: €6.4 billion), which includes
a negative FX effect of €142 million when converting local currency equity to euros. Total
liquidity levels remained strong at €1.1 billion, while net debt increased to €1.4 billion to fund
acquisitions. Overall return on shareholder equity rose to 15% from 8% in 2020.
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Financial review

As part of the annual risk management cycle, the Executive Board of Directors (EBD) conducted
a company-wide risk assessment over the course of 2021. The assessment aimed to identify
key risk areas, validate the effectiveness of internal control measures, and xdentnfy the actions
requnred to manage risk within SHV parameters.

The assessment confirmed the company's risk appetite as strategically open with a
conservative attitude to operations and finance. SHV remains committed to a way of working
that makes no compromise on safety, quality, and compliance. With respect to the latter, the
Executive Board of Directors reiterated a zero-tolerance approach to areas such as-fraud,
bribery and corruption.

By adopting an outside-in perspective, the assessment identified 14 key risks currently faced
by the organisation. Geopolitical and macro-economic factors remain in wake of the global
pandemic and political unrest - the effects of which will continue-to-be felt in-the coming
years. Challenges in the supply chain also pose a threat, linked to pandemic measures as
well as climate change. The pace of digitalisation and technological developments also needs
to be addressed by Group business models. And with the world confronted by increasingly
severe cyber-attacks and ever more sophisticated cyber threats, IT secunty needs to be
continually managed.

Risk is also present in continued tight labour markets that limit the company’s ability to attract
and retain the talent and specialist skills required by certain areas of the business. And finally,
the speed and breadth of legislative change around the world creates a continuous need to stay
abreast of all necessary compliance measures, laws, and regulations. For example, potential
changes to ESG-related regulation represent a significant new risk - mainly pertaining to the
financial sustainability aims of the European Commission and its Corporate Sustainability
Reporting Directive (CSRD).

The company’s regulafbusiness processes, together with a robust set of internal controls,
continue to effectively manage these risks. As part of an update to internal control

-measurements, a-number of processes have been improved to ensure this remains the case.

For instance, the rolling forecasting process has been refined to ensure-strategic delivery
agendas incorporate an outside-in perspective, in addition to relevant actions aimed at
enhancing managerial responsiveness.

In terms of safety, we continued to increase awareness and.promote a safe and healthy work
environment through safety leadership programmes and Group-specific Life Saving Rules. On
acultural level, our purpose “Courage to care for generations to come” underpins the company
culture by, highlighting our core values.

The company tests the effectiveness of internal control measures throughout the organisation
twice ayear, with the results reported to local management, Group Management, the Executive
Board of Directors, and Supervisory Board of Directors.

Overall, the EBD considers that these measures, together with existing operating procedures
and control frameworks, effectively address the risks that confront SHV both now and in the
foreseeable future.
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SHV is committed to achieving the highest standards of Ethics and Integrity. In line with this
commitment, SHV believes its obligation as a responsible taxpayer is to comply with the tax
legislation of the countries in which it operates and pay the right amount of tax at the right time.
SHV does not only comply with the letter of the law, but also with its spirit.

SHV uses business structures that are aligned with the business activities and that are only
driven by commercial considerations. SHV only makes use of tax incentives where they are
aligned with business activities and operational objectives, generally available to all market
participants and specified by law. As such, tax always follows the business.

SHYV pays tax on profits according to where value is created within the normal course of

its business activities. SHV does not use aggressive tax planning strategies or tax havens

to minimise its tax burden. The transfer pricing of intercompany transactions is done in
accordance with the arm’s length principie developed by the OECD-and is applied consistently.

SHV maintains an open and constructive dialogue with tax authorities based on transparency
and trust. SHV engages with them with honesty, integrity and respect.

SHV and its Groups have more than 700 legal entities in 73 countries. Each year, SHV files

a so-called country-by-country report with the Dutch tax authorities containing high-level
data on the global allocation of income and taxes, and certain other measures of economic
activity for all companies over which SHV has management control. The Dutch tax authorities
exchange this information with other tax authorities around the world.

SHV provides an overview of the total corporate income tax expenses and corporate income
tax payments in 2021 to tax authorities in the ten countries where SHV has the largest presence.

These 10 countries represent around two-third of the business.

For each country SHV reports the earnings before tax, the corporate income tax expense in the

‘income statement as well as the amount of corporate income tax paid and received on a cash

basis. The tax expense reported in the income statement is the amount of current and deferred

tax expense incurred in this financial year based on accounting rules. The.tax paid means the

net amount of corporate income tax actually paid to or received from the tax authorities in
this year.

The following table specifies the net sales, earnings before tax, income tax expense and
income tax paid in 2021 for the top 10 countries. In this table, tax expenses are presented as
negative amounts (in.come as positive amounts) and tax payments are presented as negative
amounts (refunds as positive amounts). The data shown in the table on the next page is derived
from-internal management-information systems.
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Financial review

# Country Net sales Income bafoye Income| Income tax paid
income taxes tax expenses

France 3,135.3 57.8 (17.0) (17.1)
"The Netherlands - 1,890.8 © 689.8 "~ ('38.7) 6.6
Spain B q,877.4777 7 - (28.5) (29.9) 21
Brazil 1,751.4 111.9 (35.5) (42.2)
United States of America 1,433.5 (51.2) (4.7) 8.4
United Kingdom 1,364.9 158.2 (36.0) (12.0)
Canada 1,307.9 24.6 (13.4) (10.6)
China 906.6 12.6 (3.1) (4.8)
Italy 771.7 49.0 (14.3) (12.6)
Germany 760.5 8.9 (12.2) (11.5)
Total top 10 15,199.8 1,033.1 (204.8) (93.8)
Other countries -8,756.4-)- ---- - 244:5| --- - (68.5) (63.3)
T T U T T23,856727 (T TTTT277 6T T T (273.8) 7 T (187.)

Note: net sales represent sales on a country level and are reported on a non-

consolidated basis.

In 2021, SHV reported an effective corporate income tax rate of 21.4%, reflecting earnings
before taxes of €1.278 million and a corporate income tax expense of €273 million. SHV paid
a net amount of €157 million in corporate income taxes. Besides corporate income tax, SHV
collected and paid many other taxes and contributions, such as state and local taxes, payroll
taxes and consumption taxes.
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Business review

SHV Energy SHV Energy is a leading global distributor of off-grid energy, including LPG and smail-scale
LNG. The company is also active in sustainable fuels and renewable energy. With products
and services predominantly used for heating, cooking-and transport; SHV Energy provides
decentralised, low-carbon; and cleanenergy solutions to 30 million business and.residential

- -~ --customers in 23 countries across four continents. Brands include Calor, Ipragaz, Liquigas,
Pinnacle, Primagaz, Xiwei, and Supergas.

The company’s main goal is to make relatively clean and safe energy options accessible and
affordable to as many customers and companies as possible. To meet increasing demand,

it is constantly looking for cleaner and economic energy sources, while also meeting the
challenge of climate change with innovative solutions that contribute to a more sustainable and
environmentally-friendly future. The provision of cleaner energy alternatives and partnerships
with communities also contribute to securing and.growing.a sustainable business.

The strategy of ‘Advancing Energy-Together-supports growth-efficiency; and sustainability
across all brands. The aim is to activate the full potential of the company through

increased international collaboration; leverage shared opportunities; and identify and

solve common challenges through a combination of organic growth, add-on acquisitions,
geographic expansion, productivity improvement, and advocacy for—and promotion of —
sustainable fuels.

High demand for LPG The economic recovery, together with a regular cold winter in both Europe and the USA,
resulted in a sustained high demand for LPG. The supply side was more volatile, with storms
impacting LPG production capacity on the US Gulf Coast and low refinery utilisation rates
in Europe. This imbalance resulted in a continuous increase in LPG prices, before the new
Omicron variant and bearish macroeconomic data for the USA and China began to reverse
the trend.

Similar trends occurred in the LNG sector. In Europe, the increase in supply was outpaced by
a double-digit rise in demand as most US LNG cargoes were shipped to Asia, leaving regional
-- - --—- —gtorage-levels low:“The-ongoing-geopolitical uncertainty-around-the-Nord-Stream pipeline from
. - --- Russia-to-Germany-has.also-had-a-significant.impact-on-LNG-prices,-which-almost quintupled
in 2021.

In the second year of a global pandemic, many economies started to recover and grow
in the wake of vaccination programmes. SHV Energy benefitted from the rise in industrial
and commercial activity, with the partial normalisation of travel and the easing of restaurant
lockdowns driving Hospitality and Autogas sales. At the same time, the company continued to
benefit from strong domestic sales volumes: partly driven by a regular winter and fresh spring
- --—- —weatherin-Europe;-and-partly by-people working-and-cooking-at-home-more often.-Although the
cost of gas significantly increased in the first part of the year, margins remained strong across
the board. Automotive LNG sales volumes also increased in most countries.

Sustainable fuels 2021 marked a year in which SHV Energy took significant steps towards its objectives for
renewable solutions and sustainable fuels. SunSource Energy was acquired, an Indian-based
solar solutions company delivering mid- to large-scale solar projects for commercial and
industrial customers. A process to set up a joint venture with UGI, to develop rDME, a
sustainable molecule that will help to de-fossilise the LPG industry, is underway. A joint venture
was also established with KEW Technology to begin the first industrial rDME production
in 2022.
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Business review

SHV Energy took steps to rebalance its portfolio with the divestment of Primagaz in the
Netherlands and Balcas, a non-core sawmill and wood pellet producer in Ireland. At the same
time, the company finalised a density acquisition in the US to drive further synergies, while also
taking new opportunities to strengthen positions in growth countries.

SHV Energy continues to invest in innovative solutions including new services; business
models; processes; and technologies aimed at bringing consistency across business units to
improve efficiency and increase customer satisfaction.

One key project over the year involved the manufacture of smart cylinders to unlock new
value propositions. In Brazil, a large pilot scheme was rolled out to 1,500 customers offering
a new pay-per-consumption model, which uses a connected device to remotely monitor

gas consumption. Unique in the global LPG industry, the model is now being evaluated for
implementation in China.-To improve efficiency, a new analytical model was also developed to
optimise the planning of cylinder deliveries in France. This has now been impiemented across
all depots and is expected to generate significant savings.

Operational performance considerably improved in 2021. Total volumes increased compared
to 2020 due to the release of COVID-19 restrictions having a positive effect on both industrial
and commercial segments, especially in Europe and Asia, combined with stable high domestic
volumes in particular in Brazil. Higher margins as result of the well-positioned hedge portfolio
and active cost management also contributed to strong results.

Makro is a modern food cash-and-carry company targeting professional food (Horeca)
customers and end consumers. The current strategy is aimed at significantly increasing its
customer base; providing a better shopping experience; and strengthening the company’s
position as the most relevant partner for both target groups. With a presence in Argentina,
Brazil, Colombia, and Venezuela, Makro operated 111 stores at the end of 2021.

2021 focused on growing store traffic and sales by shaping the product range around customer
needs, and establishing competitive. own-brand products to increase loyaity. New concept
stores were also tested to offer an enhanced shopping experience based on technology and
differentiated services.

E-commerce is growing quickly in the sector. The online grocery market is expected to develop
further in the coming years, creating the need for digital sales channels. Delivery could become
the main sales channel of the future, especially for Horeca. To maintain a competitive position,
Makro accelerated the deployment of several new sales channels. The company also explored
new partnerships with-e-commerce platforms as important alternatives to store traffic and to
enable delivery from stores; the implementation of ‘click & collect’ and ‘click & deliver’; and the
development and improvement of its own online proposition.

The impact of COVID-19 was felt across all markets. Political instability, slow vaccination
programmes, social tensions, and public protests all negatively affected operating conditions.
Restrictions and limited store opening hours reduced store traffic and changed buying
behavior. In the second half of the year, however, a rise in vaccination rates encouraged
governments to carefully reduce social restrictions and support economic recovery. As always,
the wellbeing of employees and customers remained a top priority for Makro, with a strict
action plan supported by regular safety audits in all countries.
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In Brazil, COVID-19 wasn't the only-challenge. Fierce competition-from - and fast expansion by
- the main players also dominated the market. The remodelling of Sdo Paulo stores continued
- as part of the food-cash-and-carry strategy; while in December-the-company concluded the
- = - sale of-the'stores outside the Sdo Paulo region. TT T monm e e

In Argentina, the negative impact of COVID-19 restrictions was sharpened by social, political,
and economic instability as well as hyperinflation. Moreover, sales were also affected by
government-set price controls aimed at reducing inflation and increasing consumption. With
all these factors at play, the company focused on reducing operating costs, expanding the
product range, increasing the proportion of own-brand and fresh-food, and improving the
delivery process.

In Colombia, the economic and political environment remained relatively stable. Increasing
vaccination rates led to a pick-up in the second half of the year driven by a rebound

‘in commercial-and industrial activity; higher-domestic-demand, and growing:private and
pubiic consumption. A lifting of most COVID-19 restrictions and an increase in household
consumption provided the retail business with a significant boost.

Succesfull cooperation Venezuelan operating conditions have been challenging for some years due to the difficult
political and humanitarian situation. The COVID-19 crisis only made matters worse and the
deterioration of basic services continued. With distribution restricted and controlled by the
government, the resulting impact on production and supply chains led to a scarcity of finished
goods. One positive development was the alliance with Redvital - a provider of medicines
and medical supplies and equipment. The partnership has shown promising results with a
significant increase in sales following more traffic in the stores. So far, together with Reduvital,
four stores have been adapted to the new concept, with 15 more expected to follow in 2022.

Operational performance for Makro was severely impacted by continued COVID-19 related
social restrictions leading to store closures and lower store traffic in all Makro countries.
Market retraction in Brazil led-to lower out-of-home consumption impacting-both end
- - —---consumer and-Horeca-sales; whereas-Argentina was-affected-by hyperinflation-and price
- - - —-.—controls.The-sale of-stores.outside the-Sdo-Paulo-region-made.a.significant.contribution to the
net results for 2021.

Mammoet Mammoet provides customers with smarter, safer, and stronger solutions to any heavy lifting or
transport challenge. A unique giobal network and an unparalleled fleet of equipment, combined
with in-depth engineering expertise and the highest standards of quality and safety, resultin an
intelligent and flexible approach across a wide range of industry sectors. In building long-term

- - relationships, the.company-is-able to-develop-a deep-understanding of each customer’s needs
and offer the most efficient and cost-effective solution.

Mammoet has taken further steps in the execution of the strategy to be the leading and

most sustainable heavy lift and transportation specialist. The geographical footprint was
reviewed to find a right-balance between local presence with-yards and equipment and
sufficient operational flexibility to serve clients globally. Driven by the energy transition, the
diversification to more sustainable end markets —and wind power in particular —has become
an important strategic pillar. Meanwhile, a strong focus on cost control sustainably lowered the
cost base.
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After a year of crisis, markets gradually started to improve during 2021. Even so, worldwide
travel restrictions and international differences in regulations made it difficult, and sometimes
impossible, to mobilise people and equipment to project sites, which created operational
inefficiencies. The increase in workload put a strain on the workforce, especially in Europe &
Russia and North America.

In 2020 the market was dominated by postponed investments and delayed maintenance. With
an easing of pandemic-related restrictions and an increase in the price of oil, confidence
started to return and project investments were released, resulting in a strong order intake
during 2021.

The increase in workload in the oil & gas sector was further amplified in the second half of
2021 by the on-site execution of the Arctic LNG project, in addition to several mega projects

- in North-America. Maintenance and turnaround-work in-the sector also-returned to normal
-levels, which powered a strong performance from the rental business. The Civil sector showed

solid growth driven by a variety of smaller projects such as the transportation of tunnel boring
machines and bridge replacements/removals in Europe. Large volumes were realised in the
power sector, especially in European wind projects. These trends are expected to continue into
2022, a forecast reflected in the current strength of the order book.

Offshore wind sector projects mostly related to the handling of monopiles and jackets for
offshore wind turbines in the APAC region. Arise in utilisation rates for the fleet of large global
cranes is expected to continue in 2022. The organisational restructuring that started in 2020
led to a further reduction of both the asset base and workforce in various locations. Finally,
in anticipation of next year’'s growing workload, investments were stepped up in Europe and
North America.

Innovation piays an increasingly essential role in achieving strategic goals. Several
innovations, such as the Focus crane, were introduced to help customers boost efficiency. The
digitisation process was accelerated by investing.in remote monitoring technologies, enabling
real-time insights into on-site equipment, engine data, and emissions: And the electrification
of the.equipment. fleet provided another focus for.innovation, not only.through the.purchase of
new assets and reducing pollution, but also by converting existing fuel-powered equipment.

All in all, Mammoet strengthened its foundation to be ready to fully leverage market
opportunities in 2022.

Litigation on the NY Wheel project incurred delays due to procedural matters, with a court
decision on the merits of the case not expected before 2023. in November, Mammoet received
a positive ruling in the Amuriyah arbitration. The focus wili now shift to a fulfilment of the ruling
by the parties involved.

Operational performance improved strongly in 2021 as the heavy lift and transport market
recovered further and Mammoet additionally benefited from a focus on cost control. The
ramp up of large projects and the strong offshore wind market supported a high workload
towards the end of the year which will continue to benefit Mammoet in 2022. Net income
was furthermore positively impacted by the positive ruling in the Amuriyah arbitration. Whilst
these developments are positive, restrictions in travel and other regulations linked to the
COVID-19 pandemic continued to result in a challenging operational environment requiring the
organisation’s full dedication to reliably serve customers.
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ERIKS : ERIKS is a specialist provider of industrial services. A wide range of technical products, co-
engineering and customisation solutions, and related services all help customers to improve
product performance and reduce total cost of ownership. - - - -

With a presence spanning Western Europe, North America, and Asia, ERIKS serves customers
in original equipment manufacturing (OEM) and maintenance, repair and overhaul operations
(MRO) across a wide variety of industrial segments.

The tagline Let’s make industry work betteremphasises the company’s missionto increase
efficiency and reduce waste within industrial processes, helping customers to become
more sustainable.

-.. - To maintain its position as a leading industry provider, the strategy is focused on digital
solutions, innovation, and sustainability as a business driver for growth.

Solid recovery After a slow start to the year in a challenging and unstable environment, ERIKS saw a solid
post-lockdown recovery in its markets which in turn had a positive effect on the business.
Indeed, all business units improved their performance compared to last year as business
activity gradually gained traction and orders at hand slowly returned to pre-COVID-19 levels.
Supply chain constraints and a shortage of materials, however, negatively affected delivery
performance due to delayed orders and forced canceliations. Especially ERIKS Germany was
affected by these circumstances and a new management team is in the process of restructuring
and implementing a one European supply approach.

Further progress was made with Fuel for Growth. This long-term strategic improvement
programme is aimed at returning ERIKS to benchmark profitability; establishing the business
as a leading player in the industries it serves; and securing profitable growth by focusing

on five key areas: driving organic growth, improving pricing, enhancing procurement and
core assortment, increasing organisational efficiency, and developing a high performance
organisation and mindset. | e - .

—--.— -—=~ -l 0-pursue-organic-growth,-the.company-has-established-a-dedicated-support-function
composed of strategic product group Centres of Expertise (CoE), international sales
capabilities, and pricing. The aim is to develop and scale commercial offerings in key industries
and targeted growth segments including semiconductor, food, and pharma & agriculture. The
new support function will also leverage global product and sales marketing expertise from
across the organisation, while safeguarding local customer relationships.

The negotiation of improved conditions with strategic suppliers has resulted in significant
--—- ——savings for-ERIKS’ procurement-and-core assortment-enhancement (PACE) activities. Focused
on the sale of core assortments from set strategic and preferred suppliers, PACE achieved
procurement savings by reducing the cost of goods sold. Core assortments were identified
-—- - ---- - and-bundled by.-the-product-CoE.-RPlans to-train.sales teams.across the.company.on the unique
selling points of the core assortment brands and products have been put in place for 2022.

Centralised distribution A dedicated pricing leader joined the global senior leadership team in 2021, developing a
pricing strategy model for ERIKS' product and services across all markets. The company also
operationalised its centrai distribution centres in Germany and the UK, serving customers more
efficiently by optimising distribution and increasing capacity to fulfil orders more accurately.
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The need for digital solutions continues to grow quickly, with customers looking to improve
productivity and safety. ERIKS has made significant progress towards its goal of going to
market as a digital distributor in the next few years-and serving customers across multiple
channels. Beginning with an internal overhaul to digitise and simplify business processes,
the focus is on value-added solutions that provide superior data-driven digital experiences.
From Smart Asset Management to an industry-leading digital self-service platform, ERIKS
helps customers to operate more safely, work more sustainably, and predict downtime more
accurately to allow real-time visibility and interactions.

A revised innovation strategy will be deployed in 2022, identifying three areas that will
drive the development of new responses to ever-changing customer needs: capitalising on
specialism, accelerating digitisation, and anticipating the future — for example, by monitoring

. the development of hydrogen.

Operational performance considerably improved in 2021, mainly driven by the UK, Netherlands
& North America, and was positively impacted by the booming semi-conductor, oil & gas

and automotive industry. Sales growth was supported by International Sales Development

& Centers of Expertise, while pricing and procurement initiatives aided to improve margin
performance. Execution of the Fuel for Growth initiatives led to better financial results and
improved organisational efficiency.

Nutreco’s purpose of Feeding the Future is more relevant than ever in aworld whose population
is expected to grow to aimost 10 billion by 2050. The global food value chain needs to transform
by focusing on precision, added value, integration, and sustainability. Nutritional expertise will
play a key role in this transformation and Nutreco is both well placed and highly motivated to
deliver the solutions to support customers through change.

Animal protein markets are growing, with fish-based proteins the largest driver and poultry
offering the most potential for development. Emerging markets will see the highest growth in

- protein production, even as western markets stagnate. Nutreco’s core market of shrimp is also

showing strong growth.prospects, as are the feed additive and young animal.feed markets.

Nutreco is pursuing a strategy it believes will position the brand as a leading provider of
functional and nutritional solutions for sustainable farming. A detailed roadmap outlines
how the company plans to implement this strategy and achieve goals related to safety,
sustainability, staff engagement, diversity, and top- and bottom-line growth.

This strategy consists of three key elements. The first is a focus on improving cost
competitiveness: under the new leadership of Fulco van Lede a restructuring of the
organisation was initiated, by addressing cost structures, centralising functions and services
aimed to create a more efficient organisation and to achieve significant cost savings.
Second, Nutreco will invest in improving its portfolio of higher added-value products such

as feed additives and young animal feed, as well as in digital initiatives to support both

‘customers and internal operations. Third, the company will also actively invest in building or

strengthening leading positions in existing markets, white continuing to establish a presence
in growth markets.

2021 was a year of challenge and uncertainty due to new outbreaks of COVID-19, African Swine
Fever, and Avian Influenza. Next to ongoing restrictions in tourism and Horeca, commodity
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prices were high and sales prices low. In particular Trouw Nutrition was severely impacted.
In addition, its Spanish operations were impacted by low swine prices. Also in Spain, an
unforeseen-negative-outcome-of a tax case significantly affected-net-results. The.price of
both wheat and soy, which represent a large share of Nutreco’s spend, hit-nine-year highs in
November: As these cost hikes could not be immediately or fully passed on to customers, they
had a direct and significant impact on gross margins. A recovery in demand from the second
half of 2021 led to supply-chain bottlenecks and labour shortages.

Despite these challenges, Nutreco was able to minimise disruption and supply customers with
high quality products and services. This was the result of a sustained focus on operational
and commercial excellence, as well as close co-ordination with customers and suppliers.
Efforts also continued to source raw materials more sustainably. Volumes were boosted by
-a-combination. of rising demand,.especially in.the Ecuadorian-shrimp feed business, and by

;,higher.prices-_ s amans oL wTire e oz sos Twa rres m o wmiet w3 wmm ase e 2t 1L ciw 3 m scm s

The expansion of operations into growth markets continued with the acquisition of Bigsal, a
ruminant nutrition company in Brazil's fastest-growing beef cattle region; Nutrimin, a leading
supplier of farm minerals to Denmark’s swine sector, and a platform for growth for specialty
products in the growing ‘home-mixing’ segment; and a dedicated fish feed plant in Tasmania.
The latter provided an immediate lift in production capacity at a time of strong market growth,
which is expected to continue in the longer term. Furthermore, a joint-venture agreement has
been signed with Unga, establishing a foothold in the growth markets of Kenya and Uganda.

NuFrontiers, Nutreco's venture capital and investment team, continues to fuel the company’s
innovation pipeline by investing in technology start-ups, scale-ups, projects, and partnerships.
2021 saw investments in Proteon, a Poland-based scale-up developing animal health solutions
based on bacteriophages; Stellapps, an India-based end-to-end dairy technotogy solutions
company; and further investments in sustainable aquaculture farming companies.

Innovation remains an important driver of future growth, in developing new feed solutions and
products that help customers to operate more efficiently. in 2021, four new global products
were-launched-underthe-Skretting-brand-for-aquaculture-species.. —~—-:. ..=..

On the digital side, Skretting’s AquaSim team launched a pocket version of the AquaSim
Advisor, which can be used offline to support a greater number of smallholder fish farmers in
Africa. Skretting also invested in the construction of a new shrimp research facility in Ecuador.

The Trouw Nutrition brand continued to focus on driving growth in young animal feed with the
introduction of several new promising feed and digital products.

Nutreco’s operational performance strongly decreased in 2021. This resuits from the very
challenging market environment Nutreco experienced as the economic recovery resulted in

. stretched supply-chains-and a strong increase-in-raw material-costs which could not all

be passed on to customers. Margins further came under pressure as specific price points
decreased strongly, for example the swine prices in Spain. Beyond these effects Net Income
was further strongly impacted by an unforeseen negative legal outcome of a tax case.

Kiwa is an independent global supplier of Testing, Inspection and Certification (TIC) services
across a wide variety of international markets from renewable energy to food, feed & farm;
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industrial safety to cyber security; building & construction to drinking water. Alongside these
core activities, Kiwa also provides education and training courses, R&D technical consultancy,
and data services. To safeguard the company’s objectivity, these latter activities are strictly
separated from the core TIC offering.

Globalisation has led to a growing need for trust.in all aspects of international manufacturing
and trade. This requires measurable, tangible proof to substantiate claims related to the
quality, health, safety, sustainability, and reliability of people, products, and services. Kiwa
provides this impartial verification through laboratory testing, statutory inspection, auditing,
calibration, and certification based on widely-supported and independently-defined standards
and requirements. In doing so, it helps to make clear comparisons between - and to build trust
in - organisations. Kiwa itself is supervised by multiple accreditation bodies and authorities
such as the EU.

As the value of trust increases around the world, Kiwa’'s short- and mid-term business strategy
focuses on expanding the service portfolio and geographical reach to achieve the right balance
of local density and global-scale. The current strategic plan aims to at least double annual
turnover through organic growth and acquisition, making sure that the company remains an
independent and significant player within a consolidating, globalising TIC market.

As part of this strategy, the company has defined a business transformation programme to
harmonise internal processes and create a robust structure. The extensive programme covers
all field services, the certification and inspection processes, laboratory services, education,
and financial and back-office processes - in terms of both software and, more importantly,
internationally-aligned work practices. The entire customer journey from orientation to
payment, meanwhile, will be incorporated into a single comprehensive business flow. A phased
introduction got underway in 2020 with the programme rolling out in Belgium, the Netherlands,
Germany, and Spain.

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic, the strategy has proven achievable. While the coronavirus
had only limited impact on Kiwa's business or financial health, it did have a profound impact
on colleagues around the globe. With numerous inspection and audit visits postponed due to
government-imposed restrictions, Kiwa employees ‘in the field' in particular required a high
level of flexibility, quickly learning to adapt by working via online video.

To further support growth, the first North American company was acquired at the beginning of
2021: Photovoltaic Evolution Labs (PVEL), based in California, offers solar panel testing and
consultancy services.

This was followed by Dutch-based EMC &-electrical lab DARE!! and cyber security organisation
Hudson Cybertec; Polish agri-food TIC Cobico; German companies ZERTPUNKT, an education
certification specialist, and Wijnveld Ingenieure, a fire safety outfit; Valiguard in Sweden and
CyD in Ecuador, both active in agri-food; Australian system certification provider GlobalCert;
Spanish system certification provider IVAC; and the UK fire safety expert IFC. Existing stakes
in TIC companies across the globe were also increased, most notably a majority in Chinese
system certification company BCC, to be finalised in the first quarter.of 2022.

Until October 2021, NPM Capital was the principal investor in Kiwa, allowing the company to
evolve from a Dutch into a European and then into a truly global TIC organisation employing
over 5,000 colleagues in 35 countries across Europe, Latin America, and the Asia-Pacific
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region. In October, Kiwa became part of the SHV family of companies to drive progress to
the next stage and safeguard an independent future. Since then, an integration process was
started, deepening alignment on Kiwa’s strategy and to roll out the SHV support framework: In
addition, several activities were organised to get Kiwa colleagues acquainted with SHV.

Two major acquisitions soon followed. At the beginning of December, a merger was concluded
with Belgium'’s leading TIC company Vingotte, strengthening Kiwa’s footprint in the Benelux.
The transaction is subject to approval of the relevant authorities in the Netherlands and
Belgium. Then, towards the end of the month, Intega—offering testing and inspection activities
in construction and infrastructure —was acquired and delisted from the Australian stock
exchange. This acquisition has added complementary services in a well-known industry as well
as a local presence on the ground in Australia, New Zealand, the USA, and Canada.

The improved net sales in 2021 compared to 2020 were driven by increased revenue within
Europe despite productivity challenges in the Nordics following prolonged COVID-19-impact.
Kiwa was part of SHV's consolidated figures since July 2021 and made a positive contribution
to net income in this period.

NPM Capital invests in medium-sized companies in the Benelux region, providing the support
they need to move to the next phase of growth. Benefitting from all the capabilities required to
facilitate flexible, generally long-term, investment horizons, the portfolio currently comprises
both majority and minority stakes in 24 companies and includes growth capital.

NPM Capital focuses on four investment themes, each underpinned by a strong set of
investment criteria: Everything is Digital, Feeding the Worid, Future of Energy, and Healthy Life.
In addition to in-house studies and expert support, advisory boards also help the company to
increase its knowledge and its network around these themes.

2021 saw most segments of the economy rebound-from COVID-19, helped by the stimulus
money supply of central banks as well as an easing of restrictions-during the summer. The
resulting economic growth boosted a transaction-market.that-reached new-heights building
on the momentum achieved in the fourth. quarter of 2020. Low and stable interest rates, an
ever increasing influx.of money. into Private Equity in search of returns, and lenders eager
to provide credit for acquisitions all sustained high valuations. These same circumstances,
however, also intensified the challenge in identifying new investments with the potential to
generate attractive returns.

Strong economic growth had a positive impact on the activities of NPM Capital participations,

---increasing-both revenues-and-financial-performance. Attracting skilled-people and managing

the supply chain posed major challenges for many companies during the year. On-several
occasions, NPM Capital supplied businesses with the growth capital required to expand - both
organically and via add-on-acquisitions. - ———

2021 was a very successful year for NPM with many divestments taking pltace. The sale of
Mentaal Beter, a chain of mental health support practices, was followed by that of Deli Home, a
supplier of wood, closets, and various other supplies to the DIY industry. Next came exits from
HAK, a supplier of vegetables in glass and pouches, and Nile Dutch Holding, a shipping line
with a West African focus.
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In August NPM sold the majority of its stake in Bergman Holding, a leading privately-held chain
of medical clinics in the Netherlands. Finally, NPM sold its majority stake in Kiwa to SHV, a
transaction that provides Kiwa with an ideal foundation for accelerating-growth. At the close of
the year, NPM came to an agreement to sell its stake in Hendrix Genetics. The completion is
expected to take place in the first half of 2022.

Despite the crowded market, NPM was able to make a number of promising investments
as well.

In September, the delisting of ICT Group led to NPM Capital acquiring this renowned industrial
automation company active in Western Europe - and in the Netherlands in particular.

NPM also announced the completion of its acquisition of-Infinitas Learning, owner of
established educational content and service providers such as Noordhoff (Netherlands),
Plantijn (Belgium), and Liber (Sweden). These leading companies have all developed strong
positions in the provision of content that has helped generations of students to master their
studies. A minority stake in Infinitas was subsequently sold to Rabo Participations and PGGM,
a large Dutch pension provider.

NPM was also able to take a minority stake in Kubo, an international turn-key supplier of
glasshouses, aimed at continuing that company’s strong growth trajectory.

In contrast to 2020, NPM capital was able to present a positive net income in 2021 mainly
driven by capital gains on above mentioned exits resulting in a significant contribution to SHV's
net income.

Established in 2019 following the merger of Oranje-Nassau Energie and Dyas, ONE-Dyas is the
largest privately-owned Dutch oil & gas exploration and production company. Its core interests
are in North Sea oil and gas.

Company strategy.is focused on developing.an already strong portfolio of‘operated and
non-operated assets and investments in the UK, the Netherlands, Norway, Denmark, and
Gabon. ONE-Dyas is uniquely positioned'to take growth opportunities and create both short-
and long-term value for all stakeholders - including SHV, which owns a 49% share of the entity.

The last year has seen a resurgence of growth opportunities in North Sea oil and gas
production. While gas prices reached a record low in 2020, the trend reversed in 2021 as
commodities recorded unprecedented growth.

2021 also saw number of positive developments on the operational front. The operated
portfolio was buoyed by two exploration successes, in addition to a highly satisfactory set

. of results from producing assets. As for the non-operated portfolio, the Arran field came

on stream and the Buzzard Phase |l development was successfully completed. Further
investments were also made, most notably in Breagh, an onshore electrified compression
project in the UK; and Nova, an oil development project powered by electrical energy

in Norway.

ONE-Dyas continued to roll out and impiement its Environmental Social and Governance (ESG)
strategy over the course of the year. This has gone beyond merely embedding a new approach
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into the organisation, especially since the ‘S’ and the ‘G’ already played an intrinsic part
of company culture. The main focus is now on the ‘E’, which for ONE-Dyas represents the
energy transition.

This focus is making a positive impact in all kinds of ways, such as seeing shareholders,
financiers, partners, and suppliers ali willing to support an entrepreneurial approach to the
energy transition. From electric drilling powered by offshore wind energy to using biofuel on the
platforms, ONE-Dyas is dedicated to producing local gas, which plays a key role in the energy
transition, with near-zero emissions.

Steady production, alongside rising oil and gas prices and operational expenses and capital
expenses in line with forecasts, has resulted in a very successful year both in terms of cash flow

and net profit.
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Five year overview

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
-Results, in millions of euro - - . -
. Net sales . 19,871 20,068 19,172} _ 16,723 20,002
-+ -Income from operations 503 613 | - 305 - 602 525
Income 1,253 502 434 488 979
Amortisation, depreciation and impairments 770 766 680 663 671
Income taxes 219 168 100 138 273
Dividend 289 289 251 233 2N
Cash flows, in millions of euro
Changes in working capital (312) (276} (88) 345 (323)
Operational cash flow 1,864 806 |-=---927 | .--1;063. 1,060
Investment cash flow (1,093)] (1,153) (628) (701) (1,292)
Financing cash flow (285) (141) ( 485) (121) 161
Financial position, in millions of euro
Shareholders’ equity 6,208 6,175 6,381 6,331 6,438
Equity of the Group 6,378 6,279 6,489 6,412 6,520
Total assets 13,756 13,211 13,078 12,535 14,722
Ratio information
Income as a percentage of
shareholders’ equity 20% 8% 7% 8% 15%
Equity of the Group as a percentage of
total assets 46% 48% 50% 51% 44%
Current assets in relation to short-
term liabilities 1.45 1.33 1.32 1.39 1.16
Employees, at December 31
Nominal number 60,100 59,000 57,500 51,600 56,750
Amounts per share _
Income 172.36 68.96 59.68 67.13 134.55
Dividend 39.75 39.75 34.50 32.00 40.00
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The figures for the years 2017 - 2020 have been restated.
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Consolidated balance sheets at December 31

(after proposed distribution of income)
In millions of euro

Assets 2021 2020
' Intangible fixed assets 1,311.3 900.9
Tangible fixed assets - - . : . 4,2741 3,905.4
Financial fixed-assets - - - Sem e e T Soe- .- 2,790.2 2,663.1
«--.---- Fixed assets- - - - : ] - - 8,375.6 7,469.4
Inventories 1,776.4 1,314.3
Projects in progress 0.1
Trade and other receivables 3,446.2 2,565.2
Money market investments 10.7 6.1
Cash and cash equivalents 1,112.8 1,179.6
Current assets 6,346.2 5,065.2
Total 14,721.8 12,534.6
Equity Shareholders’ equity 6,437.9 6,331.4
and liabilities Minority interests 82.3 80.6
Equity of the Group 6,520.2 6,412.0
Provisions 1,266.1 1,409.7
Non-current liabilities . 1,482.7 1,075.4
. Current liabilities . . = o 5,452.8 3,637.5
Total . 14,721.8 12,534.6

The notes on pages 57 to 106 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statements of income

(comparative figures for 2020 have been restated)
In millions of euro

2021 2020
Net sales 20,002.0 16,723.2
-Other income 87.1 280.2
Total revenue 20,089.1 17,003.4
Cost of raw_materials and.consumables. _ _ . _ ._._ _.. ____ _.._.._._....(14,413.3) . (11,711.9)
Cost of outsourced work and other external cost (2,157.2) (1,847.2)
Salaries and wages (1,909.9) (1,740.5)
Social security and pension cost (343.0) (387.3)
Other operating expenses (69.3) (51.5)
Amortisation, depreciation and impairments (671.4) (663.0)
Total operating expenses (19,564.1)| ( 16,401.4)
Income from operations 525.0 602.0
Income from private equity investments 652.3 10.9
Income.from.investments.in affiliates - ... 2027 . (72.7)
Interest income and expenses (92.7) (67.2)
Other financial results 10.3 169.4
Total financial income 752.6 40.4
Income before income taxes 1,277.6 642.4
Income taxes (273.3) (137.6)
Income of the Group 1,004.3 504.8
Income to minority interests (25.8) (17.0)
Income 978.5:1 487.8

2021 2020
Income 978.5 | 487.8
Foreign currency translation - 1415 (321.8)
Changes in unrealised derivatives - - - - - e - - 55.9 51.3
Related tax (20.6) (16.3)
Total of direct movements in equity 176.8 (286.8)
Comprehensive income i o ~ 71,155.3 201.0

The notes on pages 57 to 106 are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated statements of cash flow

In milions of euro

Operational 2021 2020

cash flow Income from operations 525.0 602.0
"Income from privaté equity investments 632.3 10.9
Adjustments for:
- Amortisation, depreciation and impairments 671.4 663.0
- Changes in provisions . (215.6)| - (79.9)
- Non-cash in income from financial fixed assets (17.1) 27.7
- Result on sale of fixed assets (87.1) (273.2)
Cash flow from operations before changes in working capital 1,508.9 950.5
Changes in:
- Inventories (433.6) 169.1
- Trade receivables . (486.3) 231.9
- Trade payables 515.1 (41.2)
- Other receivables, payables and accruals 81.6 (14.4)
Total changes in working capital (323.2) 345.4
Net interest and other financial results paid and received (37.4) (100.1)
Dividends received from investments in affiliates 56.3 16.5
Net taxes paid and received ' (157.1) (162.8)
Other changes 12.6 133
Net cash flow from operating activities 1,060.1 1,062.8

investment Investments:

cash flow - Tangible fixed assets (761.8) (591.3)
- Acquisitions and intangible assets (579.5) (468.3)
- Investments in affiliates, private equity investments and trade investments (572.1) (362.0)
Disposals:
- Tangible fixed assets 215.4 4111
- Divestments and intangible assets 91.4 268.2
- Divestments in affiliates, private equity investments and trade investments 314.5 41.4
Net cash flow from investing activities (1,292.1) { 700.9)

Financing © " Dividends t6 ownshareholders - - (232.7) (223.6)

cash flow Dividends to minority shareholders (23.4) (37.9)
Capital changes by own and minority shareholders 58.9 0.3
Net cash flow to/from shareholders ’ (197.2) (261.2)
Issuance of non-current liabilities 678.8 349.5
Redemption of non-current liabilities ( 440.6) (96.2)
Changes in payables to banks 119.6 (113.1)
Net cash flow to/from banks 357.8 140.2
Net cash flow from financing activities 160.6 (121.0)
Net cash flow (71.49) 240.9
Currency exchange differences © 9.2 (62.2)
Change in cash and cash equivalents (62.2) 178.7

56  Financial Statements 2021




General

57

Basis for consolidation, valuation of assets and
liabilities and determination of income

SHV Holdings N.V., having its legal address at Boulevard Gob. N. Debrot 36 in Kralendijk,
Bonaire, is a limited liability company under Dutch law. The head office is located at Rijnkade
1 in Utrecht, the Netherlands. SHV (‘the Group’) is composed of SHV Holdings N.V. (‘SHV
Holdings’ or‘the Company*)and its group companies (‘the Groups®),-being SHV Energy, Makro,
Mammoet, ERIKS, Nutreco, Kiwa, NPM Capital and One-Dyas. The-Group consists of a number

.of operational activities.and selected investment activities..The operational activities are in the

areas of energy distribution and low-carbon and clean energy solutions, food cash-and-carry,
heavy lifting and transport, industrial services, animal nutrition and aqua feed and Testing,
Inspection and Certification (TIC). Further, SHV invests in medium-sized companies in the
Benelux region, and is involved as investor in the exploration and production of oil & gas
primarily in the North Sea. ‘

Developments in the Group and changes in the scope of consolidation

On May 28, 2021 SHV Energy acquired 79,8% of the shares and voting rights in SunSource
Energy Private Ltd. SunSource is a leading provider of distributed solar energy for commercial
and industrial customers in India. SHV Energy has a put / call option to acquire the remaining
shares in 2024 or 2025.

On June 30, 2021 SHV Energy divested all off its LPG activities in the Netherlands via the sale
of 100% of the shares in Primagaz Nederland B.V. to DCC Energy Nederland B.V.

On July 1, 2021, Nutreco completed an agreement to acquire all shares in Bigsal Nutricao
Animal from H.I.G Captal. Bigsal is a market leader in the animal nutrition market in northern
Brazil with a complete portfolio that ranges from farm minerals to complete feeds focused on
beef and dairy cattle.

As per the end of June 2021, the decision was taken to no longer hold Kiwa as a private
equity investment and thereby withdrawing the defined exit strategy from a SHV perspective.
As aresult, Kiwa is treated as a group company and fully consolidated into the consolidated

-accounts of-SHV-as-of the beginning of-duly-2021: On-July 9;2021-an-agreement was reached

on the acquisition by SHV of a 9.5% interest in Kiwa from management of Kiwa in addition to
the 80% already held by NPM Capital in the previously considered private equity investment.
The transaction was closed on October 15, 2021, after which the shares owned by NPM Capital
were transferred to SHV.

On October 29, 2021, SHV Energy divested all off its timber activities in Northern ireland via the
sale of 100% of the shares in Balcas Ltd. to Highlands and Island Enterprise.

Furthermore, SHV Energy acquired several companies and activities engaged in the local
downstream business in the North-Eastern part of Taxas in the United States of America on
November 30, 2021.

On December 1, 2021, Vingotte decided to join the international Kiwa group'in order to

build-a strong, shared portfolio of-services. Vingotte is the largest inspection, auditing
and certification company in Belgium. The closing of the merger is subject to local
regulatory approval and completion of the transaction is expected in the first half year of 2022.
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Basis for consolidation, valuation of assets and liabilities and determination of income

On December 7, 2021, Nutreco completed the acquisition of all shares in Nutrimin, one of
the leading Danish producers of farm minerals, concentrates and piglet feed, following the
approval of the Danish authorities.

After approval from the Australian authorities, Kiwa delisted and acquired all ordinary shares

.of Intega.Group, on December 20, 2021..Intega is a provider of Assurance, Testing, Inspection,

Certification services with a focus on the infrastructure and energy sectors primarily operating
in Australia, the United States of America, Canada and New Zealand.

The total amount spent on acquisitions amounts to € 580 million and represents, amohgst
others, Kiwa and Intega.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements are stated in euro and are prepared in accordance
with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code based on 'Wet Formeel Buitenlandse
Vennootschappen'. All financial information in euro has been stated in millions of euro, uniess
otherwise indicated. These financial statements cover the year 2021, which ended at the
balance sheet date of December 31, 2021.

Application of Section 402, Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code

The financial information of the parent company is included in the consolidated financial
statements. For this reason, in accordance with Section 402, Book 2 of the Dutch Civii Code,
the separate statements of income of the company exclusively state the share of the result of
participating interests after tax and the other result after tax.

Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the going concern assumption.

General accounting policies

Assets and liabilities are measured at nominal value, unless otherwise measured in the further
principles. The accounting policies applied for measurement of assets and liabilities and
determination of results are based on the historical cost convention, unless otherwise stated
in the accounting principles. An asset is recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable
that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the
Company and the asset has a cost price or value of which the amount can be measured reliably.
Assets that are not recognised in the balance sheet are considered as off-balance sheet assets.

A liability is recognised in the balance sheet when it is expected that the settlement of an
existing obligation will result in an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits and the
amount necessary to settle this obligation can be measured reliably. Provisions are included
in the liabilities of the Company. Liabilities that are not recognised in the balance sheet are
considered as off-balance sheet liabilities. :

An asset or liability that is recognised in the balance sheet, remains recognised in the balance
sheet if a transaction (with respect to the asset or liability) does not lead to a major change in
the economic reality with respect to the asset or liability. Such transactions will not result in the
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recognition. of results. When assessing whether there is a significant change in the economic
circumstances, the economic benefits and risks that are likely to occur in practice are taken

into account. The benefits and risks that are not reasonably expected to occur, are not taken
into account in this assessment.

.. An.asset.or.liability is.no.longer.recognised in the.balance.sheet, and thus derecognised, when

atransactionresults in all or substantially all rights to economic benefits and all or substantially
all of the risks related to the asset or liability are transferred to a third party. In such cases,
the results of the transaction are directly recognised in the statement of income, taking into
account any provisions related to the transaction.

If assets are recognised of which the Company does not have the legal ownership, this fact is
being.disclosed. . R . e e e

Income is recognised in the profit and loss account when an increase in future.economic
potential related to an increase in an asset or a decrease of a liability arises of which the size
can be measured reliably.

Expenses are recognised when a decrease in the economic potential related to a decrease
in an asset or an increase of a liability arises of which the size can be measured with
sufficient reliability.

Income and expenses are allocated to the period to which they relate. Income is recognised
when the Company has transferred the significant risks and rewards of ownership to the buyer.

For the preparation of the 2021 financial statements, SHV has changes it's accounting policies
and principles as applied in relation to (1) the cash flow statement and (2) recognition and
subsequent measurement of written put / call options with respect to minority interests
(non-controlling interests in consolidated group companies).

Up to.prior. year.-changes in.cash-and.cash-equivalents.within the-consolidated statement of
cash flows were presented as reconciling items related to 'changes in consolidation' within

. the change-in.cash and.cash-equivalents.-As.0f-2021.-this.is-presented as part of the cash

flows from investing activities and considered in the amounts presented as acquisitions and
divestments. This change is the result of changes to Dutch Accounting Standards, effective
for 2021 reporting periods. As a result, an amount of € 3.3 million has been reclassified within
the consolidated statement of cash flows in the comparative figures from change in cash
and cash equivalents.to the aforementioned items in investing-activities. The impact on the
investment cash flow of this accounting policy for the financial information of the period 2021
amounts to positive € 96.5 million in terms of a reclassfication from the change in cash and cash
equivalents to the items in investing activities. Similar impact (in nature) is expected for future

-reporting-periods. - --- o e

Until 1 January 2021, SHV accounted for-the initial recognition and subsequent measurement
of changes in liabilities related to put / calt options (presented as part of provisions) as interest
expenses in the statement of income. The use of and exposure to written put / call options
on non-controlling interests was previously limited to activities within Nutreco. However, as
such instruments are expected to be used more throughout SHV, the accounting policy was
re-assessed and it was concluded to align the accounting treatment of these instruments
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Basis for consolidation, valuation of assets and liabilities and detarmination of income

(both initial recognition as well as subsequent measurement changes in the related liability)
more with the existing policy applied with respect to buy-outs of minority shareholders of
consolidated group companies, which are considered shareholder transactions and of which
the effects are recognised in other reserves within equity. As a result of this assessment, SHV
now recognises both the effects of initial recognition, as well as subsequent measurement
changes of the liabilities arising from written put / call options with respect to minority interests
of consolidated group companies in other reserves within equity, except for the accretion of
interest (the unwinding of discounting of the related liability), which is accounted for as part
of interest expenses within the statement of income. As a result of this change in accounting
policy, the comparative information has been revised and the effects thereof amount to

€ 18.6 million in lower interest expenses and € 18.6 million in additional movements directly
accounted for in other reserves within equity. The impacton on other reserves within equity
of this accounting policy for the financial information of the reporting period 2021 amounts to
€ 12 million in lower interest expenses and movements directly accounted for in other reserves
within equity. Similar impact (in nature) is expected for future reporting periods.

Several reclassifications within the face of the consolidated statement of income have been
made in order to closer align with the categorical model within the Decree Model Financial
Statements. For comparison purposes, the comparative information has been revised. In
doing so, previously presented ‘third party costs' and 'other operating expenses' have been
reclassified in accordance with their nature to 'cost of raw materials, consumables and
costs to resale' and 'cost of outsourced work and other external costs'. Remaining 'other
operating expenses' that remain are related to costs that in their nature are not part of 'cost
of raw materials and consumables' and 'cost of outsourced work and other external costs’'.
Furthermore, previously aggregated 'social security and pension costs' within 'salaries and
wages' are presented separately on the face of the consolidated statement of income. The
related notes to the consolidated statement of income have been altered in response of the
changes described above.

Finally, related tax on direct movements in equity within the consolidated statement have been

-presented separately from the related movements, which are as such presented gross and

excluding their related tax effects.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial data of the Company, its group
companies and other companies over which the Company has control. Control exists when the
Company has the power, directly or indirectly, to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Group companies are participating
interests in which the Company has a direct or indirect controlling interest.

In assessing whether controlling interest exists, potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable are taken into account. Group companies exclusively acquired with an exit strategy
within the foreseeable future are exempted from consolidation. The financial statements of
subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date that control
can be exercised until the date that control ceases.

The consolidated financial statements include the separate financial statements of:
* SHV Holdings N.V_;
e companies over which SHV has control.
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Total assets, liabilities and results of operations of these companies are included in the

consolidation. Minority interests in consolidated companies are presented separately within
- group equity separate-from parent’s equity. - :

--Assets, liabilities-and results of-the-above companies are calculated-in-accordance with the

accounting principles that apply for the financial statements of SHV Holdings N-V.

Investments in afflllates mclude compames in which SHV:

¢ does not have control;

e has control along with other participants (joint ventures);

¢ has significant influence (to be presumed if SHV holds an interest of 20% or more); and
¢ intends to maintain a long-term.relationship for the benefit of SHV's own activities.

Interests in companies resulting from private equity activities are included in private

equity investments. The financial statements of companies in which SHV holds a private
equity interest and exercises predominant. management influence are, in accordance with
Section 2: 407 sub 1c of the Dutch Civil Code, not included in the consolidated financial
statements, as these interests are not intended to be permanently held. For these companies
SHV has defined an exit strategy. Interests in other companies are included insinvestments. A
complete list of shareholdings has been filed with the Chamber of Commerce in Utrecht.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, intercompany transactions, profits and
balances among group companies are eliminated. The results on transactions between group
companies are eliminated to the extent that the results are not realised through transactions
with third parties outside the group and no impairment loss is applicable.

The SHV group companies are listed on pages 117 and 118. In accordance with article 379 sub
5 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, a complete list of sharehoidings has been filed with the
Chamber of Commerce in Utrecht.

Acquisitions and disposals of companies

Acquired companies in which. SHV owns an-interest of.20%-or more, and intends to maintain a
long-term relationship for the benefit of SHV's own activities, are initially valued at SHV's share
in the fair value of the net assets of these companies at the date of acquisition.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in an acquired company, in which SHV
exercises predominant management influence, are recognised in the consolidated financial
statements from the acquisition date, being the moment from which control can be exercised
- . --. in-the-acquired-company: Group.companies continue to be consolidated until control ceases
to exist. The acquisition price consists of the cash consideration, or equivalent, agreed
for acquiring the company plus any directly attributable external expenses. Refer to the
accounting policy under the heading 'Intangible fixed assets' for the recognition.of.positive
.- —-—-0rnegative-goodwill resulting-from-an acquisition.-Interest-in.companies available for sale are
stated at the lower of their carrymg amount and net realisable value.
If an acquisition is achieved in stages (step acquisitions), the consideration is the sum of the
considerations paid for the individual transactions. The fair values of the acquired company’s
identifiable assets and liabilities are subsequently determined to the date on which each
individual acquisition is included in the acquiring company’s financial statements. Only when
control is obtained in the acquired company, the identifiable assets and liabilities of the already
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held interest are remeasered at fair value. Revaluation differences are accounted forin a
revaluation reserve in shareholders equity, taking into account the effects of deferred tax
liabilities in retation to assets which are revaluated to a higher fair value.

The revaluation reserve is decreased with-the amount recognised in the reserve in relation to a
certain asset, which is being derecognised from the balance sheet.

If revaluations of assets have been recognised in the revaluation reserve, decrease in value
of these assets, like depreciation, amortisation and impairments are charged against the
revaluation reserve, taking into account any deferred tax effect.

In case of contribution in or sale of assets by the Company to a joint venture, the company
recognises that part of the result in the statement of income that corresponds to the relative
share of the other participants in the joint venture. No result is recognised if the non-monetary
assets contributed by the participants approximately equal each other in terms of type, use
(same business activity) and fair value. Consequently, the Company recognises any loss on
current assets or an impairment of fixed assets immediately and in full.

Capital gains and losses resulting from the (partly) sale of companies represents the difference
between the selling price of the sold companies and the (relative share in) carrying value

of the net assets of these companies at the date of divestment, deducted by the external
costs directly related to the (partly) sale and are recognised in the statement of income under
financial results.

When the Company has a controlling interest and the proportion of the equity held by the
minority shareholder changes, the Company adjusts the carrying amounts of the controlling
and the minority interests to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiary. The
Company recognises any difference between the amount by which the minority interests are
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received, directly in equity.

When a company enters into a so called put / call arrangement with third party shareholders,
whereby the company has the obligation to buy (written put) the third party share at the moment
the third party shareholder exercises its right to sell its shareholding.to the company (put), this
written option qualifies as a contract resulting in the obligation to buy equity instruments.

In case that the minority shareholder, based on the contract, does not have the access to the
returns associated with the underlying ownership interest, a third party share as part of group
equity cannot be accounted for. In case that the minority shareholder, based on the contract,
does have the access to the returns associated with the underlying ownership interest, a third
party share as part of group equity is accounted for.

~When, the put option should be settled in cash or other financial assets, a liability should

be recognised. Initially at fair value, which represents the discounted value of the expected
outflow of resources to settle the option. At first recognition the liability is recognised against
a change in the other reserves within equity. Future changes in the valuation as a result of
changes in the expected outflow of resources are recorded in the other reserves within equity.
The discount effect has to be recorded in the income statement as part of the financial result.
This should be consistently applied.
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Related party transactions

s Transactions with related parties are assumed when a relationship exists between the

- --- --—Company-and a natural person-or-entity-that-is-affiliated-with-the Company: This includes,
among others, the relationship between-the Company and its subsidiaries, shareholders,

.--- -- .directors.and.key management.personnel. Transactions.are transfers.of resources,.services or
obligations, regardless whether any amount has been charged. Significant transactions with
related parties are disclosed in the notes insofar as they are not transacted under normal
market conditions. The nature, extent and other information are disclosed if this is required to
provide a true and fair view.

Foreign currency ~Functional currernicy

—~--~——|temsincluded-in the:financial'statements of.group companies-are‘measured-usingthe currency
of the primary economic environment in which the respective group company operates.
The consolidated financial statements are presented in euro, which.is the functional and
‘presentation currency of the Company: Ail amounts have been roundedto'the nearest million,
unless stated otherwise.

Transactions and balances

At initial recognition transactions denominated in foreign currency are translated into the
relevant functional currency of the group companies at the exchange rate applying on the
transaction date.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency are translated at the balance
sheet date into the functional currency at the exchange rate applying on that date. Translation
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of monetary items are taken to the statement
-of income in the period the translation gain or loss occurs-Exempted from this-are gains

''''' —and-losses that are-part of-a net-investment-in-a foreign operation--Non=monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currency that are stated at historical cost are translated into functional
currency at the applicable exchange rates applying on the transaction date.

Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities, including fair value adjustments, that are part of the net investment
in a-foreign operation are translated into euro at the exchange rate prevailing-at the balance
- ----.. . Sheet date. The revenues and expenses of such a foreign operation are translated into euro
at the average exchange rate for the year. Currency translation differences are recognised in
the translation reserve within shareholders’ equity. Goodwill resulting from the acquisition of
- .aforeign operation translated into functional currency at the exchange rate.at the transaction
- -— —-date. Fairvalue-adjustments related to business combinations up financial year 2019 are
translated at the transaction date. Fair value adjustments related to business combinations as
of financial year 2020 are translated at the closing rate per balance sheet date. When a foreign
operation is fully or partially sold, the respective amount is transferred from the translation
reserve to the profit or loss account. However, if the foreign operation is a non-wholly
owned subsidiary, then the relevant proportion of the transiation difference is allocated to
minority interests.
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Hedging of the net investment in foreign operations

For recognition of the derivatives which are concluded to offset foreign currency differences
arising between the functional currency of the foreign operation-and the Company's functional
currency the company applies hedge accounting, regardless of whether the net investment is
held directly or through an intermediate parent.

Foreign currency differences arising from the translation of a financial liability designated as a
hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation are directly recognised in equity to the extent
that the hedge is effective, and are presented in the translation reserve. To the extent that the
hedge is ineffective, such differences are recognised in the statement of income. When the
hedged net investment is disposed of, the respective amount is transferred from the translation
reserve to the profit and loss account.

The income and expenses of foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies are translated
to the functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Prior to translating

the financial statements of foreign operations in hyperinflationary economies, their financial
statements are restated to account for changes in the local inflation indices. The adjustment is
based on relevant price indices at the reporting date. In case of hyperinflationary economies,
the financial statements are adjusted for the effects of changing prices of local currency. The
translation to the functional currency is recorded in equity and the restatement for changes in
local inflation indices is recorded in the statements of income. Hyperinflation is accounted for
the operations in Venezuela and Argentina.

Impairment of non-financial assets

For non-financial assets an assessment is made as of each balance sheet date as to whether
there are indications that these assets are subject to impairment. If there are such indications,
then the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated. The recoverable amount is the higher
of the value in use and the net realisable value. If it is not possible to assess the recoverable
amount for an individual asset, the recoverable amount is assessed for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

If the carrying value of an asset or cash-generating unit is higher than the recoverable

‘amount, an impairment loss is recorded for the difference between the carrying value and the

recoverable amount. If there is an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the loss is first
allocated to goodwill allocatedto the cash-generating unit. Any residual loss is aliocated to the
other assets of the unit pro rata to their book values.

An assessment is made on each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
impairment loss that was recorded in previous years has decreased. If there is such indication,
the recoverable amount of the related asset or cash-generating unit is estimated.

Reversal of an impairment loss that was recorded in the past only takes place in case of a
change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount since the recording of the
last impairment loss.
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In such case, the carrying value of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased up to the
amount of the estimated recoverable amount, but not higher than the carrying value that would
have applied (after depreciation; amortisation and depletion) if:no impairment loss had been
-‘recorded-in-prior years for-the-asset-or-cash=generating unit:- - :

. Losses resulting from. goodwill.impairments.recorded.in.the past.are:not.reversed.

Impairment of financial assets

A financial asset that is not measured at (1) fair value with value changes reflected in the
statement of income, or at (2) amortised cost or lower market value, is assessed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence that it is'impaired. A
financial asset is impaired if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or
more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset, with negative impact on the

. .estimated future cash flows of that.asset, which.can be estimated reliably. -

65

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes default or delinquency by a
debtor, indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy, adverse changes in the
payment status of borrowers or issuers or the disappearance of an active market for a security.
Indicators for subjective evidence are also considered together with objective evidence of
impairments, such as the disappearance of an active market because an entity’s financial
instruments are no longer publicly traded, a downgrade of an entity’s credit rating or a decline
in the fair value of a financial asset below its cost or amortised cost.

The entity considers evidence of impairment for financial assets measured at amortised cost
(loans and receivables and financial assets that are held to maturity) at both a specific asset
and collective level. All individually significant assets are assessed for specific impairment.

" Those individually significant assets found not to be specifically impaired-and assets that are
not individually significant are then collectively assessed for impairment by grouping together
assets with similar risk characteristics. In. assessing coliective impairment, the Company uses
historical trends of the probability of default, the timing of collections and the amount of loss
incurred, adjusted.for. management’s judgement:as . to-whether current-economic and credit
conditions are such that the actual losses are likely to be greater or lesser'than suggested by
historical trends. B

An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset stated at amortised cost is calculated as
the difference between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the asset’s effective interest rate.

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of income and reflected in an allowance
account against loans and receivables or investment securities held to maturity. Interest on the
impaired asset continues to be recognised by using.the asset's effective.interest rate.

Impairment losses below (amortised) cost of investments in equity instruments that are stated
at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised directly in profit or loss.

When, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss decreases, and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
decrease in impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss (up to the amount of the
original cost).
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Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying value of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases. Deferred income tax
is recorded at nominal value, calculated using tax rates at the balance sheet date or tax rates

-applicable in future years, tothe extent enacted by law: Deferred tax assets, including the tax
.loss carry. forward position, are recognised when it is probable.that.they can be offset against

future taxable income. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset in the balance
sheet if the company has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current
tax liabilities with regard to the same fiscal year, insofar the deferred tax assets relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable legal entity, or the same fiscal unity.

For taxable temporary differences related to group companies, foreign branches, associates
and interests in_joint ventures, a deferred tax liability is recognised, unless the Company is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. For deductible temporary
differences regarding group companies, foreign branches, associates and interests in joint
ventures, a deferred tax asset is only recognised in so far as it is probable that the temporary
difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that taxable profit will be available to offset
the temporary difference can be utilised.

The deferred tax assets are presented under financial fixed assets. The current part of deferred
tax assets is disclosed under financial fixed assets. Deferred tax liabilities are presented
under provisions.

Dutch pension plans

The main principle is that the pension charge to be recognised for the reporting period should
be equal to the pension contributions payable to the pension fund or insurance company
over the period. In so far as the payable contributions have not yet been paid as at balance
sheet date, a liability is recognised. If the contributions already paid exceed the payable
contributions.as at balance sheet date, areceivable is recognised to account for any repayment
by the fund or insurance company or a settlement with contributions payable in the future.

If, on the basis of an administration agreement with respect to a group plan / multi-employer
plan, there is an obligation at balance sheet date, a provision is recognised when it is probable
that the measures, which are necessary for the recovery of the existing funding ratio at
balance sheet date, will result in an outflow of resources and the amount thereof can be
estimated reliably.

If there are adjustments to rights accrued as at the balance sheet date arising from future salary
increases that are already committed to at the balance sheet date and which shall be paid by
the Company, a provision is recognised.

In addition, a provision is included as at balance sheet date for existing additional
commitments to the fund or insurance company and the employees, provided that it is likely
that there will be an outflow of funds for the settlement of the commitments and it is possible to
reliably estimate the amount of the commitments. The existence or non-existence of additional
commitments is assessed on the basis of the administration agreement concluded with the
fund, the pension agreement with the employees and other (explicit or implicit) commitments
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to employees. The liability is stated at the best estimate of the present value of the anticipated
costs of settling the commitments as at balance sheet date.

- -For-any-surplus at-the pension-fund-as at-balance sheet-date, -a receivable is recognised if the

Company has the power to withdraw this surplus, if it is“likely that the surplus will flow
to the Company and if the receivable can be reliably determined.

Foreign pension plans

Pension plans that are comparable in design and functioning to the Dutch pension system,
having a strict segregation of.the responsibilities of the.parties involved and. risk sharing
between the said parties (company, fund and members) are recognised and measured in

accordance with Dutch pension plans.

For foreign pension plans that are not comparable.in design.and.functioning-to-the Dutch
pension system, a best estimate is made of the commitment as at balance sheet date. This
commitment should then be stated on the basis-of an actuarial valuation principle generally
accepted in‘the Netherlands.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the relevant rules requires the use
of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement
in the process of applying SHV's accounting policies. The following accounting policies are in
the opinion of management the most critical for the purpose of presenting the financial position
and require estimates and assumptions:

* intangible fixed assets

e tangible fixed assets

¢ investments in affiliates

¢ private equity investments

o deferred tax assets

¢ inventories =
* receivables - .
* provisions

¢ written put / call liabilities .

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
estimates are applied prospectively. T ;

Intangible fixed -assets-are only recognised-in-the-balance sheet-when it is-probable that the
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company

and the cost of that asset can be measured reliably. Intangible fixed assets are measured at
acquisition or construction-cost, less accumulated-amortisation-and.impairment losses.

-~Expenditures made after-the initial recognition-of-an-acquired-or-constructed-intangible fixed

asset are included to the acquisition or construction cost if it is probable that the expenditures
will lead to an increase in the expected future economic benefits, and the expenditures and the
allocation to the asset can be measured reliably. If expenditures do not meet these conditions,
they are recognised as an expense in the profit and loss account.
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Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of the acquisition of the participating interest
(including transaction costs directly related to the acquisition) over the Company’s interest
in the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed of the acquired

.entity, less cumulative amortisation and impairment losses. Internally generated goodwill

is not capitalised.

Goodwill paid upon the acquisition of foreign group companies and subsidiaries is translated
at the exchange rates at the date of acquisition.

The capitalised positive goodwill is amortised on a straight-line basis over the estimated
useful life.

In case of a full or partial sale of a participating interest, the positive goodwill that can be
allocated to the sold part is written off proportionally and is charged to the book result.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in so far as incurred in respect of commercially feasible
projects. The development of an intangible fixed asset is considered commercially feasible

if the following conditions are met: the completion of the asset is technically feasible, the
Company has the intention of completing the asset and then of using or selling it (including the
availability of adequate technical, financial and other resources to achieve this), the Company
has the ability to use or sell the asset, it is probable that the asset will generate future
economic benefits, and the costs during the development phase can be determined reliably.
Development costs are measured at construction cost, less accumuiated amortisation and
impairment losses. The capitalised costs are amortised over the estimated useful life after
completion of the development phase (asset ready for usage). The costs of research and other
development costs are charged to the result in the period in which they are incurred.

Development costs include software and technology. Software and technology that are
acquired by the Company have a definite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to
the acquisition of the asset. The cost of self-constructed software includes the following:

* the cost of direct labour;

* any other costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working condition for their
intended use;

e capitalised borrowing costs. - -

A legal reserve is formed for the capitalised development costs that have not yet been
amortised, insofar required by local law and regulations.
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-Brands, concessions, licences and quota B
- This.category includes capitalised costs relating to copy rights, user rights relating to patents,
trade- and brand names and licenses, including licences enforced by law.

Brands,.concessions,.licences and quota are.stated.at.cost:less.accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses.

Customer contracts

This category includes capitalised identifiable and legal enforceable customer contracts.

Customer contracts are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation is recognised by the straight-line method over the following estimated economic
. lives, with a maximum of 20 years:.. ... . ... . ..

goodwill 5 - 10 years
concessions, licences and intellectual property rights 14 - 20 years
development costs 3 years
software and technologies 3 - 10years
brand names 10 - 20 years
customer contracts 3 - Syears

Tangible fixed assets are recognised in the balance sheet when it is probable that the expected
future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset wiil flow to the Company and the cost
of that asset can be measured reliably.

Tangible fixed assets are carried at'cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation,
depletion and impairment losses. The cost comprises the price of acquisition or manufacture,
plus other costs that are necessary to get the assets to their location and condition for their
intended use. Interest paid to third parties during construction is included in the cost of
-acquisition. Costs directly attributable to the extension-of the estimated economic lifetime of
tangible fixed assets are being capitalised in the year of occurrence. -

Depreciation is recognised by the straight-line method over the following estimated economic
lives:

- commercial buildings 20 - 40 years
- gas cylinders and tanks s 5 - 20 years
- machines and installations . 5 - 20 years
- transport equipment 3 - 12 years
- office and plant equipment 2 - 10 years

Land and Assets under construction are not depreciated. .. __

Real estate held to realise rental income or value increases are carried at cost of acquisition
less depreciation and impairment losses.

Financial Statements 2021



Inventories

Projects

in progress

Financial
instruments

70

Basis for consolidation, valuation of assets and liabilities and determination of income

Maintenance

Maintenance expenditures are only capitalised when the maintenance leads to extension of the

- useful life of the asset and/or future performance units regarding the asset. For recognition of

maintenance expenditures the Company uses the component approach.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the
expenses for acquisition or manufacture, plus other expenditure to bring the inventories to their
present location and condition. Net realisable value is based on the most reliable estimate of
the amount the inventories will generate, less estimated costs of completion and selling. Cost
is determined using the first in-first out (FIFO) principle, for gas volumes and the inventory at
Makro and ERIKS are measured by applying weighted average prices.

- The cost of purchase include the purchase price and additional expenditure, such as import

duties, transport and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of inventory. Trade
discounts, rebates and indemnities (to be) received in connection with purchasing are
deducted from the costs of purchase.

Projects in progress comprises the balance of project costs realised, profit attributed and

if applicable, recognised losses and instalments already invoiced. The profit attributed is
calculated based upon the percentage of compietion method.

Project costs include the cost which directly relate to the specific project, the costs which are
attributable to contract activity in general and can be allocated to the project, as well as other
costs chargeable to the customer under the terms of the project.

Financial instruments include investments in shares, trade and other receivables, money
market investments, cash items, loans and other financing commitments, derivative financial
instruments, trade payables and other amounts payable. These financial statements contain
the following financial instruments: investment in affiliates, private equity investments, other
financial fixed assets, accounts receivable, money market investments, cash and cash
equivalents, non-current liabilities, current liabilities and derivatives.

Financial assets and liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet at the moment that the
contractual risks or rewards with respect to that financial instrument originate.

Financial instruments are derecognised if a transaction results in a considerate part of the
contractual risks or rewards with respect to that financial instrument being transferred to a
third party.

.Financial instruments (and individual components of financial instruments) are presented

in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the economic substance of
the contractual terms. Presentation of the financial instruments is based on the individual
components of financial instruments as a financial asset, financial liability or equity instrument.

Financial instruments are initially stated at fair value, including discount or premium and
directly attributable transaction costs. However, if financial instruments are subsequently
measured at fair value through the statement of income, then directly attributable transaction
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costs are directly recognised.in the statement.of income at:the initial recognition. After initial
recognition, financial instruments are valued in the manner described below.

Investments in affiliates )
..-.-.—~-The.accounting.principles applicable to investments in affiliates are as follows:
¢ valuation is based on the share in the affiliate’s net asset value, calculated in accordance
with the accounting principles that apply for these financial statements, after deducting
necessary impairments;
* the share in income or loss is included in the consolidated statements of income.

Investments in affiliates with an equity deficit are carried at nil. A provision is formed if and
when SHV is fully or partially liable for the liabilities of the affiliate, or has the firm intention to
aliow the affiliate to pay its liabilities. Loans to affiliates are included in.the valuation.
Dividends are recorded at the time when they are declared.

Private equity investments

Private equity investments are valued at cost less impairments. Investments in shares,
provided that these are listed, are measured at fair value following their initial recognition.
Changes in fair value are recognised directly in equity until the time of realisation, to the extent
that the result of the individual investment is cumulatively positive, less any provision for
deferred taxes. Upon derecognition of the investment, the accumulated result recognised in
equity is transferred to the profit and loss account. Any accumulated decrease in fair value to
below cost is recognised in the profit and loss account. Purchases and sales of financial assets
that belong to the category investments in listed equity instruments are accounted for at the
transaction date. For unlisted shares, an impairment is made when deemed necessary based
on circumstances at the respective company. Loans to private equity investments are included
in the valuation. Loans are written off or provided for when the private equity investments are
considered impaired.

Gains or losses on disposal of a private equity investment are determined based on the
difference between the net proceeds and the carrying amount of the private equity investment,
and are recognised in the statement of income under income from private equity investments.
The consideration receivable on disposal of a private equity investment is recognised at fair
value. Any liabilities'that the Company retains after disposal of a private equity investment are
recognised as disclosed under provisions or contingent liabilities.

Dividends received-from private-equity investments-are recognised-in-the statement of income
under income from private equity investments. Dividends are recorded at the time when they
are declared..- . L R

Other financial fixed assets

Investments are valued at cost of acquisition or lower market value, when it is expected that
they are subject to a permanent impairment in value.
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Bonds, listed and unlisted, that are not held as part of a trading portfolio and which will be held
to maturity, are measured at amortised cost on the basis of the effective interest rate method,
less impairment losses.

Long-term accounts receivable and loans are carried at amortised cost on the basis of
the effective. interest rate method, less any.impairments and net.of the amounts.to be
redeemed within one year. The amounts to be redeemed within one year are included in
the accounts receivables. :

Dividends are recorded in the statement of income at the time when they are declared.

Accounts receivable

Accounts receivable are carried at amortised cost on the basis of the effective interest rate
method after deduction of an allowance for doubtful accounts.

Money market investments

Money market investments consist of deposits, repurchase agreements and other money
market investments which have a maturity as per reporting date of more than 60 days and less
than one year. Money market investments are carried at amortised cost on the basis of the
effective interest rate method.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances and cash on hand, deposits, repurchase
agreements and commercial paper which have a maturity as per reporting date of less than 60
days. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at nominal value.

Non-current liabilities

Non-current liabilities are carried at amortised cost on the basis.of the effective interest rate
method, net of the amounts to be redeemed within one year. Redemption of non-current
liabilities that are due next year, are presented under short term liabilities.

Current liabilities

Current liabilities are stated at amortised cost on the basis of the effective interest rate method.

Derivatives

After their initial recognition, the derivatives are normally valued at the lower of cost or fair
value. Exceptions to this general principle relate to:

' derivatives used to hedge (monetary-assets and liabilities in) foreign currencies that are not

part of a net investment of a foreign operation, which are valued at fair value through profit
and loss;

e commodity derivatives, for which the own use assumption cannot be applied, which are
valued at fair value through profit and loss; .

¢ derivatives for which a model for hedge accounting is applied.

Financial Statements 2021



73

Basis for consolidation, valuation of assets and liabilities and determination of income

If forward exchange contracts are concluded to hedge monetary assets and:liabilities in foreign
currencies, derivatives are recognised at fair value through profit and loss, except if net
investment hedge accounting is applied. This is done to ensure that the gains.or losses arising
fromthe translation of the-monetary items recognised in the-statement of income are offset by
the changes in the value of forward exchange contracts as at reporting date.

Gains and losses relating to derivatives entered into cover the foreign currency position in

a net investment of a foreign operation, are included in the reserve for currency exchange
differences within shareholders' equity to the extent that the hedge is effective. The ineffective
part is recognised in the statement of income.

Commodlty denvatuves (LPG) for which the own.use assumptlon cannot be apphed are

~..recognised.at fair.value.through statement.of income. T T L

Other derivatives.that are concluded to hedge expected future transactions.are recognised at
the lower of cost or fair value, except if cost price hedge accounting is applied.

If cost price hedge accounting is applied for, then no revaluation of the derivative instrument
takes place as long as the derivative hedges the specific risk of a future transaction that is
expected to take place. As soon as the expected future transaction leads to recognition in the
statement of income, then the profit or loss that is associated with the derivative is recognised
in the statement of income. If the hedged position of an expected future transaction leads to
the recognition in the balance sheet of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, then the
cost of the asset or liability is adjusted by the hedge results that have not yet been recognised
in the statement of income.

When a derivative expires or is sold before the hedged transaction takes place, the
accumulated profit or loss that has not yet been recognised in the statement of income prior to
that time must then be included as a deferrai in the balance sheet until the hedged transactions
take place. If the transactions are no longer expected to take place, then the accumulated profit
or loss is transferred to the statement of income. If a derivative no longer meets the conditions
for-hedge-accounting, but-the-financial instrument.is-not-sold.-then the.hedge accounting
cannot longer be applied. The accounting is similar to the situation when a derivative expires or
is sold before the hedged transaction takes-place. Subsequent measurement of the derivative
instrument is then at the lower of cost or fair value.

If cash flow hedge accounting is used, the effective portion of the fair value changes of

the derivatives is initially recognised in the revaluation reserve. As-soon as the expected
future-transactions lead to the recognition of gains-or-losses-in-the statement of income, the
respective amounts are transferred from the revaluation reserve to the profit and loss account.
If a hedged position in respect of an expected future transaction leads to the recognition in the
balance sheet of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the Company adjusts the cost
of this.asset-by-the-hedging results.This.is done-through-a-transfer-from the revaluation reserve
of the results that have been deferred in this reserve until such time.

If the hedged position of an expected future transaction results in the recognition in the balance
sheet of a financial asset or a financial liability, the hedging results not yet recognised in the
profit and loss account are recognised in the profit and loss account in the period(s) that the
acquired asset or liability incurred affects profit or loss.
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If a derivative no longer meets the conditions for hedge accounting, expires or is sold, or

if the Company has decided to no longer apply hedge accounting, the hedging relationship
is terminated. The deferred gains or losses recognised at the time of the termination of the
hedging relationship remain in equity until the expected future transaction takes place. If
the transaction is no longer expected to take place, the deferred gain or loss on the hedge
recognised in equity is transferred to the statement of income. .. . .

Conditions for hedge accounting

The Company documents its hedging relationships in hedging documentation and regularly
checks the effectiveness of the hedging relationships by establishing whether the hedge is
effective and that there is no over-hedging.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses the degree of ineffectiveness of the
combination of the hedge instrument and the hedged position (the hedging relationship). The
degree of ineffectiveness of the hedging relationship is determined by comparing the critical
features of the hedging instrument against the hedged position. For this comparison, the
Company uses the following critical features: amount, term, hedged risk, method of settiement
of the hedging instrument and the hedged position. '

If the critical features, assessed in the context of the hedging relationship, have matched each
other, there has been no ineffectiveness.

If the critical features, assessed in the context of the hedging relationship, did not match
each other, there has been ineffectiveness. In that case, the degree of ineffectiveness is
determined by comparing the fair value change of the hedging instrument with the fair value
change of the hedged position. If there is a cumulative loss on the hedging relationship over
the period between initial recognition of the hedging instrument and the balance sheet date, the
ineffectiveness (the result) is directly recognised in the statements of income.

Determination of fair value

The fair value of a financial instrument is the amount for which an asset can be sold or a liability
settled, involving parties who are well informed regarding the matter, willing to enter into a
transaction and are independent from each other.

e The fair value of listed financial instruments is determined on the basis of the exit price.

¢ The fair value of non-listed financial instruments is determined by discounting the expected
cash flows to their present value, applying a discount rate that is equal to the current
risk-free market interest rate for the remaining term, plus credit and liquidity surcharges.
For certain items (private equity investments) the determined fair value is based on multiple
models (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA), sales
or production capacity) using both entry as well as peer group multiples per balance
sheet date.

* The fair value of financial instruments involving the exchange of collateral is determined by
‘discounting the-cash flows to present value applying the relevant swap curve. This is used
because the credit and liquidity risk is mitigated by the collateral exchange.

* The fair value of financial instruments that do not involve exchange of collateral is
determined by discounting the cash flows to present value, applying the relevant swap
curve plus credit and liquidity surcharges.
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" Offsetting financial instrumeénts
Afinancial.asset and.a financialliability are.offset.when the entity has:a-legaily.enforceable right
-~ -+ to setoffthe-financiat-asset and-financial liability and the -Company has the firm intention to
settle the balance on a net basis, or to settle the asset and the liability simultaneously. if there
.- ..—.. isatransfer of a financial asset that. does.not qualify for derecognition in the balance sheet, the
transferred asset and the associated liability are not offset.

Equity Shareholders' equity

Financial instruments that are designated as equity investments by virtue of the economic
. . reality are presented under shareholders' equity. Payments to holders of these instruments are
deducted from the shareholders' equity.
- - The purchase of own shares is deducted from the other reserves.
As the balance sheet is prepared after appropriation of results, proposed dividends are
- recognised as a liability. PR . e o

Amounts contributed by the shareholder(s) of the Company in excess of the nominal share
capital, are accounted for as share premium. This also includes additional capital contributions
by existing sharehoiders without the issue of shares or issue of rights to acquire shares of
the Company.

Costs and capital taxes associated with the issue of shares that are not capitalized are
deducted from share premium, after taken into account tax effects. If the share premium is
insufficient for such deductions, the amounts are deducted from retained earnings.

Exchange gains and losses arising from the transtation of the functional currency of foreign
operations to the reporting currency of the parent are accounted for in this iegai reserve. in the
case-of the sale of a participating interest, the associated accumulated exchange differences
are transferred to the profit and loss account.

Increases in the values of assets that are measured at fair value are included in the
revaluation reserve. ) - . . e

Minority interests

Minority interests are valued at the proportional share of third parties in the net value of the
assets and liabilities, determined in accordance with the Company's accounting principles.

Income attributable to minority interest shareholders is deducted from the income of the
Group based on the related proportionate share in the result-of the related:consolidated
- - -——-group companies.- - —- ot e 4 e e e i —

Provisions A provision is recognised if the following applies:
e the Company has a legal or constructive obligation, arising from a past event;
* the amount can be estimated reliably; and
¢ it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation.
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Rights and obligations resulting from contracts under which neither party has performed any of
its obligations or both parties have partially performed their obligations to an equal extent, are
not recognised. Recognition occurs when the consideration to be received is not (or no longer)
in balance with the-performance obligation of the Company and this imbalance has adverse
effects for the Company. : :

If all or part of the payments that are necessary to settle a provision are likely to be
fully or partially compensated by a third party upon settlement of the provision, then the
compensation amount is presented separately as an asset.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditures that are expected to be
required to settle the liabilities and losses, except for the pension provisions which are
measured at the present value of the best estimate of the expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligations and losses. If the time value of money is material and the period over
which the cash outflows are discounted is more than one year, provisions are measured at the
present value of the best estimate of the cash outflows that are expected to be required to
settle the liabilities and losses. The provisions are measured at nominal value if the time value of
money is not material or If the period over which the cash outflows are discounted is no longer
than one year.

A liability for deposits is recognised when a legal or constructive obligation exists to reimburse
the customer for gas cylinders or tanks that are (expected to be) returned. The provision in
relation to liabilities for deposits is based on the estimated gas cylinders and tanks in the
market, the expected return thereof and the respective deposit values.

A provision for claims and other disputes is established when it is expected that the Company
will be sentenced in legal proceedings. The provision represents the best estimate of the
amount for which the claim can be settled, including the costs of litigation.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the probability that an outflow will be required
in settlement is determined by considering the class of obligations as a whole. Although the
likelihood of outflow for any one item may be small, it may welil be probable that some outflow
of resources will be needed to settle the class of obligations as a whole. If that is the case, a
provision is recognised (if the other recognition criteria are met).

Arestructuring provision is recognised when at the balance sheet date the entity has a detailed
formal plan, and ultimately at the date of preparation of the financial statements a valid
expectation of implementation of the plan has been raised to those that will be impacted by
the reorganisation. The provision for restructuring costs includes the costs that are directly
associated with the restructuring. .

The Company may enter into financial and operating leases. A lease contract where the risks
and rewards associated with ownership of the leased property are transferred substantially
all to the lessee, is referred to as a financial lease. All other leases are classified as operating
leases. In classifying leases, the economic reality of the transaction is decisive rather than its
legal form.

At inception of an arrangement, the Company assesses whether the lease classifies as a
finance or operating lease.
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Finance leases

If the Company acts as lessee in a financial lease, the leased property (and the related liability)

- is recognised in the balance sheet at the start of the lease period at its fair value or, if lower, at

the present value of the minimum-lease payments. Both-amounts are'determined at the start of
the lease. The interest.rate applied for.the calculation_of.present.value is_the.implicit interest

rate. Ifit is not practically possible to determine this interest rate, then the marginal interest rate
is used. The initial direct costs are included in the initial measurement of the leased property.

The accounting principles for the subsequent measurement of the leased property are
described under tangible fixed assets. If there is no reasonable certainty that the Cbmpany will
become owner of a leased property at the end of the lease period, the property is depreciated
over the shorter of the lease period or the economic life of the property.

The minimum lease payments are split into interest expense and redemption of the lease
liability. The interest charges are allocated during the lease term to each period in such a way
that this results in a constant periodic interest rate over the remaining net liability with regard
to the financial lease. Conditional lease payments are recorded as an expense in the period in
which the conditions for payment are being met.

Operating leases

If the Company acts as lessee in an operating lease, the leased property is not capitalised.
Benefits received as an incentive to enter into an agreement are recognised as a reduction of
rental expense over the lease term. Lease payments and benefits regarding operating leases
are recognised to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the lease term, unless
another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern of the benefits from the use
of the leased asset. T

Net sales

For SHV Energy, Makro, ERIKS and Nutreco, revenue from the sale of goods is accounted for
in net turnover at the fair value of the consideration received or-receivable; net-of returns and
allowances, trade discounts and volume rebates. Revenue is recognised when the significant
risks and rewards of ownership have been transferred to the buyer at the moment of delivery,
recovery of consideration is probable, the associated costs and possible return of goods can
be estimated reliably, and there is no continuing involvement with the goods.

Contract revenue and costs

For Mammoet, contract revenue, costs and results are recognised using the ‘percentage of
completion method'. The stage of completion is measured by reference to the contract costs
incurred up to the balance sheet date as a percentage of total estimated contract costs. A
provision for loss making contracts is recognised in the statement of income when foreseen.
In addition, revenues from capacity services are realised over the period in which the services
are provided.
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The result of a fixed price contract can be estimated reliably when total contract revenue,
the required contract costs to complete the project and the extent to which the contract is
completed can be reliably measured, it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the contract costs are clearly and reliable attributable to the contract.

The result of a cost plus contract can be estimated reliably when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Company and the contract costs are clearly and reliable
attributable to the contract.

Expected losses on contracts are immediately recognised in the profit and loss account.
Losses are determined regardless whether the project has already been started, the stage
of realisation of the projects or the amount of profit which is expected on other, non-
related projects.

Rental income

Rental income from investment property is recognised in the profit and loss account on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Third party costs include the cost of all raw materials, supplies and trade goods related

to the goods sold, including transportation, services rendered and import duties, and third
party rental of equipment. Third party costs are recorded based on the first in-first out (FIFO)
principle. For gas volumes sold and products sold at Makro and ERIKS the weighted average
cost method is applied.

Costs are allocated to the period in which the related net sales are recognised and risk and
rewards have been transferred. Costs that are not related directly to net sales are recognised
in the period they are incurred.

Employee benefits are charged to the statement of income in the period in which the employee
services are rendered and, to the extent not already paid, as a liability on the balance sheet.
For benefits with accumulating rights, the projected costs are taken into account during

the employment. An expected payment resulting from profit-sharing and bonus payments is
recognised if the obligation for that payment has arisen on or before the balance sheet date and
areliable estimate of the liabilities can be made. If a benefit is paid in case of non-accumulating
rights, the projected costs are recognised in the period in which such benefit is payable.

The share in the result of participating interests consists of the share of the group in the results
of these participating interests, determined on the basis of the accounting principles of the
group. Results on transactions, where the transfer of assets and liabilities between the group
and the non-consolidated participating interests and mutually between non-consolidated
participating interests themselves, are not recognised as they can be deemed as not realised.
The results of participating interests acquired or sold during the financial year are measured in
the group result from the date of acquisition or until the date of sale respectively.
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Basis for cansolidation, valuation of assets and liabilities and determination of income

Interest income is recognised in the profit:and loss.account-on:an accrual.basis,.using the
effective interest rate method. Interest expenses and similar charges are recognised in the
period to which they belong.

Tax on income includes:

* current and deferred corporate income tax payable and deductible for the reporting period;

» taxes on income from investments in affiliates; and

¢ tax withheld at the source for dividends, interest and royalties received, payable and
recoverable for the reporting period.

Tax on income is recognised in the statement of income account except to the extent that it

relates to items recognised directly in equity in which case it is recognised in equity.

Current tax is the amount of taxes payable (or recoverable) for the-reporting period; calculated
on the basis of the enacted or substantively enacted tax rates-at the reporting date in the
various countries, as well as possible adjustments in the taxes on income of previous years
made during the reporting period. : -

If the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes differ from their
values for tax purposes (tax base), this results in temporary differences.

For taxable temporary differences, a provision for deferred tax liabilities is recognised.

Deferred tax arises from temporary differences between the tax base of an asset or liability

and its carrying amount for SHV reporting purposes, which in the future will result in deductible
(deferred tax assets) or taxable (deferred tax liabilities) amounts. Deferred tax assets also arise
from unused tax losses or tax credits that can be carried forward to future reporting periods.

Transactions with related parties (refer to note page 105) are disclosed if they have not
been entered into at arm's length. Disclosed are the nature and amounts involved with
such transactions, and other information that is deemed necessary-for an insight into
the transactions.

Events that provide further information on the actual situation at the balance sheet date
and that appear before the financial statements are being prepared, are recognised in the
financial statements.

Events-that provide no-infermation on the actual situation at the balance sheet date are not
recognised in the financial statements. When those events are relevant for the economic

. .decisions of users of the financial statements, the nature.and the-estimatedfinancial effects of

-the-events-are-disclosed-in-thefinancial-statements.— -  ——————— ...
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Total Goodwill Brands Conses- Develop- Customer
sions, ment contracts
licences costs
and quota
Balance, December 31, 2020
Cost 1,699.4 694.9 176.3 201.0 561.2 66.0
Accumulated amortisation ~ (798.5) (239.2) (101.1) (92.7) (330.4) (35.1)
Book value 900.9 455.7 75.2 108.3 230.8 30.9
Movements in book value:
Changes in consolidation 112.3 61.8 6.2 9.2 15.6 19.5
Additions 437.7 312.8 22.8 7.4 84.2 10.5
Disposal (4.7) (3.5) (0.2) (0.7) (0.3)
Amortisation (173.7) (87.0) (18.3) (13.2) (49.0) (6.2)
’ Irﬁpairments i T ( 1‘3.8) o (0.1) » ’ A (13.7)
Foreign currency translation 44.5 23.8 3.1 6.6 9.8 1.2
Other changes 8.1 4.9 3.2
Net movements 410.4 307.8 13.6 14.2 49.8 25.0
Balance, December 31, 2021
Cost 2,335.7 1,119.7 210.7 237.9 666.1 101.3
Accumulated amortisation  (1,024.4) (356.2)] (121.9) (115.4) (385.5) (45.4)
Book value 1,311.3 763.5 88.8 122.5 280.6 55.9

Notes to the consolidated financial statement

In millions of euro, unless otherwise indicated

Changes in consolidation represents mainly the inclusion of Kiwa as group company in the
consolidated figures of SHV Holdings N.V.

Additions in goodwill is mainly the result of the acquisition of Intega Group by Kiwa and
acquisitions in the US and Sunsource in India by SHV Energy.

Concessions, licences and quota mainly relate to a right to sell poultry products in the
Canadian market by Nutreco and intellectual property rights relating to the technology of

hydroxy based trace minerals, acquired with the acquisition of Micronutrients.

Development costs represent capitalised expenditures on research and development activities
by Nutreco, and expenditures on the deveiopment of new ERP systems throughout SHV.

Brands represent mainly the brand names Skretting, Trouw and Selko, recognised in Nutreco.
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Total Commercial| Gas cylinders| Machines and Sub-Total
land and and tanks| installations
buildings
' Balance, December 31,2020~~~ T 777
Cost of acquisition 9,350.3 1,739.8 3,136.6 2,957.3 | 1,516.6
‘ Acéumulated depreciation
and depléti6ﬁ (5,444.9) (741.8) (2,290.3)] (1,692.5)[" (720.3)
Book value 3,905.4 998.0 846.3 1,264.8 796.3
Movements in book value:
Changes in consolidation 71.4 36.5 (15.6) (1.7) 52.2
"Additions T e TE18 T TR0 T 86,071 89.4 462.4
Disposals ) (128.3) (31.3) (27.4) (42.1) (27.5)
Dépreciation'and dépletion” ~~~ ° ~ 7 T (468.2)] T ~(53.2) "—'_('_i 3’4‘.%)’ - (M179:2)| (101.1)
Impairments (15.7) (12.4) (0.8) (1.5) (1.0
" Transfer between categories A 66.4 T's7.8(7  186.0 (310.2)
Foreign currency translation 142.1 44.0 16.1 47.9 34.1
Other changes 5.6 7.2 (0.5) 2.1 (3.2
Net movements 368.7 81.2 80.9 100.9 105.7
Balance, December 31, 2021:
Cost of acquisition 9,812.6 1,934.8 3,013.5 3,204.2 1,660.1
Accumulated depreciation
and depletion (5,538.5) (855.6) (2,086.3)| (1,838.5) (758.1)
Book value 4,274.1 1,079.2 927.2 1,365.7 902.0
Sub-Total Transport,{ Assets under| Asset not used
plant and office| construction in business
. equipment
Balance, December 31, 2020:
Cost of acquisition 1,616.6- 1,150.0- 264:9- 101.7
Accumulated depreciation
and depletion (720.3) (664.9) ) (55.4)
Book value 796.3 485.1 264.9 46.3
Movements in book value:
Changes in consolidation 52.2 25.8 26.9 (0.5)
Additions 462.4 73.3 389.0 0.1
Disposals (27.5) (27.2) (0.1) (0.2)
Depreciation and depletion (101.1) (100.5) (0.6)
Impairments (1.0) (1.0)
Transfer between categories (310.2) 29.5 (319.6) (20.1)
Foreign currency translation 34.1 18.3 14.9 0.9
Other changes (3.2) 4.7 (7.9
Net movements 105.7 23.9 102.2 (20.4)
Balance, December 31, 2021:
Cost of acquisition 1,660.1 1,241.4 367.1 51.6
Accumulated depreciation
and depletion (758.1) (732.4) (25.7)
Book value 902.0 509.0 367.1 25.9
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S B 2021 2020
Investments in affiliates 4521 336.9
Private equity investments - 1,582.9 1,677.0
Deferred tax assets 348.9 328.5
Other financial fixed assets 406.3 320.7

2,790.2 2,663.1

Notes to the consolidated financial statement

Change in consolidation represents mainly the acquisition of Kiwa, Sunsource and the sale
Balcas and Primagaz Nederland by SHV Energy.

Assets held for saleare included in the operational fixed assets with.a book value of € 23 million,

‘mainly consist of Stores in Makro Brazil, a plant in Chile and land in Italy and Ecuador.

Finance leases represent € 54 million (2020: € 57 million) of the book value, predominantly in
commercial iand and buildings and in machines and installations.

Assets not used in business are mainly related to rented out and closed stores in Makro.

Investments in affiliates

Movements in investments in affiliates were as follows:

Total| Share in equity Loans
Balance, December 31, 2020 336.9 3211 15.8
Changes in consolidation 16.5 15.8 0.7
Additions 15.1 13.3 1.8
Disposals (12.1) (4.0) (8.1)
Share in income / losses 202.7 202.7
Income taxes ] (81.1) (81.1)
Dividends received . (56.3)| - (56.3)
Foreign currency translation 30.4 30.1 0.3
Balance, December 31, 2021 . . .- . 452.1 ¢ - 441.6 10.5

Share in income is presented in the consolidated statement of income, before deducting
income taxes, under income from investments in affiliates.

From the total carrying amount of investments in affiliates an amount of € 300 million

(2020: 202 million) relates to ONE-Dyas (49% shareholding). The total revenue of ONE-Dyas
amounted to € 662 million (2020: € 280 million) and SHV's share in net profit amounted to

€ 123-million (in 2020 share in net loss amounted to € 35 million).

As part of the share in net profit, an amount.of € 55 million (2020: € 70 million negative) is
recognised in relation to the share in reversal of. impairments at the level of ONE-Dyas. Key
assumptions relate to setting of the applicable cash-generating units and the fair market value
valuations, which are dependent on the assessed life of fields, oil & gas year-end forward
curves and foreign exchange (spot) rates. In the impairment test carried out, the applied
discount rate (weighted average cost of capital) is 10%.

SHV has applied consistent accounting principles for the determination of the net asset value
and share in income from investment in affiliates. The gross share in income from investments
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in affiliates is presented as part of the income before income taxes. The related taxes, including
state profit share in oil & gas exploration, applicable to the share.in income from investments

) in affiliates are presented as part of the income taxes of SHV. e — -

In relation to the ONE-Dyas affiliate, specific additional accounting principles apply, related to:
e Exploration costs I —

e Depreciation and depletion of oil & gas interests

e Provisions for abandonment . -

Exploration costs

Costs of drilling exploratory wells and licence acquisition costs.are.initially expensed. When

recoverable reserves have been demonstrated within 12 months, these costs are capitalised

and depleted. Other exploration costs are charged to income from operations when incurred.

Depreciation and depletion of oil & gas interests . o

Depreciation and depletion of oil & gas interests is based on the units produced in relation to
the estimated reserves (unit of production method). Impairments are recognised when required
by market circumstances.

Provisions for abandonment

A provision for abandonment is formed based on the present value of the estimated future
abandonment expenditures at the moment activities are undertaken which give rise to such
abandonment obligation. Additions formed are built up based on the unit-of-production
method over the estimated recoverable reserves.

Private equity investments

Movements in private equity investments were as follows:

Total Shares Loans
Balance, December 31, 2020 1,677.0 1,602.5 74.5
Change in consolidation (280.9) (280.9)
Additions 486.5 4384 |- 48.4
Conversion - - - 26.3-|- (26.3)
Disposals (288.0)|" (212.6)| (75.4)
Impairments and reversals (11.7) (10.6) (1.1)
Balance, December 31, 2021 1,582.9 1,562.8 20.1

Changes in consolidation represents the inclusion of Kiwa as group company in the
consolidated figures of SHV Holdings N.V. -

Additions include, amongst others, the investments in Infinitas, ICT Group, Kubo, Ophen,
Healthcare Clinic, Groendus and Picnic. Disposals include, amongst others the sale of
Healthcare Clinics, Mentaal Beheer, Deli Home and the partly divestment of Infinitas.

The fair value of the portfolio of private equity investments is 75% to 100% higher than

the book value at reporting date. Impairments are recognised for investments for which the
current book value is not deemed recoverable based on expected future performance, amongst
others based on discounted cash flow projections, discounted using specific estimated
weighted average cost of capitals and/or other valuations such as multiple assessments for the
respective investments.
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Deferred tax assets

Movements in deferred tax assets were as follows:. . e e .
2021 2020
Balance, beginning of the year 328.5 322.1
- Changes in consolidation . . . - . 327 3.3
Recognised in income (23.7) 47.8
Foreign currency translation 114 (44.7)
Balance, December 31 348.9 328.5

The deferred tax assets represents the valuation of timing differences resulting from
provisioning, recognition of investment allowances for tax purposes, taxable amortisation

of goodwill and.accumulated tax losses. The total accumulated tax losses in several countries
amounts to € 1.5 billion at the end of 2021 (2020: € 1.3 billion). To the extent it is probable
that these tax losses can be used in the near future, the related tax benefits amounting to

€ 173 million have been recognised (2020: € 144 million).

It is expected that € 93 million of the tax losses will be offset within one year
(2020: € 100 million). The relating tax benefits amount to € 19 million (2020: € 24 million).

Other financial fixed assets

Movements in other financial fixed assets were as follows:

Total| Investments Bonds Long-term Miscel-
accounts laneous
receivable
and loans
Balance, December 31, 2020 320.7 22.9 21.3 78.8 197.7
Changes in consolidation 3.0 0.7 2.3
Additions 99.4 21.1 0.3 38.0 40.0
Disposals ’ A (13.5) (0.5) (0.6) (7.7) (4.7)
Foreign currency translatiol 0.6 2.2 (1.6)
Other changes (3.9)] . (0.3) 1.0 (4.6)
Balance, December 31, 2021 406.3 43.2 21.0 113.0 229.1

Additions mainly comprises investments made by NuFrontiers in Nutreco, a loan to Lightyear
and recognition of tax credits in Brazil.

Bonds consist mainly of government securities that are required to be held by SHV
Energy companies.

Miscellaneous consists mainly of advance payments and tax credits receivables in Brazil.

Financial Statements 2021




Inventories

Projects
in progress

Notes to-the consolidated financial statement

2021 2020
-.2--~ - -l Trading inventories S0 1,186.0 920.0
Raw materials ST 5106 349.6
Other inventory _ - 140.9 98.2
Projects in progress —_— 01|
Prepayments 10.2 10.8
1,847.8 1,378.6
~ ‘Uess: provision obsolete stock™ =~ T T TR (71.4) (64.3)
1,776.4 1,314.3

Movements in provision for obsolete stock were as follows:

[ e 202+ {- 2020
Balance, beginning of the year e 643 | 83.9
- - Change-in consolidation e o (1.0)
Additions 20.7 27.7
Release and appropriation B (16.4) (40.0)
Foreign currency transiation 2.8 (6.3)
Balance, December 31 714 64.3
The breakdown of projects in progress are as follows:
2021 2020
Realised project costs 678.4 712.0
Allocated profits 93.7 86.2
Provision loss making projects (66.2) (60.7)
Subtotal 705.9 737.5
Less: Progress payments (705.8) (750.6)
Total Projects in progress 0.1 (13.1)
Value of work done > progress payments 88.9 40.6
Value of work done < progress payments (88.8)] (53.7)
- - - - 0t (13.1)]

Projects in progress include contracts of which customer progress payments exceed the value

of the work done.

Revenues from projects in progress (construction contracts) recognised in the profit and loss
~-account-amount to € 718.3 million (2020: € 568.7 million). -

For the construction contracts outstanding at balance sheet date, the cumulative total turnover
recognised up to that date amounts to € 772.1 mitlion (2020: € 798.2 million) and the cumulative

- —- —-total-costs-recognised-until-then-amount-t0-€-678.4-million-(2020-€ 71.2.0-million).

- - ~-An-amount of-€45-miilion (2020: nihil)-has been-deducted-fromthe progress-billings.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statement

) 2021 2020

Trade receivables 2,780.9 2,113.8
Sales tax receivable © - R : 114.7 87.0
" Taxes on profit and equity receivable ’ 771 50.4
Prepaid expenditures T 302.7 181.4
Other taxes oot T B - < X o 96.7
Advances 120.8 71.6
Other receivables T 149.7 117.7
. 3,629.3 2,718.6

Less: allowance for doubtful accounts (183.1) (153.4)
- o R : o © 73,4462 |7 2,565.2

Receivables at December 31, 2021, include € 23 million (2020: € 29 million) for bills of exchange
and lease purchase instalments. All receivables are due in less than one year.

Movements in allowance for doubtful accounts were as .follows:

2021 2020
Balance, December 31, 2020 153.4 162.2
Change in consolidation 10.2 1.4
Additions 47.2 18.4
Release and appropriation (33.7) (18.7)
Foreign currency translation 6.0 (19.9)
Balance, December 31, 2021 183.1 153.4

Money market investments consist of deposits, repurchase agreements and other money
market investments which have a maturity of more than 60 days and less than one year.

2021 2020

Banks and cash on hand 1,029.4 1,020.2
Deposits and commercial paper ' 83.4 159.4
1,112.8 1,179.6

Deposits and commercial paper have a maturity of less than 60 days.

In general, cash and cash equivalents are at SHV's free disposal. In a number of countries
the Company holds cash balances where it is difficult to transfer cash abroad. This could
temporarily result in cash in these countries that is free disposal at local level only.
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Shareholders’ Movements in shareholders’ equity were as follows: -
equity - 2021 2020
Balance, beginning of the year 6,331.4 6,380.5
"~ Income- R ST - 978.5 487.8
Dividends (290.9) (232.7)
Changes in unrealised derivatives 55.9 51.3
Goodwill and other changes (757.9) (17.4)
- Taxes - - .- - - (20.6)|- (16.3)
Foreign currency transiation 1415 (321.8)
Balance, December 31 6,437.9 6,331.4

The liability resuiting from the dividend proposal 2021 is presented in current liabilities.

Goodwill and other changes represents mainly the acquisition of Kiwa and the recognisition
and revaluation of the put / call arrangments in relation to Sunsource, Skretting Ecuador and
Kiwa. In addition, this inciudes the buy-out of minority interests, whereas the most significant
buy-out in the year relates to BCC.

Foreign currency translation is mainly caused by the appreciation of the Brazilian real, Chinese
Renminbi Yuan, Pound sterling, Canadian dollar and US dollar.

The composition of shareholders’ equity is presented on page 109.

Minority interests  Minority interests represent their share in net assets of consolidated companies.

Movements in minority interests were as follows:

2021 2020
Balance, beginning of the year 80.6 108.5
Changes in consolidation - - : o= 16.0 | (3.6)
Share in income : 25.8 17.0
Capital increases 58.9
Buy-out B e (8.2)

-- ‘Dividends - - -+ =~ R T Lo meeeese e aeee o (38 4) (38.0)
Goodwill and other changes (58.0) 0.3
Foreign currency transiation 5.6 (3.6)
Balance, December 31 82.3 80.6

- --- Minority-interests mainly reflect the proportional share of third parties in the netvalue of assets
- and liabilities of Primagas Energie in Germany, Skretting Ecuador and Kiwa. - -

Goodwill and other changes represents mainly the acquisition of Kiwa.

Dividends represent:

* the amount expected to be payable to third party shareholders at December 31, 2021
(included in other current liabilities);

* the difference between payments made in 2021 and the expected amount payable at
December 31, 2020.
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2021 2020
Deferred income tax liabilities 302.7 2458
Pension provision’ 218.0 299.5
Other provisions 745.4 864.4
1,266.1 1,409.7

Movements in deferred income tax liabilities were as follows:
2021 2020
Balance, beginning of the year ’ 245.8 219.5
Changes in consolidation . . 4.3 |. 11.4
Recognised in income 6.2 24.5
Other changes 49.5 153
Foreign currency translation ' (3.1) (24.9)
Balance, December 31 302.7 245.8

The deferred tax liability mainly represents the valuation of timing difference resulting from
accelerated depreciation of fixed assets for tax purposes.

The current amount of the deferred tax liability amounts to € 64.5 million.

The Company and the Groups included in the consolidation have temporary differences for
group companies, participating interests and joint ventures. These differences arise from
withholding tax on the recorded share in resuit of participating interests. These temporary
differences have not been recognised in the balance sheet as the Company can determine the
timing of the reversal of these differences based on dividends payments, and it is probable that
these temporary differences will not be settled in the foreseeable future due to the dividend
strategy of the group.

Movements in pension provision were as follows:

2021 2020
Balance, beginning of the year 299.5 312.2
Changes in consolidation 4.9 6.1
Additions 37.2 53.4
Appropriation (53.2) (38.5)
Release (77.5) (15.9)
Foreign currency translation ‘71 (17.8)
Balance, December 31 218.0 299.5

Pension provision

- SHV operates a number of pension plans consisting of a mixture of defined benefit and

defined contribution schemes. The defined benefit schemes relate both to final and average
pay pension plans, some of which are transferred to company pension funds. Some of the
company pension funds are in a deficit situation. This primarily relates to pension funds in
the Netherlands, UK and Ireland. At December 31, 2021, provisions were recorded for the
obiigations of SHV to provide additional payments due to the low coverage of the pension
funds or the difference between the actual interest rate and the applied discount rate in

the pension arrangement. The administration agreements with the pension funds as with the
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insured arrangements run in general for one to five years. Some pension schemes are classified
as defined benefit agreements under the Dutch pensions act or similar foreign acts. The
post-employment-health.benefit. scheme.for-employees-in: Brazil: also qualifies.as -a.defined

Forthe Netherlands, one defined benefit scheme is managed through a company pension fund.
All others are with industry pension funds ('bedrijfstakpensioenfonds’) or pension insurers.

Employees in the UK and Ireland have pension schemes which are structured and operate
similar to the Dutch pension system. A best estimate of the pension commitments of these
_foreign schemes is made at the reporting date using the actuarial projected unit credit method.

Mainly as a result of falling interest rates.in recent years, the pension funds had a funding

shortfall at the reporting date. The pension funds have submitted a recovery plan to their
relevant regulators for restoring their capital to the minimum.requirements.. The recovery
plans have been drawn up with due regard for the criteria set by these regulators and were
subsequently approved. The companies involved have agreed to make additional contributions
under the respective recovery plans.

As per 2020 the Calor UK Pension Trust had a deficit of GBP 138 million. In the first half

of 2021, a new recovery plan, following the regular tri-annual valuation, has been agreed
between the trustees and Calor. The annual deficit recovery payment to the pension scheme
is GBP 15.5 million, which will be paid for six years unless the deficit is recovered earlier. In
addition to the contribution scheme an additional contribution was paid of GBP 5 million in
2021. As per reporting date a provision is included, based on an actuarial calculation, for an
amount of € 57 million (2020: € 108 million). The discount rate is 1.8% (2020: 1.2%).

As per 2013 the Calor Ireland Pension Trust had a deficit of € 29 million. A recovery plan

has been agreed with committed additional funding (as required) of a total of € 25 million,
reducing the deficit to nil in 2024. As per reporting date a provision is included, based on an
actuarial calculation, for an amount of € 3 million (2020: € 3 million). The discount rate is 0.7%
(2020: 0.3%).

. As per 2015 the ERIKS UK Pension Trust had a deficit of GBP 34 million. In 2019,.a.new deficit

recovery plan has been agreed between the trustees and ERIKS. The annual deficit recovery
contribution to the pension scheme is GBP 2.7 million per annum, increasing annually with
inflation. As per reporting date a provision is included, based on an actuarial calculation, for an
amount of € 32 million (2020: € 52 million). The discount rate is 2% (2020: 1.4%).

- Supergasbras Brazil provides a health insurance plan to their employees-as part of their totat

employee benefits. Both retired and/or former empioyees are able to continue participating in
this health insurance plan if certain conditions are met. This health insurance plan results in a
liability for future rights of the employees. As per reporting date a provision is included, based
on an actuarial calculation, for an amount of € 15 million (2020: € 19 million).

The pensions for Nutreco in the Netherlands are being guaranteed by an insurer for which a
guarantee premium is paid. As per reporting date a provision for future guarantee premiums is
included for an amount of € 58 million (2020 € 71 million). The discount rate is 1% (2020 0.5%).
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_Total  Liabitities for Claims and{ Special risks Other
deposits| other disputes

Balance, December 31, 2020 864.4 199.0 136.6 4411 87.7
Changes in consolidation 2.8 (6.8) 9.6
Additions 86.4 18.5 227 7.0 38.2
Appropriation (195.7) (15.8) (58.4) (82.5) (39.0)
Release (18.1) (0.4) (10.1) (7.6)
Foreign currency translation 5.6 3.9 0.8 0.9
‘Balance, December 31,2021 © -~ - 7454 - 1984 | — 916 |~ 365.6| - 89.8

Notes to the consolidated financial statement

The pension provisions are expected to be used for an amount of € 35 million in.the subsequent
year and for an amount of € 52 million between one and five years.

Movements in other provisions were as follows:

Liabilities for deposits represent deposits paid by SHV Energy customers for cylinders
and tanks.

A provision for claims, disputes and lawstuits is established when it is expected that the
Company will be sentenced in legal proceedings. The provision represents the best estimate
of the amount for which the claim can be settled. The amounts in the provisions for claims
and other disputes and special risks are amongst others based on assessments from and of
legal advice.

The other provisions consist mainly of reorganisation and onerous contract provisions.

The provision for special risks is set up for a number of aggregated risks mainly relating to tax
risks, compliance risk, contract risks and labour cases, which could result in a cash outflow in
the future. These risks result from the nature and geographic spread of SHV’s operations. Both
governments and tax authorities in some of the countries in which SHV operates increasingly
take unexpected positions that, on aggregated level, could impact the financial situation.

Provisions generally are of a long-term nature.
The other provisions are expected to be used for an amount of € 109 million in the subsequent
year and for an amount of € 461 million between one and five years.

2021 2020
Loans from financial institutions 1,109.6 887.9
Finance lease 42.5 23.6
Other 330.6 163.9

1,482.7 1,075.4

SHV Holdings N.V. has two syndicated stand-by-facilities available. The irrevocable credit
facility of € 800 million, maturing on November 30, 2024. A new irrevocable credit facility of
€ 1.000 million, signed on November 11, 2021. This facility has a 5 year tenor and matures on
November 11, 2026. The facility has two extension options for one year each. No amounts were
drawn under these facilities at December 31, 2021.
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Movements in non-current liabilities were as follows:

Total Loans from| Finance lease Other.
: - . financiall
o : ’ institutions | )

Balanée, Décémbeér31, 2020 ~ © 7 10759 U 88797 T 236 [T 163.9
-~ -- . -.-Changes-in-consolidation - - - --— - ——- -- -44:.1-|-- - .25:5-}----- -.0.9 17.7
Additions / new loans 678.8 648.2 256 5.0
Additional redemption this year (29.6) (23.1) (5.2) (1.3)
Redemption next year (528.4) (479.1) (8.1) (41.2)
Foreign currency translation 61.4 50.2 1.3 9.9
Other changes - - - cee . : - 1810 - e e 44 176.6
Balance, December 31, 2021 1,482.7 1,109.6 42.5 330.6

Other changes represents mainly the recongnition of liabilities relating tothe put /-
call-arrangements. . e T -

Loans from financial institutions

2021 2020 Average
interest rate
Corporate Private placement loans:
- 2012 of initially USD 461 million 86.6 283.5 4.7%
- 2012 of initially GBP 45 miilion 54.0
- 2015 of initially EUR 70 million 70.0 70.0 2.5%
- 2015 of initially EUR 40 million 40.0 40.0 2.6%
- 2015 of initially EUR 50 million 50.0 50.0 2.7%
- 2020 of initially USD 100 million 88.4 83.9 2.2%
- 2020 of initially USD 150 million " 13255 122.1 2.7%
- 2021 of initially EUR 100 million 100.0 -0.1%
- 2021 of initially EUR 200 million 200.0 0.3%
- 2021 of initially EUR 100 million 100.0 |
Groups _ U DU
- Nutreco e .. .598| _1092| @ 72%
- Makro 0.2
- SHV Energy 182.3 67.2 8.4%
1,109.6 880.1

SHV is in compliance with the financial covenants of these facilities.

The 2012 USD private placement loan has fixed interest rates. The 2012 GBP private placement
loan is swapped to euro with a fixed interest rate. The three 2015 EUR private placements have
-—— .— —afixed interest-rate. - o -

The private placement of USD 250 million has fixed interest rates. A part of USD 70 million has
been swapped to Euro until March 2022.

The interest rates on loans entered into by the business units, except for Nutreco, are
predominantly variable, which for a number of loans have been swapped to fixed interest rates
using derivatives.
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Finance lease

At December 31, 2021, the weighted.average interest rate is 2.5% and the average remaining

term 5 years.

‘Other

At December 31, 2021, other non-current liabilities include the asset-backed long-term
commitment for the remediation of a UK pension fund deficit. Other non-current liabilities
further consist of seven loans with a weighted average interest rate of 4.6% and an average
remaining term of 4 years. '

‘"Redemption’'schedule of non-current liabilities

Repayment obligation in the years

2022 2023-2026 After 2026
Corporate Private placement loans:
- 2012 of initially USD 461 million 221.3 33.6 5§3.0
- 2012 of initially GBP 45 million 54.0
- 2015 of initially EUR 70 million 70.0
- 2015 of initially EUR 40 million 40.0
- 2015 of initially EUR 50 million 50.0
- 2020 of initially USD 100 million 88.4
- 2020 of initially USD 150 million 132.5
- 2021 of initially EUR 100 million 100.0
- 2021 of initially EUR 200 million 200.0
- 2021 of initially EUR 100 million 100.0 100.0
Groups
- Nutreco 98.1 55.5 4.3
- Makro ] 0.2
- SHV Energy 7.9 170.7 11.6
Total loans from financial institutions 481.5 908.2 201.4
Finance lease 8.1 ) 27.7 14.8
Other 38.8 261.7 68.9
Total 528.4 1,197.6 285.1

The portion of non-current liabilities that will be redeemed in 2022 is included in current
liabilities. At December 31, 2021, non-current liabilities of € 113 million (2020: € 104 million)
were secured, of which € 75 million were secured by mortgage (2020: € 80 million) and

€ 38 million otherwise (2020: € 24 million).
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2021

2020

Trade payables 2,449.6 1,848.8
Payablesto barks ™ T T T T T T T T e = Tt T T B3 353.4

" Current part of non-current liabilities 528.4 57.3
Dividends to own and third party shareholders 309.9 232.7
OtHer taxes and'social séCurity prémiums” ~— ~~~ ~~ 77 7T UTTTTOT o T T T 201.4 167.4
Income taxes payable T 78.1 48.2
Projects in Progress 13.1

Pension fund premium payables 9.6 48

Other accrued liabilities 815.1 508.3
Other current liabilities 528.9 403.5
3,637.5

5,452.8

’

At December 31, 2021, current liabilities were not secured (2020: € 23 million).-All current
liabilities fall due in less than one year. The carrying values of the recognised current liabilities
approximate their respective fair values, given the short maturities of the positions.

Risk management

The current risks facing the business have already been described in the Directors' Report. To
mitigate these risks, SHV actively promotes its purpose and values by implementing relevant
policies, guidelines, controls, structures, and procedures. One of the main strengths of the
company is a wide spread of activities with no overdependence on any one of them.

SHV is fortunate to employ highly talented people at every ievel who continuously seek new
ways to improve operational efficiency and strengthen customer relationships. Long-term
investment in both people and assets, combined with a prudent financing strategy, have
provided considerable resilience to survive adverse-conditions. Contingency planning is part
of preparing all businesses for any potential challenges that lie ahead, with an ongoing focus
on working capital and cash flow management.

Risk management plays an integral part in the day-to-day responsibilities of leadership within
each Group. Management teams are expected to identify and manage any specific risks to
their business objectives, while complying with both external regulations and internal policies
and guidelines. Within a centrally-defined framework, management teams also decide to what
extent specific risks are acceptable for their respective Groups.

Regular risk assessments are conducted at both holdings and Group levels. SHV provides the
tools and structured risk response methods that allow Groups to assess their tolerance to
strategic, financial, compliance, reputational, and operational risks. In 2021, a smart risk tool
was developed to support Groups in identifying risks and tracking follow-up actions.

Risk assessments heip to build a clear overview of the main risks faced in terms of likelihood,
impact, acceptance, and ability to mitigate. This overall picture then provides a basis for
discussion at pianning and strategy meetings, as well as a benchmark for the effectiveness of
internal controls. PowerBl dashboarding has been developed to support this process.
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Controls are tested twice a year and their performance reported to management, with any
necessary improvements identified, implemented, and subsequently monitored.

The first main tool used to manage risk is the SHV Policies and Guidelines covering internal
audit, ethics and compliance, finance and control, tax, treasury, human resources, health and
safety, IT, sustainability, the SHV Information Security Programme (SISP), fraud reporting,
claims and litigation reporting, and the SHV Speak Up Line. It also includes the authorisation
limits matrix.

The second major tool, the Business Support Framework (BSF), incorporates SHV’'s minimum
control standards —or key controls—that help to monitor exposure to any risk that could
prevent the company from achieving its objectives.

Both BSF and the SHV Policies and Guidelines are updated every year to reflect the outcome
of the risk assessments, any relevant external developments, and the latest changes in
organisational and internal procedures.

IT is now widely used throughout the organisation. As operational and financial processes
become ever more digital, the risk of unavailability, failure, corruption, and the loss of
confidential data grows, not to mention the threat posed by cybercrime and fraud. To mitigate
these risks, SHV deploys a self-assessment IT security and business continuity programme, in
addition to regular audits by external IT experts. SISP, meanwhile, is refined on an annual basis
based on the results of risk assessments and audits during the previous year.

An internal audit function at both SHV Holdings and across the Groups ensures the
interna!l control framework is continuously monitored and improved through regular,
independent assessments.

Derivatives and other financial instruments

SHV uses various financial instruments in the normal course of business, that exposes it to
market, currency, interest, cash flow, credit and liquidity risks. To control these risks, SHV has
instituted a policy including a code of conduct and procedures that are intended to limit the
risks of unpredictable adverse developments in the financial markets and thus for the financial
performance of SHV. SHV applies derivatives, amongst others interest rate swaps, forward
exchange contracts and cross currency swaps to control its risks. in principle SHV does not
trade in derivatives.

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest
rates and equity prices, will affect SHV's income or the value of its financial instruments. The
objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

The fair value of most of the financial instruments recognised on the balance sheet, including
receivables, securities, cash and cash equivalents and current liabilities, is approximately
equal to their carrying amount, unless otherwise disclosed within these financial statements.
As such the fair value of the financial instruments recognised on the balance sheet which
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~=- - materially differs fromtheir respective-carrying values-are separately disclosed in the notes to
the balance sheet.

----+-- The businesses of-SHV Energy and ONE-Dyas have:a significant, but different, exposure
towards the price of crude oil, natural gas and LPG: The responsible management-is actively

-—.— .--managing these.risks.including the_use.of hedging instruments. For this purpose, specific and
dedicated hedging policies are in place within each business which, among others, stipulate
that hedging contracts only are to be concluded for economic hedging of open positions and
in principle not for trading or other speculative purposes.

"" Currency risk’ oo T

_ SHV is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and debt that are denominated in a
currency other than the respective functional currencies of the operating entities. The purpose
- of foreign currency hedging activities is to protect SHV from the risk.that.the net cash flows
are adversely affected by changes in exchange rates. SHV’s policy is to hedge transactional
foreign exchange rate exposures. -

Short-term exposures are actively managed and may be hedged using derivatives such

as forward contracts, currency swaps and options. As a general rule SHV Groups hedge
their receivables or payables which are not denominated in their functional currency. Each
derivative used for exposure management must be directly linked to an existing underlying
open economic position. Derivatives are also only used to manage the economic hedging of
open positions and not for trading or other speculative purposes.

Long-term foreign currency risks result from investments in countries with a different currency
than the euro and are therefore dependent on the economic and political stability of these
countries. This long-term net investment exposure is partly mitigated by the use of local
currency denominated debt financing.

Foreign currency translation risk

SHV is exposed to foreign currency translation.risks of investments in-foreign-operations,

-~ - ---including long-term-loans-te-foreign subsidiaries:-net-income and retained earnings of these
foreign operations. The translation exp'osure resulting out of netinvestments in long-term loans
denominated in a foreign currency is fully hedged, except for a number of long-term loans in
certain currencies as the cost of hedging outweighs the hedged risk.

The translation exposure resuiting out of net investments in equity of foreign operations

- is not hedged: SHV measures-the translation exposure by the-total amount-of-the capital
invested, per foreign currency, reduced by the amount of net investment hedges in the same
foreign currency.

‘At balance sheet date, an amount of € 462 million of external debt in foreign currencies is
- “effectively used as net investment hedge foriinvestmentsin US doltar: - -~ -~ ~

In addition, SHV has used foreign currency exchange swaps and cross-currency interest rate
swaps to further reduce the exposure to translation risks stemming from net investments in
long-term loans denominated in a foreign currency.
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At December 31, 2021, the notional amount of outstanding foreign exchange derivatives
related to translation risk totalled € 467 million, mainly relating to the British pound, Canadian
dollar and US dollar. The net market value of the outstanding foreign exchange derivatives
related to translation risk amounted to negative € 6.9 million.

Revaluation of these debts and derivatives used to hedge a net investment in a foreign
operation is recognised in the translation reserve.

The translation exposure was as follows:

Capital Net Translation
investment investment risk

. hedge|. :
US dollar 1,246.6 (495.7) 750.9
Canadian dollar 523.7 (239.9) 283.8
Pound sterling ' 513.5 (187.5) 326.0
Brazilian real 357.3 357.3
Australian dollar 328.9 328.9
Chinese renminbi yuan 214.2 214.2
Swedish krone 161.3 161.3
Indian rupee 122.6 122.6
Colombian peso 109.8 109.8
Polish zloty 108.3 108.3
Argentine peso 85.7 85.7
Russian rouble 81.6 81.6
United Arab Emirates dirham 79.7 79.7
Turkish lira 68.0 68.0
Other currencies 384.3 (6.1) 378.2
4,385.5 (929.2) 3,456.3
Euro 2,052.4 929.2 2,981.6
T 6,437.9 - T 6,4379

Of the total capital investment in currencies other than euro, amounting to € 4,386 million, an
amount of € 929 million has been hedged through net investment hedges.

Foreign currency transaction risk

At December 31, 2021, the notional amount of outstanding foreign exchange derivatives
related to foreign exchange transaction risk totalled € 1,691 million, mainly relating to US ,
dollars, Norwegian krona, Canadian dollar, Pound sterling and Australian dollar. The net market
value of the outstanding foreign exchange derivatives related to foreign exchange transaction
risk hedging amounted to positive € 3.1 million.
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. . . . . ._Nofional| _ Market

amount value

US dollar . _ 8712 84
Norwegian krona e 12 : o0 Sl C-Ey (o

Canadian dollar < Y 2 X IO 0 X )

Pound sterling ’ ) 85.3 (1.1)

Australian dollar : e e e e o 425 —(24)

Other currencies 81.5 0.8

1,690.5 3.1

Credit and liquidity risk

SHV is prudently financed with relatively_limited amounts.of debt. Most of-the related.interest. _._

rate exposures are fixed, matching the long-term investment strategy ‘of SHV.

Credit risk arises principally from the Company loans and receivables presented under
financial fixed assets, trade and other receivables, securities, cash and cash equivalents
and the positive market value of derivatives. Credit risk encompasses both the direct risk
of default and the risk that the creditworthiness of the counterparty will deteriorate, and
the concentration of risks. The maximum credit risk is equal to the carrying amount of each
financial instrument as reflected on the balance sheet.

SHV's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. However, management also considers the demographics of the customer base,
including the default risk of the industry and country in which customers operate, as these
factors may have an influence on credit risk. As SHV has a wide range of businesses there
is no concentration of transactions with a single customer and geographically, there is no

concentration of credit risk.

Credit policies have been established under which new customers are analysed for -
creditworthiness before the payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. This
review includes external ratings, when available, and in some cases bank references. Purchase
limits are established for customers, which represent the maximum open amount without
requiring approval; these limits are reviewed regularly. - -- -

With the majority of the customers SHV has been transacting for several years. In monitoring
customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics, including
whether they are an individual or legal entity, whether they are a wholesale, retail or end-user
customer, geographic location, industry, aging profile, maturity and existence of previous
financial difficulties. Customers which are graded as ‘high-risk’ are placed on a restricted
customer list and monitored.

Liquidity risk is the risk that SHV will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations.associated
with its financial and contingent liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. SHV's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to SHV's reputation.
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SHV's cash position and treasury function is monitored by using successive liquidity budgets.
Management ensures that the cash position is sufficient to meet the SHV's financial obligations
towards creditors, to stay within the limits of.its loan covenants and to distribute dividends to
its shareholders. The counterparty risk of banks in use is actively monitored by SHV and bank
balances are streamlined and consolidated into a manageable number. The general principle

that SHV adheres to.is that cash.pools are.used whenever possible. ... ... . ..

The Company is exposed to liquidity risks following from conditions attached to derivatives,
namely interest rate swaps, forward contracts and commodity contracts. Based on the
conditions of commodity contracts, banks can exercise margin calls if and when the fair
value of the commodity contracts is below certain thresholds.

SHV is partly financed with interest-bearing debt. For example private placements and bank
loans. Where needed SHV can hedge interest rate exposure by means of, for instance,
interest rate swaps. In addition, SHV can hedge currency exposure resulting from external- or
intercompany loans by means of cross currency swaps and similar instruments.

At December 31, 2021, the following derivatives were in place to manage the interest rate risk:

Outstanding Interest

. amount|interest payable receivable Start date End date Market value
GBP 45.0 4.20% 4.57% 28-03-2012 28-03-2022 (0.3)
GBP 7.0 1.50% 0.38% 30-09-2021 30-09-2024 (0.1)
GBP 75.0 0.83% 2.35% 01-12-2021 02-12-2024 (1.2)
GBP 75.0 0.84% 2.35% 01-12-2021 02-12-2024 (1.2
CAD 97.8 2.84% 0.34% 18-12-2019 27-06-2025 (1.7)
CAD 97.8 2.84% 0.33% 18-12-2019 27-06-2025 (1.7)
SEK 115.0 3.00% 2.42% 12-07-2017 12-07-2022 (0.5)
uUsD 70.0 1.87% 2.72% 19-10-2020 28-03-2022 25

The cross currency swaps of GBP 45 million and USD 70 million relate to external debt. Interest
payable in foreign currency is converted to interest payable in euro.

All other instruments relate to the hedging of intercompany loans receivable whereby the
interest receivable in foreign currency is converted to an interest receivable in euro.

The net market values are included in the total fair value of the financial instruments used for
net investment hedging.

Oil & gas production

The Company is exposed to the risk of fluctuations in prevailing market commodity prices of oil
& gas products being produced by ONE-Dyas.

ONE-Dyas enters into derivatives to reduce these price exposures.
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LPG distribution o

SHYV Energy entered into derivatives to cover mainly the exposure-to.unfavourable.LPG-price. - .-
fluctuations associated with the expected sale of LPG volumes for the period up to 2024.

The derivatives can be specified as follows: .-

Market value

Volumes i Mattlr:ty
Current assets
Propane 813,055 |mT 2022 122.4
Butane 36,924 ImT 2022
Brent crude oil 2,410,000 {BBL 2022 10.5
Naphtha (103,300)|mT 2022 (6.7)
Natural gas 42,368 IMWHr -~ .| ..-21.2022 1.1
Freight 26,000 |mT 2022
Other 6,404 |mT 2022 0.9
T 1282
Non-Current assets
Propane 164,900 ImT 2023 12.7
Natural gas 25,950 [MWHr 2023-2024 0.2
129

Capital Commitments for construction or acquisition of operational and financial fixed assets

commitments amounted to € 197 million and € 152 million at December 31, 2021, and 2020, respectively.

Long-term Under operating leases and long-term leasehold commitments, € 142 million will be due in

commitments 2022, For 2023 until 2026 the amount will be € 279 million and the total after the year 2026
will be € 190 million. The average remaining term at December 31, 2021, is four years. In 2021,
a total amount of € 211 million (2020: € 138 million) was paid under operating leases and
long-term leasehold commitments.
Throughout SHV, several types of assets are leased, such as land and buildings, machinery
and cars. Conditions for related lease payments vary from contract to contract, so is the
existence and content of renewal options, purchase options and pass-trough clauses. in
general, no significant restrictions arise from the lease contracts in relation to for example
dividend payments, additional financing and conclusion of other leases.

Contingent Guarantees

liabilities

99

SHV is contingently liable with respect to guarantees given for a total amount of € 1 millionand
€ 27 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. Furthermore, banks have provided -
guarantees on behalf of group companies for amongst others tax and labour claims. In addition
warranties and indemnities are provided to buyers as part of the exits of investments. These
guarantees are partly insured. Insofar as claims from guarantees given are probable, provisions
have been made.

Furthermore the Group issued discounted notes, letters of awareness, performance - and bid
bonds for which adequate provision and accruals to cover the financial consequences have
been made.
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SHV pledged its shares (49%)in ONE-Dyas B.V. to a consortium of banks acting as lenders
in an USD 900 million senior secured borrowing base facility agreement. Furthermore SHV
granted a second ranking right of pledge on its shares (49%) in ONE-Dyas B.V. to the lenders
in a € 50 million subordinated loan. SHV is not a guarantor under these financing agreements
of ONE-Dyas B.V. Per the end of 2021, the'aggregate amount outstanding under the ONE-Dyas

. financing agreements was € 324 million. Any financing to ONE-Dyas B.V. by SHV will be

subordinated to the abovementioned financing agreements. By the end of 2020, SHV had no
loans outstanding to ONE-Dyas B.V. (2020 € 8 miltion).

Legal proceedings

The Company and certain of its group companies are or may become involved as a party in legal
proceedings, including regulatory and other governmental proceedings, as well as in disputes
with (tax) authorities in several jurisdictions.

When no estimate can be made of the financial consequences, if any, or if the risk of a

future cash outflow is less than probable, no individual provisions have been recognised. The
Company believes that it has made adequate provisions to cover the financial consequences,
if a reliable estimate can be made.
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Net sales per activity:

. 2021 2020
SHV Energy Energy distribution 8,601.9 6,050.2
Nutreco Animal nutrition and aqua feed 7,092.7 6,363.8
Makro Cash-and-carry wholesale 1,124.3 1,635.3
ERIKS Industrial services 1,618.2 1,545.8
Mammoet Heavy lifting and transport 1,240.0 1,128.1
Kiwa Testing, inspection and certification 324.9
20,002.0 16,723.2
Geographical distribution of net sales:
2021 2020
Europe 10,792.9 8,471.8
South America 3,502.8 3,629.0
Asia 2,707.0 1,961.4
North America 2,638.0 2,417.9
Australia and Africa 361.3 343.1
20,002.0 16,723.2
The other income represent mainly the sales of stores Makro Brazil.
2021 2020
Cost of goods soid (8,560.4) (6,245.7)
Cost of raw material (5,852.9) (5,466.2)
(14,413.3)| (11,711.9)
2021 2020
Cost of outsourced work (447.9) {310.2)
Repair, maintenance and cost of equipment (267.6) (254.7)
Transportation, Freight and warehousing (206.4) (177.8)
Rent (153.6) (148.8)
Utilities - Fuels, Power, electricity (149.9) (123.3)
IT costs (127.4) (101.2)
Audit and advisory costs (120.2) (109.3)
Establishment costs (121.4) (102.2)
Tempory labor costs (106.7) (75.3)
Travel and representation costs (84.0) (84.0)
Other personnel expenses (81.7) (66.3)
Sales promotion costs (78.9) (64.9)
Insurance costs (56.8) (42.0)
Other external cost (154.7) (187.3)
(2,157.2)] (1,847.2)

In 2021 ,.the remuneration of the (former) members of the Supervisory Board of Directors, as

included in other external cost, was € 1.1 million (2020: € 1.1 million).
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The total cost of sales per a functional model considering the costs of raw materials,
consumables and goods sold for resale of the cost of outsourced work amounted to
€ 18,075.2 million {2020: € 12,011.7 million). ’

Salaries For the year 2021, the remuneration paid to (former) statutory management, including pension

and wages . contributions and one-off payments, amounts to € 10.3 million (2020: € 10.2 million). The
underlying remuneration policy and structure for statutory management has not been changed
in 2021.

Average number of full-time equivalent employees per activity:

. 2021 2020

SHV Energy 16,310 16,744
Nutreco 12,168 12,064
Kiwa » 7,347 0
Makro 6,655 9,004
Mammoet 6,217 6,981
ERIKS 5,982 6,367
Other 130 132
54,809 51,292

49,677 full-time equivalent employees were employed outside of the Netherlands.

Social security 2021 2020
and pension Social security premiums (315.1) (281.1)
fund premiums Pension cost (27.9) (106.2)

(343.0) (387.3)

Other operating Other operating expenses represent mainly changes in allowances for doubtful accounts
expenses receivable and provisions for future expenditures that are considered to be part of normal
business operations and reorganization expenses.

Fees to 2021 2020
statutory auditor Total KPMG| — Other KPMG Total KPMG| — Other KPMG
: Accountants network Accountants network
N.V. N.V.
Audit of the
financial statements 10.7 4.7 6.0 9.3 4.0 5.3
Other
assurance services 0.8 0.2 0.6 0.9 0.2 0.7
Tax services 0.1 0.1 0.1 0.1
Other non-
audit services 4.2 4.2 0.4 0.4
15.8 4.9 10.9 10.7 4.2 6.5

Expenses are allocated to the respective reporting periods.
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2021

2020

Amortisation (173.7) (162.1)

Depreciation eemmme4eg2)| (AT T

impairments T T(298) T T(28E)| T T
(671.4) (663.0)

The following exceptional items, which are based on internal management information, are
included in salaries and wages, other operating expenses and amortisation, depreciation and

impairments which can be specified as follows:

- -—2021- |-~ ~— -2020-} - —
Income from operations (excluding exceptional items) 459.0 388.1
Sale of assets 81.5 258.6
Restructuring costs (43.5) (37.3)
Provision for special risks (7.0) 11.5
Pensions 67.1 (27.7)
Impairments (29.6) (28.8)
Claims and other disputes (2.5) 37.6
Exceptional items 66.0 213.9
Income from operations 525.0 602.0

2021 2020

Dividend income 234.8 41.4
Realised capital gains and losses 405.8 4.2
Received interest 3.8 4.4
Impairments, including reversals (11.7) (39.0)
Other (0.4) (0.1)
© 6323 10.9

2021 2020

Income before income taxes 202.7 (72.7)
Income taxes (81.1) 31.9

1216 (40.8)|

The income from investments in affiliates represent mainly the operating result of ONE-Dyas.

2021 2020

Interest income 25.6 1.4
Interest expenses (118.3) (78.6)
(92.7) (67.2)
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2021 2020
Results on sale of subsidiaries 15.5 192.7
Change fair value derivatives ' 14.9 (14.2)
Bank charges ’ ) (4.9) (3.5)
Currency exchange differences (17.1) (6.2
Results from trade investments o 0.1 3.5
Cost of loans (3.2) (3.6)
Other income . 5.0 0.7

103 169.4

The results on sale of subsidiaries includes the divestment of Balcas, Primagaz Nederland and
and sale real estate company in India. . . e -

The change in fair value derivatives relates to the commodity derivatives in SHV Energy.

2021 2020

Current income taxes (149.7) (143.7)
Deferred income taxes (29.9) 233
Other taxes on income and equity (12.6) (49.1)
Taxes on income from investments in affiliates (81.1) 319
(273.3) (137.6)

The effective tax rate remains stable at 21.4%. The effective income tax impact for this year
mainly relates to higher non-taxable capital gains and dividends under the Dutch participation
exemption, offset by higher taxes on income from investments in affiliates and deferred tax
assets that could not be recognized.

Amount %
Income before income tax 1,277.6
Nominal weighted average tax rate (319.2) 25.0%
Permanent differences 129.4 -10.1%
Valuation of temporary differences (7.8) 0.6%
Tax loss carry forward (6.8) 0.5%
Additional taxes on income and equity (9.0) 0.7%
Withholding taxes (27.4) 2.1%
Taxes on income from investments in affiliates (30.4) 2.4%
Adjustments prior years (2.1) 0.2%
Effective income tax (273.3) 21.4%

The nominal weighted average tax rate of 25.0% (2020: 24.8%) is based on the statutory
income rates applicable in the various countries.

The reconciliation of the nominal average tax rate (as a percentage of earnings before taxes)
to the effective tax rate can be mainly explained by permanent differences, non-recoverable
withholding tax charges and taxes on income from investments in affiliates.

The effect of permanent differences mainly consists of non-taxable capital gains and dividends
realised by NPM Capital € 162 million and non-deductible amortisation of goodwill for an
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amount of € 16 million. Withholding taxes in the amount of € 27 million mainly reflects

. taxes related to dividends or undistributed reserves and non-recoverable withholding tax

.- —. ..—charges. Our effective tax rate.is-further impacted.by taxes:on.income.from investments in

Currency rates

Related
party transactions

Subsequent - - - -

events
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affiliates- This: mainly-reflects-the ONE=Dyas result, which was-impacted by higher oil & gas
prices and is subject to supplementary tax.

The following rates have been used in computing the principal foreign currency conversions:

in euro

Average| Year-end| Averagei Year-end
. 2021 2021 2020 2020

1 AED |United Arab Emirates dirham 0.23 0.24 0.24 0.22

1 AUD |Australian doliar, 0.63 0.64 0.60 0.63

1 BRL |Brazilian real 0.16 0.16 0.17 0.16

1 CAD [Canadian dollar 0.67 0.69 0.65 0.64

1 GBP [Pound sterling 1.16. 1.19 1.12 1.1

1 PEN |Peruvian nuevo sol 0.22 0.22 0.25 0.22

1 PLN [Polish zloty 0.22 0.22 0.23 0.22

1 TRY [Turkish lira 0.10 0.07 0.12 0.11

1 USD ([USdollar 0.85 0.88 0.88 0.81
100 ARS |Argentine peso 0.86 0.86 0.97 0.97
100 CNY [Chinese renminbi yuan 13.10 13.87 12.70 12.44
100 COP |[Colombian peso 0.02 0.02 0.02 0.02
100 INR |Indian rupee 1.14 1.19 1.18 1.1
100 NOK |Norwegian krona 9.84 10.02 9.32 9.51
100 RUB |Russian rouble 1.15 1.18 1.21 1.09

Transactions with related parties occur when relationship exists between the Company,
its participating interests, shareholders and key'management personnel. There were no
transactions with related parties that were not entered into on a commercial basis. In its
normal course-of business, the Company buys and sells goods and services from and to various

.related parties in which the Company has an interest. These transactions are.conducted on

a commercial basis and are subject to conditions that usually govern comparable sales and
purchase transactions with third parties.

‘On-February 14, 2022, ERIKS announced its intention to sell its North American activities,
operating under the names ERIKS North America, Rawson-industrial Controls, ERIKS Seals
and Plastics, and CNC Flow Control to LKCM Headwater Investments. The intended
transaction is subject to approval of US pre-merger clearance and limited additional
conditions. Closing of the transaction is expected in the first half of 2022.

Following the recent escalation of the conflict between Russia and the Ukraine, sanctions
were imposed on the Russian government, as well as major financial institutions and certain
other entities and individuals in Russia. The imposed and potential future sanctions as well
as restrictions introduced by various countries are likely to hamper the operations in certain
Groups. It is not yet possible to quantify the financial impact for SHV.
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Notes to the consolidated statements of cash flow

In millions of euro

The consolidated cash flow statements have been prepared in accordance with the indirect
method. Liquidity in the consolidated cash flow statements consists of money market
investments and cash and cash equivalents. The money market investments are considered
liquid investments, as these are directly convertible and the cash that would be received is
subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Cash }Iow items in foreign currency are translated at the average currency rates. The currency
exchange differences reported in the consolidated statements of cash fiow represent the effect
of translating the liquidity in foreign currency at the beginning of the year and the change in
liquidity during the year using the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the year.

Changes in working capital include the cash flow movement from changes in inventories,
accounts receivable and short-term debt, excluding amounts related to:.. .. .. .

¢ redemption of non-current liabifities;

* dividends to be paid,

* payables to banks;

¢ payables and receivables for taxes on income and equity;

* payables and receivables for interest.

Investments in consolidated companies are stated at the acquisition price. Disposals are
stated at sales price. The effect on cash and cash equivalents is separately presented as
changes in consolidation.

Net interest paid and received, dividends received from investments in affiliates and net taxes
paid and received are included in net cash flow from operating activities.

The payment of finance lease terms is allocated for the part related to the repayment of the
lease obligation to the cash flows from financing activities and is allocated for the part related
to the interest component to the cash flows from operational activities.

Change in

2021 liquidity 2020

Money market investments 10.7 6.1
Cash and cash equivalents 1,112.8 1,179.6
Liquidity 1,123.5 (62.2) 1,185.7
Foreign Changes in Cash flow| Non cash flow| Balance sheet
currency! consolidation movements movements movement

transiation

Intangible fixed assets ( 44.5) (112.3) (488.1) 234.5 (410.4)
Tangible fixed assets (142.1) (71.4) (546.4) 391.2 (368.7)
Financial fixed assets (42.4) 228.7 (257.6) (55.8) (127.1)
Working capital 16.1 1.2 (323.2) 514 (254.5)
Cash and cash equivalents 9.2 (71.4) (62.2)
Provisions 12.7 7.7 (215.6) (5.3) (200.5)
Long-term debt 63.9 396.0 238.2 180.3 878.4
Payable to banks (10.3) 69.1 | 119.6 178.4
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Parent company balance sheets and statements of
income at December 31

(after proposed distribution of income)

Assets in millions of euro 2021 2020
Tangible fixed assets 1.5 1.9

_ .2 .. Financial fixed assets. . _-_ _._ . 6,657.9 6,496.2

Fixed assets 6,659.4 6,498.1

Accounts receivable ’ 34.8 54.8

Cash and cash equivalents 55.5 29.4

Current assets 90.3 84.2

Total 6,749.7 6,582.3

Liabilities . Capital stock ' o e 327.3 327.3
Additional paid-in capital 33.8 33.8

. Legal reserves . .- (287.4) (513.5)

Other reserves 6,364.2 6,483.8

Equity 6,437.9 6,331.4

Provisions 0.2

Final dividend to shareholders 291.2 232.7

Other current liabilities 20.6 18.0

Current liabilities 311.8 250.7

! Total 6,749.7 6,582.3
Parent company 2021 2020
statements . . -Share of results of participating interests, after tax. . - .- -- - S e e 97901 475.4
of income Other results, after taxes (0.6) 12.4
Income 978.5 487.8
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General

Financial
fixed assets

Notes to the parent company financial statements

tn millions of euro, unless otherwise indicated

Accounting and valuation

The same accounting principles are used for the parent company balance sheets and...
statements of income as for the consolidated financial statements. Therefore, reference is
made to the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Participating interests in group companies

Participating interests in group companies are accounted for in the separate financial
statements according to the equity accounting method on the basis of net asset value.
For details we refer to the accounting policy for financial fixed assets in the consolidated
financial statements.

Share of result of participating interests

This item concerns the company's share of the profit or loss of these participating interests.
Results on transactions involving the transfer of assets and liabilities between the company
and its participating interests and mutually between participating interests themselves, are
eliminated to the extent that they can be considered as not realised.

2021 2020
Consolidated companies 6,621.6 6,454.5
Deferred income taxes 25.7 28.5
Other financial fixed assets 10.6 13.2

6,657.9 6,496.2

Consolidated companies represent the 100% owned Dutch subsidiary SHV Nederland B.V. and
is valued at net asset value.

Movements in value of consolidated companies were as follows:

2021 2020
Balance, the beginning of the year 6,454.5 6,562.2
Share in income 979.1 475.5
Additions 1.0
Dividends (232.7) (280.0)
Goodwill and other changes (700.2) 33.9
Taxes (20.6) (26.6)
Foreign currency translation 141.5 (311.5)
Balance, December 31 6,621.6 6,454.5
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

Total{ Capital stock Additional| Legal reserves| Other reserves
paid-in capital

Balance, December 31, 2019 6,380.5 327.3 33.8 (114.4) 6,133.8
Income . 487.8|. . _ (112.3) 600.1
Dividend (232.7) - o (232.7)
Changes in unrealised derivatives 51.3 51.3
Goodwill and other changes (17.4) - (17.4)
Taxes (16.3) . (16.3)
Foreign currency translation (321.8) (321.8)
Balance, December 31, 2020 6,331.4 327.3 33.8 (513.5) 6,483.8
Income 978.5 49.3 . 929.2
Dividend (290.9) (290.9)
Changes in unrealised derivatives 55.9 55.9
Goodwill and other changes (757.9) _ (757.9)
Taxes (20.6) (20.6)
Foreign currency translation 1415 141.5
Balance, December 31, 2021 6,437.9 3273 33.8 (287.4) 6,364.2

In the separate financial statements, financial instruments are presented on the basis of their
legal form. The legal form is consistent with the economic reality of the instruments.

An amount of € 361.1 (2020: € 361.1) is not recognised as paid-up amount within the meaning
of Section 3a of the Netherlands Dividend Tax Act 1965 (‘Wet op de Dividendbelasting 1965').

Foreign currency translation is mainly caused by the appreciation of the Brazilian real, Chinese
Renminbi Yuan, Pound sterling, Canadian dollar and US dollar.

Capital stock

SHV Holdings N.V. has a nominal capital divided into shares of € 45 each.
At December 31, 2021, the number of issued shares is 7,272,733. They are paid in full and have
the same rights.

There are no shares of capital stock heid by the Company.

Additional paid-in capital

The addition paid-in capital concerns the income from the issuing of shares in so far as this
exceeds the nominal value of the shares (above par income).
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- Notes to the parent company financial statements

Legal reserves

Movements in legal reserves were as follows:

Total Translation Capitalised| Participations| Hedge reserve
reserve development
tote costs
Balance, December 31, 2019 (114.4) (464.2) 251.1 91.3 7.4
Income (112.3) (21.0) (91.3)
Changes in unrealised derivatives 51.3 51.3
Taxes (16.3) (2.3) (14.0)
Foreign currency translation (321.8) (321.8)
Balance, December 31, 2020 (513.5) (788.3) 230.1 44.7
Income 49.3 .49.3 {..
Changes in unrealised derivatives 55.9 55.9
Taxes (20.6) (7.5) (13.1)
Foreign currency translation 141.5 141.5
Balance, December 31, 2021 (287.4) (654.3) 279.4 T 815

Foreign currency translation includes an amount of € 2.4 million, which has been recycled
through the income statement as part of the result on the sale of Balcas .

The legal reserve for development costs is determined based on the carrying amounts of the
recognised development costs, both at the level of SHV Holdings as well at the level of the
consolidated group companies. In doing so, the capitalised development costs and related
changes in carrying amounts are regarded as if it relates to assets of SHV Holdings ifself.

The legal reserve for participating interests, which amounts to nihil (2020 nihil), pertains to
participating interests that are measured at net asset value. The reserve is equal to the share
in the results and direct changes in equity (both calculated on the basis of the Company's
accounting policies) of the participating interests since the first measurement at net asset
value, less the distributions that the Company has been entitled to since the first measurement

. at net asset value, and less distributions that the Company may effect without restrictions.

As to the latter share, this takes into account any profits that may not be distributable by
participating interests that are Dutch limited companies based on the distribution tests to be
performed by the management of those companies. The legal reserve is determined on an

individual basis.

Other reserves

Other reserves consist of retained earnings.

2021 2020

Salaries, wages, gratuities and bonuses (22.0) (23.8)
Social security premiums (1.0) (1.0)
Pension fund premiums (1.0) (0.3)
. (24.0) (25.1)
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Notes to the parent company financial statements

Number ~--o- - - -During-2021, the-average number -of full-time equivalent employees is 98 (2020: 99).
of employees No employees were employed outside the Netherlands.

Long-term Commitments for operating leasing agreements amounted to € 0.8 million at
commitments ___. _December 31,.2021(2020: € 0.7 million). C e e e e e T
Contingent SHV Holdings N.V. has guaranteed loans and credit facilities of its subsidiaries for a
liabilities total amount of € 3,148 million (2020: € 2,944 million). These loans and credit facilities

include predominantly credit facilities and loans of SHV Nederland B.V. such as the
irrevocable credit facility of € 800 miilion, the irrevocable credit facility of € 1,000 million

. ...and the private placement loans 2012,.2015, 2020.and.2021 for a totat.amount of
approximately € 1,343 million. Furthermore, the amount includes a number of guarantees
given to banks in relation to credit- and cash pooling facilities as well as guarantees given to
suppliers of our subsidiaries.

The company has guaranteed the debts arising from transactions entered into by a number of
Dutch subsidiaries. A list of subsidiaries is available for information at the office of the Chamber
of Commerce in Utrecht.

SHYV Holdings N.V. forms a fiscal unity for corporate income tax with a number of Dutch

subsidiaries. The company and its subsidiaries, which are part of this fiscal unity, are ail
severally and jointly liable for the taxes payable by the fiscal unity.

Related Reference is made to the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
party transactions

Subsequent Reference is made to the notes to the consolidated financial statements.
events

Distribution

of income - Dividend policy

SHV's dividend policy is to ensure sustainable dividends to our shareholders.

Proposed distribution of income

2021 2020

Dividend . 290.9 232.7
Increase in reserves 687.6 255.1
e - ) 978.5 487.8
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Manner of dividend distribution

2021 | i 2020 |
Final dividend . 290.9 | 232.7 |

The final. dividend for 2021 is € 40.00 per share of € 45 nominal value, no interim dividend was
paid in 2021. The final dividend for 2021 is recognised as a liability. The comparable amounts
for 2020 were no interim dividend and a final dividend of € 32.00.

Utrecht, March 7, 2022

Supervisory Board of Directors Executive Board of Directors
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amount.shall be.reserved-to be.determined.by. the.General.Meeting.at the .proposal by the
~managing board:submitted with the-approval of the-Supervisory Board.-- -
2. The amount of profit then remaining is at the disposal of the General Meeting: = -

To: the General Shareholders Meeting of SHV Holdings N.V.

Our opinion

We have audited the 2021 financial statements of SHV Holdings N.V., having its statutory seat
in Bonaire. The financial statements comprise of the consolidated financial statements and the
company financial statements.

In our opinion the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial
position of SHV Holdings N.V. as at 31 December 2021 and of its result for 2021 in accordance
with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The consolidated financial statements comprise:

* the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

¢ the consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income for 2021;

e the consolidated statement of cash flow for 2021; and

* the notes to the consolidated financial statements, comprising of the accounting policies
and other explanatory information, as included on pages 57-106.

The company financial statements comprise:

¢ the parent company balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

* the parent company statement of income for 2021; and

* the notes to the parent company financial statements, comprising of the accounting policies
and other explanatory information, as included on pages 108-112.

Basis for our opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards
on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Our
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements' section of our report.

We are independent of SHV Holdings N.V. in accordance with the Wet toezicht
accountantsorganisaties (Wta, Audit firms supervision act), the 'Verordening inzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance-opdrachten’ (ViO, Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, a regulation with respect to independence) and other relevant
independence regulations in the Netherlands. Furthermore, we have complied with the
'Verordening gedrags- en beroepsregels accountants' (VGBA, Dutch Code of Ethics).

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion
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Other information

Report on the other information included in the annual report

In addition to the.financial statements and our auditor's.report thereon, the annual report

contains other information that consists of:

¢ the report of the Supervisory Board of Directors ''Foreword'’;

= the report of the Executive Board of Directors ''Highlights'', ''Care for our people'’, ‘'Care
for our planet'* and '‘Care for our performance'’;

e other paragraphs as included on pages 1-9 and pages 117-118; and

* other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code;

Based on the foliowing procedures performed, we conclude that the other information:

¢ is consistent with the financial statements and does not contain material misstatements;
e contains the information as required by Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code..

We have read the other information. Based on our knowledge and understanding obtained
through our audit of the financial statements or otherwise, we have considered whether the
other information contains material misstatements.

By performing these procedures, we comply with the requirements of Part 9 of Book 2 of the
Dutch Civil Code and the Dutch Standard 720. The scope of the procedures performed is less
than the scope of those performed in our audit of the financiail statements.

The Executive Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information,

including the Directors’ report, in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and
other information pursuant to Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Responsibilities of Executive Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board of

'Directors for the financial statements

The Executive Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore,
the Executive Board of Directors is responsible for such internal control as the Executive Board
of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to errors or fraud.

As part-of the preparation of the financial statements, the Executive Board of Directors is
responsible for assessing the company's ability to continue as a going concern. Based on
the financial reporting framework mentioned, the Executive Board of Directors should prepare
the financial statements using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Executive
Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. The Executive Board of Directors should disclose events and
circumstances that may cast significant doubt on the company's ability to continue as a going
concern in the financial statements.
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‘reporting process.

Otherinformation

The Supervisory Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the company's financial

. Our responsibilities for the audit-of.the f,in_anc_iélstatements

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit engagement in a manner that allows us to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for our opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but not absolute, level of assurance, which means
we may not have detected all material errors and fraud during our audit.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or errors and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the financial statements. The materiality affects the nature, timing and

- extent of our audit procedures-and the evaluation of the effect of identified misstatements on

our opinion.

We have exercised professional judgement and have maintained professional scepticism
throughout the audit, in accordance with Dutch Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements
and independence requirements. Our audit included among others:

* identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to errors or fraud, designing and performing audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resuiting from errors, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

s obtaining an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internai control;

¢ ‘eévaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Executive Board of Directors;

e concluding on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the company ceasing to continue as a going concern;,

o evaluating the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures; and

e evaluating whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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Because we are ultimately responsible for the opinion, we are also responsible for directing,
supervising and performing the group audit. In this respect we have determined the nature and
extent of the audit procedures to be carried out for group entities or operations. Decisive were
the size and/or the risk profile of the group entities or operations. On this basis, we selected
group entities or operations for which an audit or review had to be carried out on the complete
set of financial information or specific items.

We communicate with the Supervisory Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
findings in internal control that we identify during our audit

Amstelveen, 7 March 2022

KPMG Accountants N.V.

E.J.L. van Leeuwen RA
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SHV Group information

SHV Energy N.V.
Capellalaan 65

2132 JL Hoofddorp
The Netherlands

T +31 23 555 5700

F +31 23 555 5701
info@shvenergy.com
www.shvenergy.com

Makro

Rua Carlos Lisdegno Carlucci 519
05536-900 Sao Paulo - SP

Brazil

T +55 11 3745 2814
www.makro.com

Mammoet Holding B.V.
Van Deventerlaan 30-40
3528 AE Utrecht

P.O. Box 10000

3505 AA Utrecht

The Netherlands

T +31 88 650 2300

F +31 88 650 2340
info@mammoet.com
www.mammoet.com

ERIKS N.V.
Mariaplaats 21
3511 LK Utrecht
P.O. Box 19108
3501 DC Utrecht
The Netherlands
T +31 30369 0100
info@eriks.com
www.eriks.com

SHVin 2021

Management

A.A. Graber

E.H.O.M. Bouwman (a.i. as of 1 December 2021)
Mrs M. Groeneveld-Klunder

P.F. van Holten (until 1 November 2021)

M. Kossack

P.F. Rodrigues (as of 1 September 2021)

Mrs A.M.H. Schéningh

S.L.L.T. Sels

S.M. Wijdeveld (until 1 May 2021)

Management

R. Laughlin

E. Demasi Neto

Mrs D. Rainha Ribeiro

Management

P.C. van Gelder

J.A. Kleijn

T.H. Tieleman (as of 1 May 2021)
Mrs |I.C. Verlinde-van Rijswijk

C. Voormolen (until 1 May 2021)

Management

S. Breedveld

F.J. Cuypers

Mrs M. Mauri

Mrs J.W. den Otter

E.C. Otto (until 1 September 2021)




SHV Group information

Nutreco N.V.
Stationsstraat 77

3811 MH Amersfoort
P.O. Box 299

3800 AG Amersfoort

The Netherlands

T +31 088 053 2405

F +31 033 422 6105
corpcomm@nutreco.com
www.nutreco.com

Kiwa N.V.

Sir Winston Churchilllaan 273
P.O.Box 70

2280 AB Rijswijk

The Netherlands

T +31 88 998 4400
info@kiwa.com
www.kiwa.com

NPM Capital N.V.
Breitnerstraat 1

1077 BL Amsterdam
P.O. Box 7224

1007 JE Amsterdam
The Netherlands

T +31 20570 5555

F +31 20470 6454
info@npm-capital.com
www.npm-capital.com

ONE-Dyas B.V.

“UN Studio, 7th Floor
Parnassusweg 815

1082 LZ Amsterdam

The Netherlands

T +31 20535 4100

F +31 205354122
paralegal@onedyas.com
www.onedyas.com

SHVin 2021

Management

F.J.C. van Lede (as of 15 August 2021)
R. Koremans (until 15 August 2021)

C. Dekker (until 1 November 2021)
L.H.M. Genet

P.F. van Holten (as of 1 November 2021)
Mrs S.W. Korink

Mrs Th. Log Bergjord

M.W. Roelants

Management
P.G.M. Hesselink
L.MA. Leroy

R. Niemantsverdriet

Management

B.P. Coopmans

H.H.C. Claus (as of 1 October 2021)

S. van Dongen (until 4 November 2021)
N.J.M. Kramer

L.J. van Loon

J.R. Ruigrok

Management

C.H. de Ruyter van Steveninck
Th.A. Israél

A.R. Korevaar

G.P. Nieuwenhuijze

A.C. van der Weijden

Iy
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SHV in 2021




